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Making life better
by entertaining and
connecting people

We make \Ife better by entertaining and connecting people
We are part of everyday life for milions of customers and
we wark hard to meet their needs and earn their trust

We believe In better That means offenng a better choice of
high-quality entertainment for the whole farmly and using
technology to put them in control, whenever and wherever they
want. Our home communications services make it sirmple, safe and
reliable for customers to connect to each cther and to the world

We make our products affordable so millions can jon in We are
committed to providing exceptional customer service And we are
always looking for ways to improve in everything that we do

Seeing the bigger picture 1s fundamental to how we do business
We are committed to behaving responsibly and doing the nght
thing for the communities where we live and work

Our people are critical to our success We aim to foster a culture
where they can do their best work, fulfil their potential and achieve
great things together

We want to build a business that I1s durable for the long term
Delivering for our customers, our employees and the wider
community 1s how we will create a more valuable business
for our shareholders and sustain success into the future

Believe in better.

Britlsh Sky Sraadeasting Group plc
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Sky 1s reaching a whote
new set of customers
with NOW TV

Turn to page 20

SKky 15 creating opportunities for
one million young people to build
skills and expenence by 2020
Turn to page 27

Sky Broadband Shield
means customers <an enjoy
surfing the internet safely
Turn to page 23

For mede Infermation about Sky 20 Lo sky com/corporate

Sky Sparts set new audience
records ths season
Turn to page 14

Cur new EPG 13 helping
customers to get even
mare from therr subscnption
Turn to page 19

Qur Software Engineenng
Academy s traming the
developers of the future
Turn to page 32

To find out more about our approach to building a sustainable business and our progress Inthe year gota
sky com/biggerpictire where you £an also download the Seeng the bigger picture Summary Report 2014
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Strategic report - At a glance

Sky at a glance

Consumer business

We are Britain and Ireland’s leading home
entertainment and communications company,
providing services to more than 40% of homes

Sky TV

Sky gives millions of families a better
choice of TV ta enjay on their terms
at home or on the go watching
five or on demand

Content business

We own and operate Brnitain and Ireland’s largest
portfolio of pay TV channels across entertainment,
sports, movies and 24-hour hews

Sky Sports

Sky Sports seven channels broadcast
awide range of live and exclusive sport
news and analysis, from football
and golf to enecket and tennis

Our other businesses

We operate a number of businesses in adjacent
sectors that draw on our core strengths in content,
Innovation and customers

Sky Media

Sky Media 1s our advertising sales
house offening advertisers access to
125 TV channels Sky Medias portfolio
1s watched by over 90% of the population
each week on TV, online and onthe go

Financial performance

£76bn

Revenue

Contribution

We mabke a significant and growing economic
and social contribution to life in Britain and
freland, directly employing over 25,000 people

£6bn

Sky's contribution to UK GOP

02 Bnush Sky Broadeasting Group pke
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Sky Broadband

Sky 1s Bnitan and Ireland s fastest-growing
home commun:ications provider connecting
mare than 5 million customers with broadband
and telephony services

NOW TV

NOW TV Is our over-the-top streaming
service providing low-cost tow-commitment
access to the best of Sky's content

Strategic report - At aglance

34.8m

Paid-for subscription products

11.5m

Customers

Sky Entertainment

Sky has four main entertainment channels
Sky 1 Sky Living, Sky Atlantic and Sky Arts
These showcase our own UK-commissioned
content alongside the best of the US

Sky Movies

Sky Movies s Europe’s largest in-home
mowvie service with over 800 film titfes
from the major Hollywood studios
and independent distributors

Sky News

Sky News reaches over 100 milion
homes on multiple platforms across
118 countries with its combination
of breaking news and analysts

Sky Business

Sky Business provides Sky s TV and
WIFL services to atange of comtnercial
businesses, induding offices retail outlets
hotels, and licensed premises

Sky Bet

Sky Bet offers a range of onltne betting
and gaming services under the Sky Bet
Sky Peker, Sky Vegas and Sky Binga brands

Content Distribution

Sky wholesales its channels to
third-party pay TV platforms aswell
as selling awde range of programming
internationally through Sky Vision

£1.3bn

Operating profit

60.0p

117,000

Total number of UK jobs
supported by Sky

£2.7bn

Tetal annual tax contnbution*
tothe UK Exchequer

* From net VAT corporation taxes
and employee iIncame taxes

105,000

Number of young people who partiapated
In Sky Academny initiatives last year

Brush Sky Broadeasting Group pte. 03
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Strategic report - Charman's statement

A year of outstanding progress

2014 has been a year of outstanding progress for Sky
Executing well against a clear and consistent strategy,

the Company has delivered strong operational growth and
an excellent financial performance in a year of investment

Nick Ferguson, CBE
Chairman

Qur results show there 1s very good momentum in Sky s business with
strong customer demand for our products and rapid growth In new
services such as On Demand and NOW TV This has been achieved
against a chalienging backdrop where there has been continued
pressure on household budgets andit s testament to the robustness
of the strategy and the exemplary way in which management has
axecuted their plans

This year's results build on a proven track record of delivery Qver the
past few years we have transformed the size and scale of the business
more than doubling earnings per share since 2009 This has enabled
the Company to return a total of £3 4 billion to shareholders over

that five-year penod through a combination of share buybacks

and dividends

The Board 1s confident that Sky 15 well placed to take advantage of
the growth epportunities ahead The conditronal acqusition of 100%
of Sky italia and 57 4% of Sky Deutschland from 235t Century Fox,
announced on 25 July will enable Sky to build on the strength of

the business in Britain and Ireland to ¢reate even greater value

for shareholders as a wider international business

As Sky has grown, 50 has Its economic contribution to Britain and
ireland Skyis the biggest commeraal supporter of the UK creative
industnes nwvesting mere than £2.6 billion this year in high-quality
sports, news and entertainment content As a successful company,
Sky contnibutes £6 billion to UK GDP supports 117000 jobs and
generates a total of £2 7 billion en tax revenues for the Exchequer

Sky also makes a considerable saal contnbution We took a big step
forward this year with the launch of Sky Academy a groundbreaking
set of Initiatives to inspire young people and give them the skills and
confidence they need to participate more fully in a changing world
Our aim 1s to create opportunities for up to one millon young people
to buiid skills and expenence by 2020

QOver the past year there have been a number of changes to the
Board We were very pleased to welcome Adine Grate an expenenced
finance and Investment professional to the Beard last July twould
like to thank Danny Rimer for his contnbution as Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee He stepped down from this role at the
AGM In November and has been succeeded by Tracy Clarke | would
parucularly bke to thank Andy Higginson our Senior independent
Director for his outstanding contnbubion to the Company in the last
ten years Andy will retire from the Board at the AGM in November

Finally in ight of the Company s strong performance the Board
praposes a 7% increase in the full-year dmdend to 32 0 pence,
the tenth consecutive year of growth

On behalf of the Board, t would like to thank shareholders for their
continued support and to extend my thanks tc all of my colleagues
across Sky for theircommitment and therr invaluable contrnibution
to ancther excellent year for the business

04 Brtish Sky Broadcasting Group plc




Mr Sloana
Comnussioned by Sky Atlantic Mr Sloane was a bittersweet romantic comedy from the
Director of Curb Your EnthusiasmRobert B Weide and starred Nick Frost and Oliva Colman
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Strategec report - Qur busress modet

Our business model
How we create value

We create sustainable value by pursuing broad
growth opportunities and achieving competitive
advantage through our core strengths and the
way we do business

Qur growth
opportunities

« Expanding in pay
TV and home
communications

Our
strengths

» Delivering great
content

» Market-leading

How we do
business

» Investing for
the long term

« Dnving efficiency

A bigger, more

R e B poftable
& customers . . bu5|ne§s

. E;ggﬁlgr%tles n gggsléng " deliverlng

adjacent sectors increased

We have an attractive Sky's competitve Bacause we want to buid returns to

o somaueomonatonel  we iestfor the long shareholders

strengths in threg areas

We are expanding in cur We underpin everything H
core business of pay TV We defiver the best and that we do with a ngorous and maklng
and home communications broadest range of content foous on operatin H
for the whole family efficiency 8 d pOSIthE
We are opening up new .
emerging areas of the We harness new technology We make a positive impact m p act
market in the pay hght and to give customers the on the communmities where
transactional segments best viewing expenence, we live and work. We call 1
wherever and whenever this seeing the thgger on socl ety
We are exploiting they want picture
opportunities In adjacent
sectors such as targeted We combine these with We invest in our peocple
advertising and betung a deep understanding of recogrusing that their
and gaming customer needs and best- tatent and commutment
in-ctass customer service are crntical Lo Gur SUCCess

06 Bnush SkyBroadcasbing Group plc
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Our strategy

Strategic report - Cheef Executrve § statement

As we mark our 25th anniversary, Sky I1s performing strongly
and our potential for future growth I1s as exciting as it has
ever been We had a very good year in 2014 with more people
choosing Sky and taking more of our products The business
1S delivering strong financial results and we enter the new year

with good momentum

Jeremy Darroch
Chief Executve

We operate In an attractrive and dynamic marketplace that 15 epenng up
a bigger and broader opportunity one that we are uriguely positioned
to take advantage of in today’s connected world home entertanment
and communications are central to people s Ives and they arewiliing
to commit an increasing proportion of their household spend on these
services In this environment our strategy i1s to deliver market-leading
content nnovation and customer service while operatingas a
responstble business and making a positive impact on society

We believe this approach will allow us to continue to grow and

create value for shareholders

Our growth opportunities

Sky s willingness to embrace that change and innovate 15 opening
up exciing new opportunities and gving Us more ways to grow
We see an expanding opportunity to serve the market broadly
through muluple ehannels and, for the first ume, 1o pronde

Sky for Everyone based on multiple platforms and services

This apportunity for growth lies in three areas

Fust and foremost we see an opportunity to sell more products
to maore customers by meeting the significant demand that axists
for our core TV and home communications products

Notwithstanding the excellent progress that we have made over the
last 25 years 13 milhon households in Bntain and Ireland have vet to
pay far TV and over 5 million of our customers have yet to switch their
home communicatiens service £0 Sky Our successful transition to

a mulu-product strategy has enabled us to sell more products to
more customers and with an average of three paid-for products

per customer at the end of June 2014 there remains plenty more
growth to go for Our performance In the Jast year demanstrates

that consumers' appetite to take more from Sky remains as strong

as ever and this gives us an important platform from which to build

Second wesee sigmhitant addiiienal potenbal for growth mnew
segments of the market that we are only just starting to address
NOW TV our aver-the-tap streaming service gives us the chance to
unlock new pockets of demand tn an emerging pay light sector and
extend our reach in Freeview homes - rmany of whom are fooking for
an easy and flexible way to enjoy abetter TV expenence Our NOW TV
Box offers alow-cost low-commitment way for these households to
enjoy Sky s content with a choice of movies sport and entertainment
passes Inaddition we continue toroll out NOW TV to more connected
devices taking advaniage of the growth in viteo consumption gver
smartphones tablets and games consoles

Alongside this we also have an opportunity to extend the Sky brand
into the transactional market by accelerating the move from physical
DVDrs to digital This 15 a market worth an estmated £1 6iion a
yearin the UK and while we have been growing our share of the
rertai part of this market well with Sky Store, the launch this spring
of our Buy & Keep service lets us tap inte the much larger purchase
segment of the market We see strong potential for growth given
our long-standing relationships with the major Stuchos and the
strength of the Sky brand in home entertainment.

British Sky Broadcasting Group pic
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Strategit report - Ovef Executive’s statement:

Our strategy

(continued)

Sky Arts Portrait Artist of the Year presented by Joan Bakewell and Frank Skinner

Third we are opening up new growth opportunities in our portfolio of
businesses in adjazent sectors These are businesses where Sky often
has a small share today in what are large and valuable addressable
markets This includes Sky Bet, our betting and gaming business, which
has delivered sustained double-digit growth in revenue and profit and
yet still only has 6% of a £3 bilion market We see another significant
opportunity In targeted advertising with the launch this year of Sky
AdSmart Combxning the power scale and immedtacy of TV advertising
with the segmentation and targeting of direct mail and regicnal
adverusing, Sky AdSmart opens up a £6 bxlion market that we have
been unable to reach until now

Taken together these represent a broad opportunity for growth
chrough multiple services and routes to market. Each of these areas
1s adcitive and highly complementary, together they offer a route
to building a bigger and more profitable business

Qur strengths

Sky s success in exploiting the growth apportunity that lles ahgad
rests on our unigue combination of strengths i three areas content
innovation and custormers These are areas in which Sky has developed
significant capatalittes which are hard toreplicate

In content, we have made huge strides in recent years to Increase

the range and gquality of the programmes we put on screen, nght
across our channel portfolio We have developed our suite of
entertainment channels, strengthened our relationships with the
major movie studios and signed new rights deals in sport to expand
ourofferng In particular this year we have increased our investment
Inoriginal Batish programming with a fecus on comedy and drama

This 1s because we know that our ability to offer the best and broadest
range of content for the whale household is a fundamentai advantage
In an environment where customers have more choices than ever before

Sky's ability to innovate across multiple technologies allows us to buld
an the strength of our content and take our business INto new areas
Our focus in the last year has been accelerating the take-up and usage
of new connected TV services Connecting customers’ Sky+tHD boxes
to broadband opens up a whaole range of new on demand services
which allow customers to choose how when and where they watch
that content. Services ke NOW TV and Sky Store delivered over the
internat enable us to extend our businass INto new areas reaching
customers that may not otherwise have taken Sky and opering up new
revenue opporturuties We have also grown our home commurnications
business to become Britain s second-biggest broadband prowder

Our strengths In content and innovation are only refevant because
they matter to qustomers And It 1s because we combine them with
a deep understanding of customer needs that we are able to bring
together home entertainment and communications betzer than
anyone else

We have established direct long-term relatonships with 11.5 mithon
households across Britain and Ireland These relationships mean

we know what our customers want and enable us to stay focused

on prowding the services that best meet their needs The strength
of our brand and the capability that we have developed means we
can bnng products to market swiftly and at scale And everything we
do s supported by best-in-class customer service As the connected
home becomes more established and consumers are faced with

an increasing array of choices servnce delivery has become amore
important differentiator than ever before Sky's expertise s a source
of competitive advantage

The acquisition of Sky Itaha and a 57 4% stake in Sky Deutschland

will give us a platform to take the strengths we have developedin the
UK and Ireland and apply them across a broader field of opportunity
The enlarged business wili have significantly expanded headrgom for
growth, bringing together best-in-class capabilties and expenence
from all three businesses to serve customers better accelerate
innovation and grow faster

How we do business

Underpinning our strengths in content, nnovation and customers
15 our desire to build a business that is durable for the long term

To achieve sustainable success we know that how we do business
15 as (mportant as what we do This 1s at the heart of our Believe in
Retter ethos a commitment to constant renewal and improvement
i everything we de

Investment in our people 1s fundamental to the creation of a durable
business At Sky we support trairing and development for all of our
people and stnve to create a culture where they can do therr best
work and fulfil thetr potential

We also understand that we need to be wlling to look beyond the
delivery of short-term results to consider the impact that we have on
the wider commurities 1n which we live and work We calt this seeing
the bigger picture

As a successful company we make a significant and growing economic
and secial contribution to Brtan and Irefand supporting thousands
of jobs and investing billions in the creative industnes and sport

We are commutted to behaving responsibly in all that we do and

our high ethical soaal and environmental standards underpin the
decisions that we take every day

But we also know that we have the opportunity to use our posibion

as a leading media and communicattons company to reach beyend our
bustness to make a positive mpact on society This s why we launched
Sky Academy in November 2013 a unique set of inibatives that uses
the power of TV ¢reatwity and sport to inspire young people and help
them reach therr potental Bringing together established programmes
with a senes of iniiatives where we re just getting going. we feel very
exoted about how Sky Academy will be able to make a difference to
young pecple s lives

08 Brush Sky Broadcasting Group pke
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Our performance

The success of our strategy 1s reflected i the strong performance of
the business gver the past year Against a challenging economic and
competitive backdrop we added 23% more products than the pror
year and achieved tha highest rate of customar growth for three
years (excluding the acquired O2 customers and prodyct base)

Strang demand across the board transtated to a 7% ncrease in
revenue (excluding ESPN) Combined with a continued focus on
operating efficiency this meant we ended a year of investment

with earnings per share flat year on year This 1s an excellent result

In a period whera we absorbed a one-off step up in Premier League
costs and invested to accelerate take-up of new connected senaces
and it reflects the strength of the underlying business

In hight of this performance the Board has proposed a dividend
of 320 pence an increase of 7% on the prior year and the tenth
consecutive year of growth

We centinued to reap the benefits of our broadly-based approach
to growth as more people chose to come to Sky and take more of our
products We added a total of 31 milion new paid-for subscription
products over the 12 months to take our total base of subscription
products past 34 millon AL the same time, we added 342000 new
customers to reach 1.5 million reflecting a contuinuing appette to
switch services from other providers to Sky At the end of the year
37% of our customers tack all three of TV, broadband and telephony
from Sky extending our lead as Britain s favourite triple-play provider

Gome of Thrones bacame the hghest-rating show ever an Sky Atlantic.

Wa saw a particularly good performance in TV adding twice as many
new customers as last year This growth was underpinned by the
qualty and range of content we offer the who'e family This is our
biggest year in entertainment yet as we target a spend of £600 milion
by the end of 2014 on original British programmes Highlights from

the past 12 months included Anglo-French cnme drama The Tunnef

a co-production with Canal Plus, and Penny Dreadful, a psychological
thniller produced by Cscar winner Sam Mendes

We also strengthened our relationship with some of the world s
leading content producers signing major new partnerships with

ITV and HBO and renewing a multi-year movies agreement with
Paramount thereby increasing our range of exclusive content
Meanwtile Sky Sports enjoyed its highest share of viewing for seven
years with the best-ever Premier League season in terms of audiences
while at the same time strengthening its offenng for the future with
30 new sports rights agreements

Strategic report - Chief Executne's staternent.

- £7.6bn
o 34.8m
Customers ) 1 1 . S"m

Meanwhile our Investment to accelerate take-up and usage of our
connected TV service delivered excellent results, increasing the value
we offer to customers and opening Up new sources of revenue

Over the year the total number of connected Sky+HD boxes more
than doubled to 5 7 milion eguivaient te 57000 new households
being connected every week This means that more than S0% of Ty
customers were connected at the end of June making Sky Britains
most popular connected TV platform

Thes explosive growth has transformed the viewing expenence

Cn Demand downloads grew threefold over the year as customers
respanded to greater lexibiity and choice Qur expanded Pox Sets
senvice proved particularly popular with viewing to top titles like

24 and Game of Thrones up fourfold in Q4.

At the same time, the number of househaolds registered for Sky Go our
mobile TV servce grew19% to 5 Smillon helping push viewng higures
to new highs We saw particularly streng growth in entertainment

with entertanment and mowes accounting for two-thirds of all viewing
to Sky Go at the end of the year

Through all this we continued to extend our lead in customer service
Initiatives hike bringing our entire engineer workforce in-house and the
rall-eut of cur One Service operatung model, where we join up different
elements of the service experience more effectively has helped deliver
record levals of customer satisfaction As a result Sky again earned
the tap ranking from Ofcom far quality of service by a prowider of TV
broadband and home phone senaces

Underpinning everything we achieved operationally was our continued
work to reach beyond our business and make a positive impact on the
wider community We launched Sky Academy in November and were
delighted that aver 105 000 young peaple toak part w a Sky Acadetmy
initiative dunng the year

Of course rnone of what we do would be possible without the dedication
and hard work of our people They are vital to our success and | would
Iike to thank each and every one of thern for their contnbution in the
last 12 months

With their continued support the outlook for the business is very
positive Our strategy is delivering and there 1s a broad and growing
market opporturity that Sky with our unique combination of
strengths 1s best placed to take advantage of Our track record

of success in Bntain and Ireland 1s the starting point as we expand
into Europe The opportunitys substantial and this is good news
for our people, good for customers and good for our shareholders

Briush Sky Broadcasung Group ple 09
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Strategh report - Our performance

Our performance

Operational key performance indicators

Total products

Retall customers

20 HENEE oo

2013 [f" eI i
2012 T

Descriptron

Total products s defined as the total of
ahpald for subsenption products taken
by our customers and Inchides TV HD
Multiscreen, Sky Go Extra Broadbanc

316m
28 4m

Analysis

A key elemant of our strategyis to
encourage rew customers to take
multiple products when jomng and to
sell mere products to exsting cUSTOMers

20 NN e

o3 &
012 N

Descnption

Aarstomer s defined as a subsaiber to
one of our TV packages or starkialooe
home commumcations serices

12m
1G6m

Analysis

Anmgortant part of our strategy s
to continue adding new CuSTOMers.

1n 200 we added a total of 342,000
rewcustomers 33% more than the

Telephony and Line Rental 12014 we added 31 milion products prof year {excluding the acguired 02
23% more than the prior year (excluding customer base) and the highest rate
the acquired O2 custamer base). of growth i three years
Churn Content Sky channel distnibution
0 204 NN
203 [T SN 141m
10 9% 10.8% T ET—
2014 N 2013 . 0] 2012 - 140m
Description Analysis Description Analysis

Churn represents the nurmber of total
customens over a givan period who
teerrunated ther subscnptions kat

of former customers who reinstated
their subserption (within 12 months of
terminating therr ongmal subscription)
expressed as an annualsed percentage
of total pvgrage customers

Churnis 8 good tneasure of customer
satisfaction which 1s a key driver

of value for our business Churm for
the year 2004 was stable at 10 9%

Innovation Connected Sky+HD box and Sky Go customers

The rumbar of househalds in the UK
and Ireland that have access to Sky
pay channels included as part of ther
pay TV subscription sennce whether
that s directly purchased from Sky
or from another operates to whom
Skywholesales its channels

Totalreach of Sky channels 1s an
inpartant measure because broad
distnbution drives revenue growth
oppar tunities for the Group

The Group rwreased the 1otalreach
of its pay channels by 4% in 2012

Customers Customer service satisfacuon {NPS)

2004 57m
W 46m
2013 L. i 27m
F 35m
22 L 10m

M Sky Go customers

Description

A tormectad SkytHD box 13 one that s
connegted to the internet and therefore
has access ta Sky's full On Demand
subscription and transactional services
Sky Go households are those that have
registered to use the Sky Go sanace

@ Connected Sky+HD box

Analysis

Innovation across multiple technologres
enables the Group to expang Into new
areas, develop new revenue streams
and expioi adjacent sectors kn 2014

we connected a further 3 mitlion SkytHD
boxes and registered 1milhon rmare
homes for Sky Go

2014 N 24
——
2013 1 e 13

Descnption

Net Promoter Score (NPS}is &
standardised measuré of customer
loyalty andd satisfaction Asurvey

1& sent to the customer following a
contAct centre nteraction with Sky
NPS s calcelated by subtracung
the percentage of Detractors from
the percentage of Promoters

Analysis

Mamntaning a direct and long-term
refationship with customers 1s
fundamental to the success of our
busness We believe customer service
delkvery 1s anmportant differentiator
Qur NPS for service calls has dramatically
wrproved gver the last three years

10 Briuish Sky Broadcasting Group plc
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Bigger Picture Sky Academy paruicipation

People Employee engagement

Strategic report - Qur performance

- 105,000

Descniption

Sky Acadery is a groundbreaking set
of Initiatives that use the power of
TV creatvity and sport toinspire
young pecple and give them the
skills ard confidence to succeed

n a changing werid

Analysis

Sky Academy tracks the numbesr of
young people taking part in Sky Academy
irutiatives We have made a strong stare
towards our target of reaching up to

one milion young people by 2020

we have over 40 iIndependently assured key performance indcators that
weuse ta measura our sustainability perfarmance These can be found at

sky com/inggerpucture

o 030

Sky engagement

Description

Ta measure employee engagement

we undertake aninternal survey of

our employees and benchmark their
answers externally As part of abroad
array of tophes surveyed amployeas are
asked a series of questions designed
ta quantify engagement,

Financial key performance indicators

Adjusted revenue'

Adjusted operating profit!

208 3%

Natisnal benchmark

Analysis

Emplayee engagement s & good
indicator of how our employaes feel
about the Company As well as reaching
a hugh performance indicator for
employeda engagement, we have
Improved from 2012 and outperformed
anindependent external benchmark
of other blue ¢tip companies.

Descripuon

Adjusted revenua includes revenue
From retail subscnption, wholesale
subsaription, advertrsing and
nstallavon, hardware and sarvce

Adjusted EPS'

£7617m
£7235m
£6791m

Analysis

Adjusted revenus 15 a key measure
of how the Group s delivenng on
1ts strategy to grow the business
in 2014 adjusted revenue grew by
5% with good growth in both retail
and commercial operations
Excuding ESPN adjusted reverwe
grex by 7%

201+ I
203 LT LR

202 Y

Description

Adjustad operating profit is a measura
of the profit gerierated by the business
from iLs revenues and excludes iterns
that may distort comparability from.
year Lo yaar

Total shareholder return

wde

E1260m
£1330m
E£1223m

Analysis

Adjusted operating profit s a key
rmeasure of the underinng business
performance in 2014 adjusted operating
profit was dewn by 5% on the previous.
year as the Group absorbed an increase
inthe cost of Premier Leagua football
rights the consohidation of the acquired
02 consumer broadband and fixed lne
business and gur planned investment
(NConnacted services

- 00.0p

Descnption

Adjusted basic EPS 15 the profit after
tax for tha year excluding agjusting
items and related tax effects dmded
by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares

203 60 Op
20 50 8p

Analysis

Adjussted bask EPS provides a
measure of shareholder return that
15 comparable over time The Group
generated the same garnings as
last year despite making several
nvestments for growth and
absortnng the Premier League cost
increase In the current financial year

1 Arecenahation of statutory to adjusted measures | shown on page 139

5YrCAGR 1. . v 14%

1¥r CAGR
WESkyS  H FTSE 100

Descreption
Total shareholder return (TSR}

represents the cange mvalus of a share

held for 2 12-month period to 30 June
assuming that dvidends are renvested
1o purchase additional shares at the

close price appiicable on the ex dvidend

date The value of the share 15 based on
thae averaga share price guer the threg
months prier 1o 30 June Thechart
above llustrates the TSR performance
for the 12 menths to 30 June 2014

ang an average annual performance
compounded over five years to

30 Jure 2014

} 9%

Analysis

TSRrepresents a comparable measure
of shareholder return over time

BSKyB shares outperformed the

FTSE 100 index by 3 percentage points
n the year to 30 Juna 2014 and by

4 percentage points over five years.
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Digging in
The Tunrel our gnpping cnme
drama from the makers of
Broadchurch, became Sky Atlantics
highest-performing onginal series
when it ared in the autumn A

co-production with Frances
CANAL+ and based on Danish

series The Bridge, the story followed
the uneasy relationship between
detectives from the UK and France
as they investigate the discovery
of the body of a prominent French
pohiictan in the Channe! Tunnet

Cniucally acdzmed and aratings
success the series was agreat
example of the way that we present
our content to work across al
platforms The series peaked at one

mihion viewers on linear TVbut
the same number again watched
1t On Demand and on Sky Go

The Turirelwas just one example
of our increased commitment

to drama In all we screened
more than 50 hours of our own
commissioned drama in the year
over 60% merethan the previous
year There 1s much more to come
next year with our largest

Strategic report - Content

comrmission to date Fortitude

due to airon Sky Atlantic in 2015
Starnng Michael Gamben Sophie
Grébel and Stanley Tuca Fortitude
shows gur ambition in drama

We are excited abaut its potential
both for our customers at home
and forviewers around the

world aswe sell it on to other
breadcasters wa our International
distnbubion business Sky Vision

Briush Sky Broadcasting Groupplc 13
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Content

(continued)

The single biggest reason that
customers choose to take Sky is
for a better choice of TV In ths,
our biggest year of content yet,
Sky’s on-screen offering Is larger,
more diverse and of a higher
qguality than ever before

Unbelievable, Jeff

Sky Sports set new records for hve Premier League footballin the

wWe invest mare on screen than anyone else in Britain and Ireland

- mere than £2 6 billon this year - with the aim of offering the best

and broadest range of programming for everyone in the family Abig
part of this strategy in recent years has been about building out our Sky
entertanment channels bringing to them the same sense of ambibon
that has been so fundarnental to our success In sport, movies and news

We have made huge strides expanding our portfolio of entertainment
channels strengthening the capability of our team and significantly
mcreasing our investment inonginal production By the end of calendar
year 2014 we will have spent £600 milion on home-grown Brtish
programming across our channels an increase of more than 50% over
three years

As part of this drive to Increase investment in onginal Briush commissions
we have put, a particular focus on drama Since last July we have
sereened mare than 60 hours of new drama programming across our
four entertainment channels - Sky 1 Sky Atlantic Sky Living and Sky Arts

matches than ever before - 116 ive | And the exatement didnt stop

201314 season, with more fans enjoying our unnvalled coverage
than ever before at home oronthe go

As the most exating seasonin
recent years came toits thnling
conclusion Sky Sports was the one
place to watch the title race unfold
In the final weeks of the season
Sky Sports was the cnly
broadeaster to show games
featuring the top four sides -

Manchester Gty Liverpool Arsenal
and Chelsea - and was the exclusive
Irva venue for all three matches on
the finalday as Manchester City
chnched the title

Across the season average Premier
League audiences on Sky Sports
were up 7% as we showed maore

fixtures Including 49 of the S0 most
watched Premier League matches

Sky Sports enhanced its coverage
by adding Liverpool legend Jlamie
Carragher tots outstanding
lne-up of experts and laurching
new shows including Saturday
Night Football

there The football season was
followed by another busy summer
on Sky Sperts induding England
cricket the USPGAGolf andthe
Ryder Cup every Formula | weekend
and US Open tennis There s hardly
ume to take a breath before the
start of the new season

14  Bntish Sky Broadcasting Group ple
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Let’s work
together

At Sky we re proud of the many
strong partnerships that we've
developed over the past 25
years Working closely with other
content businesses, whether
broadcasters, nghts holders or
content creators, has been
crucial to our success right from
the very start, helping us to bring
aur customers the very best
programmuing from around the
world Channels like National
Geographic, History and Discovery
broaden cur offenng and are
hugely valued by custemers

Strategic report - Contant

This year we took our relationship
with some of the world s leading
cantent creators to another level
In January, we annaunced a broad
new partnership with ITV, gving
Sky customers unnvalled access
to [TV programming This has
incfuded the launch of a brand
new pay channel TV Encore
dedicated to drama and exclusive
initially to Sky

We also extended our partnersinp
with HBO Buldding on the success
of Sky Atlantic Sky will remain the
exclusive home of HBO In Britain
and Ireland untif 2020 making

1t the only place to enjoy new
series of global huts such as

True Detective and Girls or
much-anticipated new shows ke
Sihicon Valley and The Leftovers
Significantly the new agreement

will also see Sky and HBO
co-produce major new anematic
drama senes

Our deal with HBO 15 just one of a
grewing number of co-production
partnerships that we are bullding.
We know that if we want to deliver
the best content from around the
world we can'tdo that alone Thats
why we worked with Showtime on

and with NBC Universal on Oracuta
starrning Jonathan Rhys Meyers
And it swhy we are partnenng
with FX Networks to develop
brand new post watershed
comedy for audiences on both
sides of the Atlantic,

The customer response has been very positive We have had our best
year of TV growth in three years adding mora than a quarter of a million
new TV customers since July 213 AL the same time Sky1 Sky Atlantic
and Sky Living accaunt for three of the top four slots in customers
ranking of must-have pay TV channels and Sky Arts has developed
areputation for having some of the best arts programmes on TV

Because our channels have distinct and complementary identities

we are able to offer a diverse range of programming to surt the who'e
famity Successful shows this year range from Karl Pilkington s factual
entertainment series The Moaning of Life which attracted 2 5 rrillion
viewers to Its opening episode on Sky 1 to the critically-accdamed
Victonan thriller Penny Dreadful Created by three-time Oscar® nominee
John Logan and co-produced with Showtime for Sky Atlantic, 1t notched
up 1 5 millon wiewers for its opening episode

our Victonan thrller Penny Dreadful

Cur commitment to bringing our customers new and distinctive content
extends to our acquired programming, where we continue to offer many

of the biggest and most talked about US shows Sky Living's The Blackhst,
starring James Spader was one of the stand-out hits of the year launching
with an audience of 1 7 millon viewers Meanwhile the fourth series of the
epic Game of Thrones became the highest-rating show ever on Sky Atlantic
with 2 2mlionviewers for the first episode alone

The success of Game of Thrones illustrates how our investment To grow
take-up and usage of new connected TV services 1s transforming the
viewing experience, with customers taking advantage of the flexibility
towatch therr favourite programmes when and where they choose

Ir the run up te the launch of senes 4 Series 1-3 of Game of Thrones
becarne our most downloaded box set ever

British Sky Broadcasting Groupplc 15
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Content

(continued)

Sky Movies 1s another area where the benefits of our connected

TV strategy have been transformauonal Two-thirds of Sky Movies
custamers had a connected box at the end of the year helping to
increase On Demand views on Sky Mavies by 60% on the prior year
Owar the Chnstmas period Sky Movies customers downloaded

twice as many films as the previous year This was helped in part

by a dedicated Chnstmas Movies On Demand section complementing
the return of the Sky Mowies Chnstmas pop-up thannel

We also took steps to strengthen the range and quality of titles
available on Sky Mowies with the renewal of our output deal with
Paramount which gives us exclusive nghts across all platforms to
blockbusters like Noah and Anchorman 2 This means that we have
secured new agreements with five of the six major Hollywood studios
in the last two years

Sky Sports had another great year, enjoying its highest audience share
In séven years We had an outstanding football season thanks to one
of the most exciting Premier Leagues In recent times and a great end

to the Football League Thus performance was boosted by sports
customers choosing Sky Go towatch matches on the move We recorded
the three biggest-ever Sky Go audiences i the year including a peak

of 379000 viewers for Manchester City against Chelsea in February

As the foothall season ended Sky Sports customers could stll look
forward to an incredible summer of Iive encket rugby and Formula One
with the Ryder Cup ~ the tenth ta be shown live on Sky — coming in
September Sports customers can also now enjoy a brand new channel
Sky Sports 5 which will screen up to 600 ive European football matches
over tha 2014/15 season

Meanwhile we continued to broaden the Sky Sports offenng, signing
30 nghts deals over the course of the last 12 months This indudes new
deals for IPL cricket Super League Rugby, Topl4 Rughy, Gaelic Athletic
Association and the Masters and PGA Tour golf all of which gives us
certainty over 90% of our sports costs through to 20M6

And the Winner is...?

We all know that winning i1sn t everything and we use lots of measures at Sky to assess
our perfermance But, it’s stll great to know that the effort and investment we've put
into ereating world-dass content has been recogrised and celebrated by our peers

Three BAFTA TV Award wins Intemational Emmy*
* A Leaque of therr Own, * Moorie Boy Best Comedy
S:ts;(é:git:nd Comedy Three Royal Television
Sowety Awards
+ David Attenboroughs Natural + Game of Fhrones Best
g istory M“F””m }:fme 30 International Programme
pecalist Factual = SkySports coverage of
+ Sky Sports coverage of last tast year's Ashes
year's Ashes Best Sport
and Live Event Best Sports Presenter
Gary Neville

Sports Industry Awards
» SkySports Digital Media,
Digital Platform of the Year

Broadcast Awards

= Sky Sports Ryder Cup coverage
Best Sports Programme

+ ATouchof Cloth If
Best Comedy Programme

* A Young Doctor s Notebook, Best
Multichannel Programme

Bntish Broadcasting Press Awards
+ The Tuninef Best Multichanne|
Programme

Broadcast Digital Awards
+ Brodley Wiggins A Yeor in Yellow
Mast Popular Factual
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The Chancellor George Osbome, s quizzed by readers of childrens newspaper First News in an nterview for Sky News

Twenty-five years after gving Britamnits first taste of 24-hour roling
news Sky News has lost none of 1ts appetite for innovation The launch
of Sky News an Catch Up TV in May 1s just the latest example of the

way that Sky News has embraced new technology to enable customers
to curate the news In the way that they want it Sky News mobile
applications have been downloaded over 10 mullion times whie Sky News
foriPhone has been named in Apple s top ten free UK apps of all tme

All this has helped Sky News become the European news channel of
choice according to the 2014 European Medra and Marketing Survey

As we Increase our investment on screen, It s become Increasingly
important that we monetse that content effectively One of the ways
we have done that s by increasing the distnbution of our content across
the marketplace

in October we took a significant step forward with the launch of the
Entertainment Month Pass on our over-the-top streaming service
NOW TV This offers a simple contract-free way to access ten of the
top subscenpuon TV channels incuding Sky 1 Sky Atlantic isney and
Discovery allowing customers to stream episodes of the latest senes
live and on demand an a pay-as-you go bass

We also extended our content distribution through a senes of new
wholesale agreements These included a major new five-year channel
distnbution deal wath Virgin Media gving Virgin customers an additional
selectron of HD channefs more content on the go and access to the Sky
Sports and Sky Movies apps In addition we agreed a new distnibution
deal with TalkTalk which significantly extends the take-up of our basic
channels We also added the NOW Ty Sports Day Pass to TalkTalk s
Youview platform

British Sky Broadcasung Groupple 17
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Guiding the way

If getung customers connected to
On Demand was our first prionty
for the year helping them to enjoy
the full range of services on offer
was the next The launch of the
new home page on our Electronic
Programme Gurde (EPG) In

the spring was a crucial step

to achleving that.

For the very first time we moved
away from inearviewing as the
default option in order to showcase
all our On Demand content

The new EPG gives Box Sets Catch
Up and Sky Store much greater
visibility encouraging customers

to engage with the full breadth

of content now available to them

Tha new EPG also increases the
prominence of our new search
functionaldy which delwers
integrated search resuits across
knear and On Cemand making

It much easter for customers to
find the programme that they
are looking for

It s early days but the initial
response fromcustormers has been
very strong with On Demand
downloads higher and customer
satisfaction up

Strategic report -innovation

And there s more to come Our next
software update later this year wilf
enable us to dynamicalty change
the home page to do things like
promoting the launch of a new
show or film For the first e

well also be able to make
recommendations on programmes
that customers might Iike to watch
based onwhat they are choosing
to record on their planner

British Sky Broadcasting Group pic
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Innovation

(continued)

Sky’s ability to innovate across multiple
technologies allows us to provide
customers with the very best viewing
expenence, wherever and whenever they
want It 1s also enabling us to take our
business Into new areas, opening up new
revenues In emerging segments of the
market and exploiting adjacent sectors

Great TV,
NOW

This year NOW TV changed the gamen smart TVs with the launch
of the new NOW TV Box. Available for just £9 93 this compact and
easy-to-use box provides alow-cost, low-commitment way for
customers to start streamung programming from the internet
direct to thewr TV And it s a brlliantly simple way for Sky to attract
new customers in the 13 nulbon homes yet to pay for TV

We have a proven track record of harnessing the latest technology and
drnving new trends in TV viewang, such as gving customers more control
with Sky+ or a step change 1n picture qualty with High Defirition This year
we built en that track record by iInvesting te accelerate the take-up and
usage of cur new connected TV services. Our aim 1s to put Sky at the
heart of the connected household® meeting customers growing desire

to consume centent on thetr own terms

Akey focus has been getung customers connected In thelast 12 months
we have connected 3 million Sky+HD boxes to broadband equivalent to
57000 new households every week This explosive growth means that
maore than half of our 107 milien Sky TV customers now have access

to the full range of On Demand services This 1s mare than double the
number In the prior year and makes Sky Britain and treland s most

popular connected TV platform

The NOW TV Box canbeup

and running 1n minutes Once
connected homes get instant
access to the full NOW TV
expenence which includes Sky
Sports and Sky Movies as well
as ahuge range of Catch Up TV
from popular online services ke
BBC iPlayer 40D and ITV Player
InOctober we extended the
range of content svallable on
NOW TV wath the launch of the
Entertainment Month Pass This
prowvides customers with instant
access to ten of the top pay TV

channels such as Sky 1 Sky Atlantic,
Disney and Discavery, making more
of the best TV avallable to anyone
with a connected dewice

Itsjust one way that NOW TV

is appealing to a new group of
customers - pecple who love the
quality of Sky content but want
amore flexible approach than
the fult-service Sky subscription
NOW TV 15 also avalable on a broad
range of internet-connected
devices that includes tablets

PCs and consoles with P54 being
added to the list thts summer
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Everything we see tells us that customers love the benefits that come with
the connected box Connected customers can access a much richer range
of content including Britains biggest Catch Up TV service and Box Sets of
hit series like Game of Thranes Stella Prison Break Mad Dogs and 24 With
On Demand usage up more than threafold in the last year the impact on
the viewing expenence has been transformational Bwdence shows that
connected TV customers are watching more TV - an average of 20 minutes
more per day - as they respond to the greater choice of content avallable
and the greater flexibility over how they wateh They are also more satisfied,
more hikely to stay with Sky and more likely to recommend Sky

More customers than ever before are also choosing our mabile TV sernce
Sky Go towatch content both in and out of the home The number of
households registered for Sky Go rose by a fifth over the year to 5 5 mllion
helped by the addition of 22 new channels and the launch of the serice on
more devices induding Android tablets We ended the year with more than
1 million customers takung Sky Go Extra our paid-for service which offers the
ability to watch on more devices and download content to watch offitne

As well as increasing the value that customers get from their Sky
subscription the new connected TV services are opening up new revenue
opportunities for the business With our expanded Box Sets offering
ncluded within our HD package we have seen more and more customers
upgrading to HD while revenues from movie rentals via Sky Store have
doubled in the year In the spring. we alsa launched our Buy & Keep service
enabling customers to buy a film from Sky Store and download i to keep
on their set-top box, as well as receiving a DVD in the post It s earty days
but we are very excited about the opportunity for Sky to enter the
purchase segment of the fitm market estimated tobe worth £16 billion
ayearin the UK

For the first time, we are using Innovation to provide Sky for everyone

Wae are addressing the emerging paylight segment n the marketplace

by rolling out our over-the-top streaming service NOW TV This is proving
an effective new way of growing our TV customers among the i3 million
homes that don t yet take a pay TV service Amang new developments this
year, the launch of the new NOW TV Box and our monthly Entertainment
Pass have attracted increasing numbers of customers to the service

Of course our success in accelerating take up and usage of connected

TV services has been helped by our strength in home communications
Cantinued growth in this area meant we surpassed 5 milhon broadband
customers in the year maintaining our lead as Bntams favounte triple-play
provider In all we sold 1 3 millon home communications products over the
12 months as customers' appetite to switch from other providers to save
money with Sky remamed strong We also successfully ntegrated the 02
broadband customers we acquired In April 2013

We know customers like our market-leading quality and value proposition
and we continue to find new ways to give them more value and mprove
the quality of the communications product This year for example we
introduced a WiFi booster for broadivand customers to help them make
the most of their servce throughout their home With more than 60%

of our customer base yet to take afl three of TV telephony and broadband
from Sky there s plenty more growth to come

Targeting

Strategic report - Innovation

newrevenue

Sky s abiity toinnovate adds value to our content and changes
the viewing expenence for customers. It s also enabling us to
open up new revenue opportunities by extending our business
into adjacent sectors Sky AdSmart, cur new targeted advertising
service, is a great example of the way in which we are opening

up markets that we've been unable to reach untl now

Launched at the start of 2014
Sky AdSmart enables advertisers
to target their campaigns more
accurately by tatoring what s
shownin TV ad breaks according
to ahousehold s profile and
Iocation Indoingso ts
Increasing the size of our
advertising opportunity by
attracting new brands to
advertise on Sky This iIncludes
local businesses that may have
concluded TV advertising wasn t
for them and brands that have
previcusty tned TV but left.

In just six months almost 600
advertising campalgns have
been run across 180 advertisers
of which 15% are new to TV and
68% are new to Sky This iIndudes
brands like Audi, Dyson Lege
Prime Location and Chester Zoo

Qur new strategic partnership
with Johnston Press further
strengthens the Sky AdSmart
offenng by enabling locat
companies to create and
delver campaigns that
combine Johnston s

regional pnnt titles with

TV adverusing focused

on speafic local markets

Sky AdSmart is another

first for Sky - the first
broadcasterin Eurcpe to
introduce targeted advertising
- andt s already been
recognised winning Best
Technology and Best Innovation
at the MediaTel Connected
Consumer Awards and
Achigvement in Adverusing at
the Connected TV World Summit.
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Sky Broadband Shield

As the UKs second largest broadband provider, we take

our responsibilities to our customers extremely seriousty
We waant them to enjoy the best of what the internet of fers
while grving them the ability to enjoy it in a safe environment

The launch in November 2013 of
Sky Broadband Shieldwas abig
step forward in achieving this

aim Free te all Sky Broadband
customers Broadband Shreldis a
brilhantly simple tool which enables
customers to filter website content
across allinternet-connected
devices in the home gning parents
n particular greater control over
how their children use the web

Customers can filter websites
by age-bandings similar to
mowe classifications or exclude
sites that contain pernography
or other categones of content
identified by customersasa
potental cause for concem

At the moment, Sky Broadband
customers are asked to make
an active chaice about the

filters when gong online with
Sky for the first tme or when
they upgrade theirr router

Later this year we will ensure
that all remaining customers
will have madea choice about
whether or not to apply
whote-home filters Even those
homes without children can
benefit as Sky Broadband
Shield also helps provide
protection against phushing
sites and maliious websites
contanIng viruses

We think that using technology
In this way makes a real
difference to our customers

as theylook to protect theyr
farmity However we also know
that technology doesnt
provide all the answers which
15 why we've joined forces with
the other leading ISPs to launch
acampaign called Internet
Matters designed to promote
awareness of internet safety
For further information go to
internetmatters org
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(continued)

Our direct, long-term relationships

with over 115 million households across
Britain and Ireland are fundamental

to the success of our business
Customers value what we offer and
trust Sky to keep meeting their needs,
from the content we put on screen to
the products that we put in their hands

As the connected home becomes more established and customers are
faced with ever-greater choice of products and providers we believe

that service delivery Is becorming an increasingly important differentiator
The strength of the Sky brand in home entertainment and communications
and the capatility that we have developed In the past 25 years means

that we are able to bring new products to market quickly and at scale
supperted by best-in-class customer senace This is a great source of
competitive advantage

We understand the value of good customer service and have continued
to rasse the barin this area Much of our focus this year has been on
simplifying the customer expenence Our ‘One Serwice model was
developed to join up different elernents of the sernce expenence

more effectively Piloted lastyear One Service puts customers straight
through to an expert agent who canmanage the case from start to

finish coordinating directly with our engineers on tha ground This year
we have been steadily relling out ‘One Service across our contact centras,
50 that it now covers around 20% of allinbound calls

As part of our move towards One Service we brought a further 740
engineers to Skyin October This means that Sky people now complete
almost all UK service visits and installatons gwing us greater control over
the customer expenence and helping us to drnive continued improvement

In October 2013 we expanded our service delivery capabnlity by
bringing in house 740 engineers - the people who install and service
Sky customers in-home equipment The transfer of the engineers
and other key personnel from our outsource partner AVC meant

we were able to create one integrated nationwide tearm within Sky
of around 3,000 engineers This has had animmediate positive
tnpact on our customer service operation

Hawing one integrated team all
working from the same systems
and under the same terms helps
us to deliver a consistent level

of service to all customers every
day And It 5 ot just about fang
faults Allour engineers spend six
days a year ensunng they are up
to speed with the latest products
and developrments This means.
that they can take the time when
they are in homes tc show the

customer arcund all the content
and services they can get from
their subscnption For example
using IPads engineers are now
able to demonstrate the benefits
of Sky Go - available at no

extra cost to all Sky customers
This helps us ensure that our
wustorners get the best value
from their subsenption, improving
sattsfaction and increasing layalty

Getting closer to customers
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We are alse investing more than £20 milllan a year in tranung t6 ensure
that our people have the nght tools and skills to do their jobs well

After therr imtial trarung, all our call centre staff now spend an average
of one day a month learning about new developments and building their
expertise of Sky products so that more of our customers get thew 1ssues
resoclved inone call

Theimpact on the customer expanence has been significant According to
our own internal performance measures customer satisfaction 1s at record
levels Meanwhile we have retained our service leadershup in the triple-play
sector ranking number one in this year s Ofecom survey, with the highest
satisfaction scores for customer service We have also won recogrution
from cansumer group uSwitch winning four awards inall including Britatn s
best tnple-play provider

Help yourself

One of the big shifts in our business has been the growang number of
customers that want to help themsetves when they have a problem
or guery about their service We'veresponded to this by developing
and increasing the range of customer help services we offer online

Qver the last year, we have
prowded mare information and

for customers with disabilities
on how to get the most out

Strategic report - Customers

Qf course equally important to the delivery of a good customer experience
1s making sure we are doing everything we can to prevent things going
wreng Oneof the ways we are achieving this Is by contiuing to drive
penetration of our most reliable Sky+HD box which was in 83% of homes
at the end of June, versus 75% 1N the pnor year Combined with the growing
populanty of our online self-help function this has led to a significant
dechne in the number of calls we recewve from customers and the number
of engineer visits we need to make Over the last four years both have
fallen by more than a third despite the continued growth of our customer
and product base

Servi

ithout
limit
Our home communications business 1s a great example of the way In
which we Innovate and work hard to offer our customers great value
We have invested heavily 10 our network, which now serves more than
90% of UK homes And seven years after we launched, customers’
appetite to switch from other prowiders to save moneywth Sky
remains strong we are number two in the broadband market and 37%

of our customers take the tnple play of TV phane and breadband
from Sky

To make sure we give customers
great value we have arange

of products to suit all needs
and budgets Sky Broadband
Unlimitedis deal for surfing
and downloading music and
movies Sky Fibre Unlimited with
download speeds of up te 38Mb
15 perfect for families who have

So that s why our unhimited
services are genwnely unlmited
with no usage limits and access
te over 20 000 Sky WiFi hotspots
around the country - great

news for our milhons of Sky Go
customers We continue to
develop cur kit to make sure
everything s easy to use and

tools to help customers to resolve

many of the common probtems
that anse By cutting out the
rmuddle man were empowering
the customer Butit s also saving
us money reducing the number

of our services through our
bespoke Accessitility website

Qur enhne helpwsits kave
doubled over two years to more
than 1 2 million visits a week
This summer we are taking

of calls to our contact centres
and enswring that the tme that
our service teams spend with
customers s focused on helping
those with more serious 15sues
wa also provide speafic guidance

anctherimpartant step forward
with the launch of a dedicated
customer service smartphone
app making all of our help topics
even easler to access

lots of devices on the go at once
It means more online games

the ability to stream movies as
well as non-stop music playlists
We also have Sky Broadband Lite
for peoplewho just occasionally
want to browse the intemet and
check a fewemarls

We know that to make the most
of the connected home you need
a great broadband service

customers can get the best
performance o we have designed
routers that customers can install
themselves, and wireless boosters
that extend the WiFi signal
further With more than 5 mithon
of ourcustomers yet to swtch
their home communications
service to Sky there is plenty
more room to grow

British Sky Broadcasting Group pic
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Sky Academy

Awhole generation has been born since Skylaunched in 1989
They and their famtlies are the bedrock of our business So, in our
25th anniversary year, we deaded to make a step change to the
support that we give young peocple across Britaln and ireland

This 15 a role that we are well
placed ta play The nature of our
business spanning TV sport

and technology 1s a gooa fit with
young people and we know the
Sky brand rescnates strongly
with them As amajor employer
we understand that young
people need more than academic
gualifications to reach their
potential - it s also about things
like team work, self-confidence
and self-awareness We want

to play our partin ghang young
people the help and opportunities
they need tosucceed Ina
changing warld

s 1s where Sky Acaderny comes
In Bringing together a range of
nitiatives - some well-established
others just getting gong - Sky
Academy aims to use the power
of television creatmty and sport
to insprire young pecple and help
them burld skills and confidence
Just as Sky Academy is about
encouraging the under-25s to

aim high, we are also ambihious
1nour targets We want to create
opportunites for up to one mithon
young people by 2020
Headguarteredin our new Beheve
in Better building, due to open
inthe autumn at the heart of

our West London campus Sky
Academy s compnsed of four
initiatives Sky Sports Living for
Sport, Sky Academy Skills Studios
Sky Academy Scholarships and
Sky Academy Startuing Out

Sky Academy Skills Studios has
welcomed over 20000 students
aged 8-18 to the purpose-built
facility 1n West London inless
than two years since launch

The Sky Acadermy Skills Studios
experience takes schoels behind
the scenes at Sky ghang them

the opportunity to use the fatest
technolegy to create ther own
news reports on subjects theyre
studying. We wll be launching our
second Skills Stucftos In Lmngston
Scottandin 2015

Sky Academy Scholarships
prowvide financial assistance and
mentoring to support some of
the most exciung emerging tatent
In sport television and the arts
This year we have helped 17 young
artists and athletes and this
spnng, we launched a brand new
scheme with the Natonal Film
and Telewsion School to provide
support to young people from
economically-disadvantaged
backgraunds considenng a career
n telewision

Sky Academy Starting Out helps
prepare young people for work

by offering a range of work
expenence apprenticeships and
graduate roles Reaching almost
600 young people in the last year
we amm to double the number of
places across the business over
the next three years helping to
create the next generation of
talent at Sky and gmng more
young pecple a head startan ther
careers As part of this were set
1o launch a new one-day career
experience for 16-18 year olds

this autumn

Briush Sky Broadcastung Group plc
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Bigger Picture

(continued)

Seeing the bigger picture 1s fundamental
to the way we do business at Sky

It means making a positive Impact on
the communities where we live and work
and being willing to look beyond the
delivery of short-term results in order

to build a better business that is durable
for the long term This approach helps
us butld long-term relationships and
earn the trust of our customers,
employees and partners And It's an
area In which we made important
progress In the past year

Road to nowhere

Through Sky Ralnforest Rescue our partnership with WWF,
we're working together to help protect one bilhon treesin
the Amazon rainforest in Brazil

Social and economic contnbution

As Sky grows so does the positve socral and economic contribution
we make to Britain and Ireland Accordingto this year s research

fram the independent cansultants, Oxford Economics we contnbuted
an estmated E6 billion te UK GDPin 2013114 and worked with

7000 supphers

With mare than 25 000 employees we are one of Britain s largest
companies However our total mpact 15 much wader than this Including
suppliers and partners 117000 jobs in Britain were dependent on

Sky in the last year In all Sky generated E27 bilhon of tax revenues

1n the year equivalent to E42 for every persen in the UK

As well as being a valued part of everyday ife for milhions of customers
we are the biggest commeraal supporter of the creative and sports
industnes in the UK, Within our £2 6 billion mvestment in content

we are on track to spend arecard £600 milhon on UK-produced content
across our channels (excluding sportsrights) by the end of December
2014 This has seen us work with more than 150 independent production
compantes In the last 12 months, providing a ptatform for thew creatvity

and helping them grow ther businesses

Our presence n 115 milton homes
across Bntan and Ireland gives

us a unique opportunity to raise
awareness of the Issue of cimate
change one of the worldsbhiggest
challenges and something we feel
passionate about Self-confessed
environmental sceptic Freddie
Flintoff may not have been an
ovbvious first chaice for a film
about the work that we are daing
1n the Amazon rainforest But
when we gave him a chance

to embark on the Journey of 2
ifetme, he jumped at the chance
Mever one to turn down a tough
physical test, Freddie had an

added reasonto give it ago -

his daughter had been learning
about the ranforest at school
and was desperate to trytohelp

The resutuing two-part Sky 1
documentary Flintoff’s Road
To Nowhere folowed Freddie
and extreme cyclist and
ervironmentabst Rob Penn

as they cycled Braz! s Trans-
Armazontan Highway explonng
one of the world s most
emgrmatic regions at a time

of unprecedented change

It was just one way that we
saught to raise awareness sbout
cimate change over the year
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Changing the game

Sky Sports Living for Sportis now
inits 1ith year and is our longest-
runmung initiatrve Delivered in
partnership with Youth Sport
Trust, over 95 Q00 students from
primary and secondary schools
across 8ntaln and Ireland have
taken part in a Sky Sports Living
for Sport activity this year

At the heart of the programme 1s
our team of over 90 world-class
athlete mentors headed up by our
ambassadors Olympic athletes
Jessica Enris-Hill, Darren Campbell
and Katie Taylor as well as our Sky

Academy Ambassador Dawvid
Beckham Our mentors go into
schools and use sports skills

to help build young people s
cenfidence and Iife skills, whatever
their athletic ablity We also

host Sky Sports Living for Sport
Community Games events in local
communities throughout the

UK far prmary school chedren
Were proud of what we've achieved
with Sky Sports Living for Sport
but we wanted to go further
incorporating Sky Sports Living for
Sport and the ethos that underpins

1t into our TVschadule Solast
autumn we launched Game
Changers, a brand new TV show for
kids that introduces iInspirational
role moedels and encourages
them to try out different sports
Recorded Iive in front of astudio
audience of children the show
goes out on SkySportsiand
Sky1on Saturday mornings
presented by b Dougherty and
Sky Sports Lving for Sport
Ambassador Darren Campbell
one of Britath s most successfut
and well-known sprinters

Strategicreport - Biggar Picture

The show marked the end of its
first season In May with a hve
Game Changers Speciaito celebrate
the achievements of the young
people and teachers mvolved
in Sky Sports Lving for Spart.
With awards presented by cur
Ambassadors Dawid Beckham
and Jessica Ennis-Hill itwas a
fitbing end to a successful first
season for Game Changers
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Bigger Picture

(continued)

In sport, we continued to strengthen our relationships at all levels,
helping to smprove performance participation and infrastructure
through theinvestment and promotion that we provide One area of
particular focus in the past year has been womenss sport In the last 12
menths Sky Sports concluded new nghts deals to broadcast England
Netball and Women s Rugby and extended its refationship with the
Ladies Professional Goif Assowation Reflecting its commitment to the
area Sky Sports launched a new weekly show in September dedicated to
women s spart as well as supporting The Sunday Times as the exclusive
partner for the 2013 Sportswomen of the Year Awards in December

Aresponsible business day to day

Of course we understand that what we do as a business is only part.

of the answer We know that how we do business 1s just as important
For Sky believing in better also means doing the right thing and acting
rasponsibly in &l that we do This approach 1s integral to the culture and
values we seek to promote among our pecple The mitions of customers
acrass Britain and frefand that choese Sky for their homa entertainment
and communications have high expectations of us and it s our job to
maintain therr trustin the decisions we take every day

Powering down

We have set out ambitious targets to reduce ourimpact onthe
emaranment, including a target ta improve energy efficiency
across ali our bulldings by an average of 20% by 2020 (compared
to the 2008/09 baseline) One way we are deing this s to Improve
the efficiency of our data centres the buildings we use to house
the millions of pieces of data that help our business work.

wWe've installed menitoning tools By 2017, we hope to have

to measure the performance of closed our smaller data centres
ourdata centres and were making | completely reducing costs and
the most of virtual servers and givng wus greater control over

cloud-based technology By the our IT systems Thisis a kg step
end of 2014 we will have moved towards building a more durable
almost all of our serversinto business for the long term

our newer more enargy-efficient
data centres

One example of the way (n which we do that 1s in our work to make
our products and services accessible to everyone including those
with disabiities We provicie subtithing and audie description on

24 of our Sky-owned TV channels with over 80% of inear content
dehvered with subtitles and over 20% with audie description

The new Electronic Programme Guide that we rolfed out this

year was designed in consultation with the Royal National Insutute
of Blind People Andin May we strengthened the capabilities of our
90-strong accessibiity customer senice team when we extended
the use of our Video Relay Service to enable hard of heanng customers
to call in and use sign language

We continue to make good progress aganst our ambitious 2020
environmental targets Qur greatest operauonalimpact s inour

own energy use 50 were aiming to halve our carbonintensity

(CO,e emissions retative to revenue) by 2020 As at the end of 201314,
we've already achieved a 40% reduction against our 2008/09 baseline
COwer the same time pened our absolute gross emissions have
decreased by ¥0% to 95 000 tonnes CO,e Where we have unavoidable
emissions we offset and continue to be carbon neutral More detail
around our greenhouse gas emissions can be found on page 79
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We are committed te building preductive fair and ethical relationships
with our suppliers and distnbutors - relationships on which so much
of the success of our business relies We set out our expectations
1nour Responsible Sourcing Policy which 1s available on our website
Over the past year we have assessed 100 per cent of our strategic
suppiiers against our responsible sourcing questionnare

While we do not have a specific human nights policy we have a strong
commitment to upholding the principles of human nghts across cur
business Our commitments to human nghts are induded within our
Envirenment Policy and our Responsible Sourcing Policy These pnnoples
are alsc outhined in Sky's Ways of Working This is the code of conduct
that everyone who works at Sky 1s expected to adhere to Further
Information is avariable on our website at sky com/biggerpicture

Insplrlng action

We know that we have the opportunity to use our position as a leading
media and communications company to reach beyond our business
and make a positive iImpact on society

We made a step change in our approach this year with the launch of

Sky Academy in November This 1s a unique and groundbreaking set of
Ivihiatives that use the power of TV creativity and sport to inspire young
people and give themn the skills and confidence they need to succeed

Sportis at the heart of what we do and we believe i its power to change
iives Our partnership with British Cycling now in 1ts sixth year has got
more than one millon people on their bikes since 2009 and the elite
success of Team Sky delivered a British winner of the Tour de France

for the second consecutive year in 2013

‘Strategic report - Brgger Picture

Sky Rainforest Rescue s our partnership with WWF and the State
Government of Acre in Brazil which aims to save a bilon trees in the
Amazon rainforest Through the campaign, we re also inspiring our
customers in Britan and Ireland to take action to address cimate change

With the partnership nowin its fifth year more than 1,500 families n
Brazil have registered to take partin a voluntary land certification scheme
to help grve local peaple ways of making a iving from the forest without
cutting down trees As a result of knowing about Sky Rainforest, Rescua
27% of peaple are now more aware of the (ssue of deforestation The
partnership has raised a total of over £4 milion with Sky then matching
every contribution pound for pound

We are proud of aurwork to make a positive contribution to society and
we are committed to doing mora in the future

Carbon ntensity’
Target. 50% reduction in gross CO,e enmussions relative to revenue??

201304 124

20203 7T AR 18
U ] 139
0000 T 162

00900 ,__TTTEEANN
2008108 . T GGG o

201314 dataisind ependently assured by Deloitte LLP and can be viewed
online at sky com/biggarpicture

Relative to 2008/09 baseline

3 Gross (O, emissions nclude emissions from premises and company-owned
vehicles (Scope 1 and 2)

)
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Future proofing

We know we re only as good as
the people that work for us and
nowhere 1s this more true than
n technology where our ability
to stay one step ahead depends
on attracting the best talent
with the most up-to-date skils

Qur requirement for software
developers has grown in the past
few years with the expansion

of our connected TV services
However 1t 5 also been clear

that we re not the only company
out there locking nwhat1s

an increasingly competitive

Jobs market,

5o we took the decision to develop
mare of our talent in house

In 2011 we set up the Sky Software
Engineenng Academy This takes
24 graduates every July fresh out
of unwversity and passionate about
technology and over the course

of seven months helps tumn them
into fully-fledged developers

The new starters heginwith a
four-week boot camp to get them
all up to the same fevel We then
get them out on the job working
on live projects to apply what
they have learnt under the close
supervision of one of our experts

COwer the next five months

they work in small teams on
avanety of different tasks to
help get them ready for a career
1 Sky Atthe end we sit down
with them to help them decide
wheren the business they
mught want Lo pursue a career

Two years in and the schemes
been a great success so last
September, we decided to accept
a further 12 young people into
the programme

In addition we recruited 12 people
into anewly-created Development

Operations Academy with the aim

of training up graduates to work
onour hardware and infrastructure
requirements

with almost 100 bnght young
graduates through 1ts doors in
the first three years our Software
Engineerng Academy 15 ona of
the many ways Sky Is building
skills for the future

i
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People

(continued)

Our people are critical to our success
We aim to foster a culture where
they can do their best work every
day, fulfil their potential and achieve

Development Studio for example 15 an online learning portat which
prowvides acress to a huge choce of learning resources and courses
available to all Lastyear this delivered more than 75 000 hours of

e-learning across the business

Because we know that the quality of our managers has a biginfluence
on performance and engagement, we launched a new two-day training
programme thus year for newly-promated managers ‘Sky Management
HD covers everything from interview techrugues to objective setung

great things together

In a fast-moving industry we know that success comes from a wilingness
tc embrace change We want to encourage our pecple to strive for

continual gnprovement in everything that they do That is at the heart of
our Belileve 1n Better ethos and has been the basts of Sky's achievements
aver the past 25 years We believe 1t 1s the best Foundation for the future

Our aim)s to ¢reate an environment where all of our people can fulfil theyr
potential To help them progress we provide a wide range of opportunities

over the two~-day programme More than 600 managers have completed
the prograrmime in the first year, contributing to a total of 100 GO0 training
days In the last 12 months across the company

However learrung s not just about formaltraining As a large and diverse
company we are also able to offer our people the opportunity to broaden
their experience through exposure to different parts of the business

We actively encourage iternal moves and job rotations ar all levels of

the organisation, from project work and short-term placements to new
full-ttme roles This helps us to build abroader skills base and strengthens

for development such as mantenng and new skills training. The Sky

Space to work

For our pecple to flourish and do the best they can it's important that
we provide them with the best working environment Ths summer we
opened a brand new building, known as The Hub nght at the heart of
our campus in West London in the latest stage of the redevelopment
of the Osterley headquarters where we have been based since 1989

The Hub iz Sky s first major flexuble
workspace housing around 450
employees over three fivors Mext
on the list is the new headquarters.
for Sky Academy and construction
has also begun on a further phase
of development In ine vath our

commitment to sustainabiity all
the new buildings are designed ta
have marumal enviranmental impact

This project which started in
2010 with the construction

of Sky Studios represents a
transformation of the werking

collabaration across departments

envwonment for the thousands of
our people now based at Osterley
We aim to create a state-of-the art
media and technology campus to
suppert Sky's growth farinto the
future and are confident that the
new facilities will have a positive
1mpact on our peaple ourbusiness
and on our local community

It s not yust i Osterley where were
constantly trhying to make Sky a
great place towork This year we've

provided access to gyms tokeep
our pecple fit and refurtished

all our cafés and restaurants

We knew how important the
workmg environment 1$ and

were always changing and adapting
It to create the best workplace for
our people This year we've invested
Inour sites across the UK and
Ireland from Livingston to Victona
and from Dubbin to Newcastle
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A Sky for everyone

Because we want Sky to be a great place to work, we offer a comprehensive
reward package which includes generous holiday entitlement and maternity

leave allowance a pension and healthcare as well as free Sky+HD, Sky
Broadband and discounted Sky Talk

As well as developing and rewarding the people who already work at Sky
we want to encourage new talent to jomn us We continue to grow our
employee base adding more than 4 500 new Jobs in the Jast three years
to take cur total employee base to 25 400

The launch of Sky Academy in November 2013 has brought a step change
in our commitment to provide opportunities for young people within the

business Through Sky Academy Starting Out we will more than double the

size of our work expenence and employment programmes over the next

threa years across a ranga of work expenence, placement apprenticeship

and graduate schemes

This means growing the size of our existing programmes but)it also means

we'll launch a brand new programme of fering thousands of teenagers
the opportunity to spend a day at Sky for a hands-on expenence of the
workplace This will open Sky to even more young people and help them

prepare for the world of work To underhine our commitment, Sky Academy

will be headquartered in a new burlding at the heart of our Osterley

campus This wall also serve as a space where Sky people will come together

for traiming development and mentoring

Strategic report - Pecple

We know that we will be better placed for success as a business
1f we have a balanced and diverse workFarce that reflects cur
customers and includes the most talented people, regardless

of gender or ethnresty That's why we are committed toimproving
diversity inourindustry

One way that we are seeking to
Improve 15 by Increasing diversity
on screen induding on Sky News
for example where we have
increased the representation of
women as axpert commentators

Another wayis the introduction
this year of five Sky Academy

TV Scholarships Availableto
successful applicants on courses
run by the National Filmand TV
School (NFTS) the scholarships
will be offered to young people
from economically-disadvantaged
backgrounds We will fully fund
three places at the NFTSon the
Broadcast Production course and
two on the Drgtal Contentand
Formats course which we already
support through placements

and mentoring,

who may not otherwise have
considered a career In the media
with a particular focus on
supporting students from

black Asian and minonty ethnic
backgrounds and those with
disabiiities Added to existing
Inrttatives ike our partnership
with MAMA Youth Project where
Sky sponsors 12 young peaple
from minenty and disadvantaged
backgrounds the NFTS
scholarships are another step
towards increasing diversity in
the broadcasting industry

We believe that a diverse workforce creates a stronger business and
therefore wework to create an envronment that encourages diversity
and innovatien

We are committed to shcreasing female and ethinic representationin

our employee base and in particular in lzadership roles The ratio of male

to female colleagues based on the number of employees as at 30 June
2014 is outlined below

Diversity gender

The aim s to encourage individuals

T —t

Male Ferale
Board of Directors 13 87% 2 13%
Senior managers 106 74% 38 26%
All employeas! 14740 66%, 7508 34% ,

% Based on full-tme equivalent emplayees from continuing operations and excluding
pecpla who work for our jaint ventures
2013/14 data s independently assured by Deloitte LLP and can be viewed online at
sky com/biggerplcture
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Financial review

We have delivered an excellent year of operational and
financial growth Continued demand across the board
translated into strong revenue growth which, combined
with a continued focus on operating efficiency, meant
we absorbed our Investment in connected services and
matched last year's record adjusted earnings per share

Revenue
)
2011 2013
Forthe year to 30 June Em % £Em %
Retall subscnption 6255 az2 5951 82
wholesale subscnption 407 [ 386 ]
Advertising 472 6 A40 6 '
Installatieon hardware & service 88 t B7 1
Other 398 5 351 5
7617 100 7,235 100

Revenue increased by 5% to £7617 mlhon (2013 £7235 millon) wath
continued strong growth in both our retall and commercal businesses
Revenue grew by 7% excluding the impact of the discontinued retaling
of the ESPN channel in both 2014 and 2013

Retail subscnption revenue, after excluding £6 milion of ESPN revenue
Andrew Gnffith (2013 £89 milion) grew by 7% to £6 249 million (2013 £5 862 million)
Chief Finanaal Officer reflecting strong product and customer growth and prce nsesin the
year Our investments In connected services are paying back driven
by a strong performance from Sky Store which saw revenues more
than double on last year
Financial performance
We delivered a good financial performance for the twelve months to
30 June 2014 Adjusted revenue growth was 5% (or 7% after excluding
the impact of ESPN) and this together with continued disapline on
costs, allowed us to deliver adjusted EBITDA of £1 667 million, down
anly 1% despite our connected services iInvestment and the step
up In Premier League amortisation Adjusted basic earnings per
share were 60 0 pence, flat on the pnor year s record leve|

Our commercial businesses alse performed well Advertising revenue
was up 7% to £472 million (2013 E£440 milion) through a comiination
of market growth share gains through our conselidation of two small
sales houses in this finanaal year and a first ime contribution from
Sky AdSmart Wholesale subscription revenue increased by 3% to
E407 milion (2013 £396 millon) as renewed carriage agreements
and price increases were partially offset by lower customer volumes
on third-party platforms, '

Other revenue increased by 10% to £358 rullion (2012 £361 mikon)
with conuinued strong performance from Sky Bet which saw mobile
users up 29%, doving revenues up 18% to £183 milion

Unless otherwse stated all figures and growth rates exclude adjusting
items Areconcihiation of statutory to adjusted figures s detailed
on page 139

Our statutory reported revenue grewS%
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2014 2013
For the year to 30 June £m % £m %
Programming 2662 42 2486 42
Direct networks 819 13 715 2
Marketing 1189 19 1116 19
Subseriber management and
supply chain 688 1 647 n
Transmission, technology and
fixed networks 447 7 401 7
Administration 542 8 540 9

6357 100 5905 100

Excluchng the one-off step up in the new Premier League deal and the
disconunuation of ESPN carnage (2014 £223 milion 2013 £78 million)
programrming costs of £2.439 mithon (2013 £2,408 milllon) were up 1%
1n the year as we made disciplined choices across our diverse content
portfolie Sports accounted for the majonty of the Increase given our
investment in a large number of renewed and new rights agreements
Maovies costs increased from a broader grant of nghts faclitaung new
propaosittons like NOW TV Sky Go Extra and Sky Store while payments
to third-party channel prowiders were lower than the prior year as we
negotiated more favourable terms on several renewed agreements

Direct network costs of E819 million were up 15% (2013 £715 milhon)
as we continued to grow our customer base and absorbed the
acquired Q2 custemer base onto cur network.

Marketing costs of £1199 million (2013 £1116 milhon) were driven by
the increased growth of paid-for products compared to last year and
promotions behind our drive to connect our base of set-top boxes
Above the line marketing was also hrgher as we maintained our share
of voice In the market with targeted carnpaigns throughout the year

Subscnber management and supply ¢chaun costs were up 6% at £688
million (2013 E£647 million) as we continued to see strong growth in
products and customers invested in our cannected senaces and
Integrated the acquired O2 customers into the Sky base

Transmission technology and fixed network costs increased by
1% to £447 miion (2033 E401 million) largely due to the first tme
consolidation of the cost base assocrated weth the acquired 02
broadizand business Administration costs of E542 milhon were
broadly flat onlast year {2012 £540 milion)

Strategic report - Financal review

Profits and earnings

Adjusted EBITDA of £1667 million (2013 £1692 miflion) and adjusted
operaungprofit of £1260 mullion (2013 £9 330 million) 1s an excellent
result in aperiod where the business absarbed a one-off step upin
Premier League costs and invested to accelerate take-up and usage
af new connected TV services

Deprecatien and amortisation was up 12% at £407 mithon (2013 £362
rmlhon) due to the integration of the acquired O2 business a higher
base of depreciable assets with more unbundled exchanges network
upgrades carned out across the year and a hugher fixed asset base
aswe begin to depreciate the development costs of praducts such
as NOW Tvand Sky AdSmart

Prafit before tax was £1186 mithon (2013 £1264 million) which
included the Group s share of joint ventures and assaciates profits of
E35 milhion (2013 £37 milion) and a net interest charge of E109 millon
(2013 £103 mihon) Taxation for the period was £24% mithon (2013
£295 million) at an adjusted effective taxrate of 21% (2013 23%)
marnly as aresult of the reduction in the rate of UK corporation tax

Profit after tax for the year was £937 millien (2013 ES69 million)
generating adjusted basic earnings per share of 600 pence (2013
600 pence) Over the year the weighted average number of shares
excluding those held by the Employee Share Ownership Flan (ESOP?)
for the settlement of employee share awards was 1562 million (2013
1614 milliony The closing number of shares excluding the ESOP sharas
at 30 June 2014 was 1,546 mithion (2013 1,573 milion)

Adjusting items.

Statutory operating profit of £1161 million (2013 £1291 milion)
Includes anet exceptional cost of E99 million (2013 £32 millen)
which reflects integration costs of the acquired 02 business and the
ongoing amortsation of acquired intangibles (€72 million) the costs
of a corporate effictency programme undertaken through the year
(£40 millier) offset in part by a net gain frem the termination

of an escrow agreement with a wholesale customer (E13 million)

Statutory profit after tax of E865 million (2013 £979 million) also
Includes a net exceptional gain of £27 milhon due to a tax credit and
the tax effect on all adustng iwems (E32 milon) partiaty affsetbya
£5 million cost relating to mark to market values of denvative financiat
instruments

In the pror year statutory profit after tax included a net exceptional
gan of £10 mdlon consisting of a gain of £32 miltion relating ta a credit
note recerved from BT following an Ofcom deterrination that BT had
overcharged for Ethernet services a gain of £33 million following final
settlement of disputes with a former manufacturer of set-top boxes
and a gain of £9 millon on the disposal of our investment in MUTV
Limited These gains were offset by costs of £56 million for a one-off
upgrade of set-top boxes and a programme to offer wiretess
connectors toselected Sky Movies customers n addition to costs

of £33 million for a corporate efficency programme and costs of

£15 millon in relation to the acquisition and integration of 02
consumer broadoand and fixed-line telephony service QOther adjusting
1items in the prior year were a £23 millon gain relating to mark to
market values of dervative financial Instruments and a £17 milkon
credit relating to the tax exceptionals and the tax effect on all
adjusting rtems

A reconciliation of statutory to adjusted numbers 1s shown on page 139
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Strategic report - Financial review

Financial review

(continued)

Cash flow and financial position

Adjusted free cash flow excluding campus redevelepment investment
eosts of £62 miltion (2013 £12 milhon} was 3% lower at £1,006 million
(2013 £1040 milion) reflecting lower EBITDA and higher capital
expenditure offset by a positive working capital movement and

lower cash tax

Capital expenditure increased by £89 millon to £543 million

(2013 £454 miflion) due to the phasing of campus redevelopment
Investment, the integration and migration of acqured O2 customers
and product develcpment investment Excluding the campus
redevelopment, underiying capital expenditure was E481 million
(213 £442million)

Non-
Asatl Cash cash Asat
July  move-  move- 30 June
2013 ments ments 2004

£m Em £m Em
Current borrowangs il - - n
Non-current borrowings 2909 - (251) 2658
Borrewngs-related denvative
financial Instruments (327) - 247 (80)
Gross debt 2593 - 4y 2,589
Cash and cash equivalents (815) (267) - (1082)
Short-term deposits (595) 200 - (295)
Netdebt 1183 33 @) 1212

Net debt increased sightly to £1212 milhon (2013 £1183 milien) as a
result of the £750 milhon cash returned to sharsholders via dividends
and share buy-back in the year Gross debt was £2,589 nulhon with
£1377 million of cash and cash equivalents and short-term deposits at
30 June 2014 The Group s hquidity and headroom remain comfortable

Balance Sheet

Duning the year total assets increased by £104 miltion to £6 449 milion
at 30 June 2014 Non-current assels increased by £100 mellon to

£3 876 million primarily due to an increase of £139 milion in intangible
assets and property plant and equipment as a result of campus
redevelopment investment, the integration and migration of acquired
02 customers and product development investment an increase of
EM million in available-for-sale nvestments mainly resulting from the
increase in the value of our investment in ITV ple, offset by £165 miiion
decrease in non-current denvative financial assets which offsets
against movements i nan-current borrowings Current assets
increased by E4 millon to £2 573 millien at 30 June 2014

Tatal habikities increased by £44 million to £5 377 million at 30 June
2014 Current hatxlities increased by £202 milhon to E2 519 milllon
primanly due to a £263 milkonincrease in trade and other payables
offset by a £48 million decrease in current tax habidities Non-current
habiities decreased by £158 mihion to £2,858 millon pancipally due
to a £251 millon decrease in the Group s non-current borrowmngs

as a result of the strengthening of pounds sterling against the US
dellar and farr value movements in the value of bonds offset by a
E100 million increase in non-current denvative finanaal habihties

Distributions to Shareholders

We have once again increased our ordinary dvidend The Directors
proposed fimzal dvdend of 20 0 pence per share takes the total
diwdend payable in respect of the financial year to 32 O pence per
share an increase of 7% on last year and double the level of seven
years ago Shareholders have now benefited from a decade of
sustained dividend growth such that a holder of a single Sky share
over that period would have recetved over 200 pence in diidends

The ex-dividend date will be 13 November 2014 and subject to
shareholder approval at the 2014 Annual General Meeting, the
final dradend of 20 0 pence wil be paid on S December 2014 to
shareholders appearing on the register at the close of business
on 14 November 2014

At the Company’s AGM on 22 November 2013 we recewved shareholder
approval to return up to 500 milhon of capital to shareholders via a
share buy-back On 25 July 2014 the Company suspended its share
buy-back programme

Post balance sheet events

On 17 July 2014 the Group sold a shareholding of approximately
& 4% n [TV ple consisting of 259,920 065 [TV shares for an aggregate
consideration of approximatety £481 million

The Company announced on 25 July 2014 that it has condiionally
entered Into share purchase agreements {the "Acquisiion
Agreements”) with 21st Century Fox (and its relevant subsidiaries)

to acquire1ts 100% stake in Sky Italia Srl and its 57 4% stake in Sky
Deutschland A G The Company further announced its intention to
make a voluntary cash offer (the “Offer”y to the minonty shareholders
of Sky Deutschland AG The Acquisition Agreements and the Offer
(together the “Transactions”) are conditional on amongst other things
their approval by the Company s independent sharehaolders and
regulatory clearances

The total consideration for the acquisiion of Sky Itaha s £2 45 billion
with approximately £2 07 biflions to be paid in cash and the balance to
be satisfied through the transfer of the Group s 21% stake in Nabonal
Geographic Channel to 21st Century Fox ("21CF™) The acquisition of
21CF 5 shareholding in Sky Deutschland AG 1s for a consideration of
£29 bullion 1n cash, valuing Sky Deutschland at €6 75 a share Subject
to the number of Sky Deutschland AG minarity shareholders that
accept the Offer the total consideration for the transaction will range
from £2.9tulhon to £5 billion

For further detaills see note 29 to theconsclidated financal
statements
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Stategx report - Pnnapal risks and uncertantres.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group risk register 1s reported formally to the Audit Committee
twice a year and focused rnisk repartng on selected themes occurs

on aquarterly basis Addittional information on the Group s internal
control and nsk management processes 1s set out in the Corporate
Governance Report and the Audit Committee Report (see page 54)

This section descnibes the current principal nsks and uncertainties
facing the Group In addition to summansing the material nsks and
uncertainties the table below gives examples of howwe mitigate
those nsks

The Group has a formal nisk management framework embedded within
the business to support the identification and effective management
of risk across the Group

The dnistons withm the Group are each responsible for managing and
reparting nsk 1n accordance with the Group s nsk management pobcy
and standards that have been approved by the Audit Committee
The risks are then consehidated inta a Group nsk register which
provides an averview of the Group nisk profile

Description of nsk

Mitigation

Market and competition

The Group operates in a highly competitve ervironment and faces
competition from a broad range of organisations Technological
developments also have the ability to create new forms of quickly
evolving competition

A falure to develop the Groups product prapositian in line with
changing market dynamics and expectations could ercde tne
Group s competitive position

Great content s central to Sky's product proposition and ncreased
competition could iImpact the Group’s ability to acquire content that
1S customers want on commercially attractive terms

Economic conditions have been challenging in recent years and the
future remains uncertain A sigrificant econormc dechine could impact
the Group s ability to continue to attract and retain customers

The Group continues to make ssgnificant investments in nnovation

The Group s preduct development strategic armis to be at the
forefront of progressive tachnalogy

Please see the ‘Innovation’ sectron for further details of these
preducts

The Group regularly reviews its pricing and packaging structures
to ensure that its product proposition is appropnately placed
within the market

The Group works clesely with its marketing partners to ensure that
the value of its offenng 15 understood and commurnicated effectively
toits customers

The Group makes sigruficant investment in the ongination of
UK content as well as in acquisiton from across the world

The Group alsa works to develop and maintaim the brand value
associated with itsindvidual channels

Regulatory breach and change

The Group 1s subject to regulabion pnmarnty under UK Insh and Europaan
Union legistation

The regimes which apply to the Group s business include but are not.
hmited to

« Broadcasting - the Group is subject to Ofcom s icensing regime under
the Broadeasting Acts 1990 and 1996 and the Communications Act
2003 These obhgations include the requirement to comply with the
relevant codes and direcuons issued by Ofcom including for example
the Broadcasting Code the Code on the Scheduling of Television
Advertising and the Cross Promotions Code

Gambling - Aldemey Gambhing Control Commissian {"AGCCT) regulation
and Gambling Act 2005 (UK),

Platform services - as a prowder of EPG and CA services the Group

13 subject to regulation under the Commurucations Act 2003 which
amongst other things requires it to prowde EPG and CA services to
other broadcasters on fair reasonable and non-discnminatery terms
and

+

Telecornmurications - the Group is subject to the Genera! Conditions
of Entitlement adopted under the Communications Act 2003 which
impose detailled requirements on providers of communications
networks and services

The Greup manages these risks through active engagement in the
regulatory processes that affact the Group s business

The Group actively seeks to identify and meet our regutatory
obligations and to respond to emerging requirements This includes
for example

» Broadcasting - complance controls, processes and contacts »
are In ptace In Entertamnment Movies Sperts and Mews services
Interaction with Ofcom is co-ordinated between the Compliance
Regulatory and Legal departments,

.

Gambling - controls and processes are in place to monitor our
comphance with and our adherence to our obigations under the
AGCC regulations and the Gambling Act 2005 We are subject to
regular independent audit by the AGCC against the Alderney
regulations and will be applying to the UK Gambling Commission
for a LK Remote Gambling Licence in accordance with recent
amendments to the Gambling Act 2005

B

Platform services - processes are in place to menitor third-party
broadcaster access to the digital satelite platform and to ensure
that this 1s provided on far, reasonable and non-discominatery
terms

.

Telecommunications - compliance controls processes and
contacts are In place cverseen by the Customer Compliance
Committee to monitor compliance and performance aganst
the General Condiuons of Entitlement
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Strategic report « Princpal nsks and uncertaint-es

Desenption of nsk

Mitigation

Regulatory breach and change continued

The Group I15 alse subject to generally applicable legislation induding
but not imited te competition (antitrust) consurmer protection data
pretection and taxation

The Group I1s currently and may be in the future subject to proceedings
and/or iInvestigation and enquines from regulatory authorities

The Group s ability to operate or compete effectively could be adversely
affected by the outcome of Investigations cr by the introduction of new
laws policies or regulations changes in the interpretation or application
of extsting laws, policies and regulations or falure to cbtain required
regulatory approvals or licences

Please see page 44 of the Regulatory Matters section for Further detals

The Group maintains appropriate oversight and reporting, supported
by tramming to provide assurance that 1t s compliant with regulatory
requirements,

Customer service

The Group's business 1s based on a subscnpuon model and its future
success relies on butlding long-term relationships wath its customers
A failure to meeat 1ts customers expectations with regards to service
could negatvely impact the Groups brand and competitive position

The Group sthves consistently to exceed its customers
expectations to put its customers first to understand what
theywant and to be responsive to what they say

The Group makes significant investments in order to deliver
continuous development and iImprovement to 1ts customer
service capabilites mnduding investment inits contact centres
across the UK and Ireland and implementing ongoing training
and development plans

The Group tracks its customer service performance, benchmarks
ILs customer service expenence and stnves to be best in class

Technology and business intertuption

The products and services that the Group provides to its customers
are reliant on complex technical Infrastructure

A failure m the operatien of the Group s key systems or infrastructure
such as the broadcast platform customer management systems OTT
platforms or the telecommunications networks on which the Graup
relies could cause a faidure of service to our customers and negatively
impact our brand

The Group makes significant investment in technology infrastructure
to ensura that ik continues to support the growth of the business

The Group 1s committed to achieve best-in-dass business continuity
standards and makes significant Investments :n the resience and
robustness of its business infrastructure

The Group also orgaruses regular scenano based group-wide
business continuity exercises to ensure ongoing readiness of
key staff systems and sites

Supply chain

The Group relies on a number of third parties and outsourced suppliers
operating across the glebe to support its supply chain

A significant failure wathin the supply chain could adversely affect
the Group s abllity to deliver products and service to Its customers

The Group continues to Invest Inits supply chain infrastructure
to supportits business plan commitments

A robust supplier selection process is in place with appropnate
ongoing management and manitenng of key partners and suppliers

The Group performs regular audits of key suppliers and of their
installabicns and wherever possible has dual supply capability
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Strategic report - Prinapalnsks and uncertaintles

Principal risks and uncertainties

(continued)

Descnption of nsk

Mitigation

Financal

The effective management of its financial exposures 1s central to
preserving the Group s profitabdity

The Group ts exposed to financial market risks and may be impacted
negatively by fluctuations i Faretgn exchange and interest rates
which create volatility in the Group s resuits to the extent that

they are not effectively hedged

The Group may also be affected adversely by lquidity and
counterparty risks

The Groups finance teams are embedded within the business to
provide support to management and to ensure accurate financial
reporting and tracking of our business performance Reporting
on finanaal performance 1s pronded on a monthly basis to senier
management and the Board

The Group continually Invests in the improvement of its systems
and processes in order to ensure sound financial management
and reporting.

The Group manages treasury nsk by minimising nsk to capital
and provding appropriate protection aganst foreign exchange
and snterest rate movements

Cash investment is made inhine with the Group s strict treasury
policy which 1s approved by the Audit Committee and sets limits
on deposits based on counterparty credit ratings Mo more than
10% of cash deposits are held with a single bank counterparty
with the exception of overmight deposits which are invested

in a spread of AAAfrated iquidity funds

All non-sterling debt 1s swapped at inception to ensure approprate
currency and interest rate protection s in place and trading currency
nsk s hedged up to five yearsin advance

The Group manages its tax nsk by ensunng that nisks are identified
and understoed at an early stage and that effective comphance and
reporung processes are inplace

The Group continues to maintain an open and proactive relationship
with the regulating tax authorities, pamanly HM Revenue & Customs
The Group aims to deal with taxation issues wherever possible

as they anise In order to avoid unnecessary disputes

Security

The Groaup must protect Its customer and corporate data and the
safety of Its people and Infrastructure as well as needing to have
in place fraud prevention and detection measures

The Group is responsible to third-party intellectual property ownars
for the secunty of the content that it distnbutes on vanous platforms
(Sky s own and third-party platforms)

A significant breach of secunty could impact the Group s ability
to aperate and deliver against Its business objectives

The Group takes measures ranging from physical and logical access
controls to encryption or equivalent technologies, to manage its
secunty risks

The Group continues to invest n new technological controls and

in improving broader business process and works closely with law
enforcement agencies and policy makers in order to protect its
assets and to comply with its contractual obligations to third parties

Projects

The Group invests In and delivers, significant capital expenditure
projects tn order to continually dnve the business forward

The failure to deliver key projects effectively and efficiently could
result in significantly increased project costs and impede otr ability
to execute our stratege plans

A common praject management methodology 1s used to enable the
Group to manage monitor and cantrolits major capttal expenditure
projects and strategic programmes This includes standardised
reporting and monthly reviews by senior management as well as
cross-functional executive steering groups for majar projects

Third-party partners will where appropnate be engaged to provide
support and expertise in our large strategie programrmes complez
Inwtiatives and for emerging technologes

42 Bnush Sky Broadcastung Group plc




Annual Report 204

Strategic repart - Poncnal askes and uncer tanbies

Description of nsk

Mitigation

Intellectual property protection

The Group in common with other service providers, relies on intellectual
property and other propnetary nghts inciuding in respect of
programming content, which may not be adequately protected under
current laws or which may be subject to unauthorised use

We maintain an ongoINg programme to SUpport appropnate
protections of our intellectual property and other nghts

This includes for example, the use of automated online monitonng
tools, the implementatien of on-screen imprinting of content
together with an active programme to protect our trade marks

Pecple

People at Sky are critical to the Group s ability to meet the needs
of Its customers and achieve Its goals as a business

Failure to attractor retain suitable employees across the business
could imit the Group s ability te deliver its business plan commitments

Malking Sky a great place towarks central to the Group s strategy
The Group champtons diversity and develops talent through

a number of actiities, Induding the Graduate programme,
Development Studis an apprenticeship scheme and a leadership
prograrnme

The Group has well estabished channels and procedures to recruit
and retain its employees and ta ensure that an adequate number
of suitable employees work within its customer seraice teams

and across allits operations

Further detall on our peeple s set out on pages 32to 35

The Company announced on 25 July 2014 that it has conditionally entered into share purchase agreements (the ‘Acquisition Agreements”)
with 21st Century Fox (and its relevant subsidianes) to acquire Its 100% stake in Sky ttalia Srland i1ts 574% {on a fully-diluted basis) stake

n Sky Deutschiand AG The Company further announced its Intention to make a voluntary cash offer (the “Offer”) to the minonty shareholders
of Sky Deutschland A G The Acquisition Agreements and the Offer (together the “Transactions”) are conditional on amongst other things
approval by the Company's Independent shareholders and regulatory dearances The risks relating to the Transactions and their impact if all
relevant conditions are satisfied and they proceed to completion will be set out in a circular which will be sent to the Company s shareholders
together with a notice of a general meeting of the Company containing the resolutions seeking shareholder approval for the Transactions
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Strategic report - Reguiatory matters

Regulatory matters

Below s an overview of the ongoing
Investigations and reviews of
regulatory and competition matters
Involving the Group

European Commission mvestlgatlon

On 13 January 2014 the Eurapean Commission opened a formal
antitrust Investigation into cross-border prowision of pay TV services
in the EU The Commission s examining certam prowvsions relating

to terntoral protection in licence agreements between major US

film studios (Twenteth Century Fox Warner Bros, Sony Pictures,
NBCUniversal and Paramount) and key European pay TV broadcasters
(the Group Canal Plus Sky ltalia Sky Deutschland and DTS, operating
under the Canal Plus brand in Spain) The Commission has not reached
any conclusions at this stage and the Group 1S not yet able to assess
whether or the extent to which this reviewwill have a matenal effect
on the Group

Wholesale must-offer obligations

©On 31 March 2010 Ofcom published 1ts deasion to impose whalesale
must-offer obligations on the Group (the “WMO Obhgations”) for the
channels Sky Sports 1 Sky Sports 2, Sky Sperts 1 HD and Sky Sports
2 HD (the “Affected Channels™) The WMO Obligations require the
Group amongst other things, to offer the Affected Channels on
awholesale basis to third parties which satsfy various minimum
quahfying critena @ncluding financial technical and security critena)
The WMD Obligations specify maximum prices that the Group

may charge for Sky Sports 1 and/or Sky Sports 2 Under the WMO
Oblgations, the wholesale price 1s Inked to the Group $ retald price
The WMO Obligations do not speafy a maximum pnice for Sky Sports
1 HD andfor Sky Sports 2 HD Rather, the Group 1s required to offer
these channels on a farr reasonable and non-discriminatory basis

In April 2010 the Group applied to the Competitton Appeal Tnbunal
(the "CAT™) for a suspenston of the implementation of the WO
Obbgations On 29 April 2010 the Group s application was resolved
by way of ar agreed Order from the Prestdent of tha CAT (the "Crder”}
The terms of the Order resulted in the suspension of certain aspects
of Ofcom s deasion pending the outcome of the Group s substantive
appeal Insummary the effect of the Order 15 as follows

+ The Group s required to offer subject to certain pre—conditions
being met the Affected Channels to each of BT Top Up TVand
Virgin Media ("VM") for distribution wa DTT and to VM for distnibution
via cable Other parties may apply to the CAT to be added to the
list of persons to whom the Group Is required to offer its channels
(on 23 November 2010 REAL Digital EPG Sennces Uimited was added to

the histin respect of DTH satellite distnbution but has not commenced

distribution of any Sky Sports channels)

In the event that BT, Top Up TV or VM enter inte a distnbution
agreement for Sky Sports 1 and/or Sky Sports 2 under the WMO
Obligations the distributor s required to pay the Group the
equivalent of the maximum price the Group may charge for the
channel(s) under the WMO Obligations The difference between
that price and the rate card price set by the Group will be pard
into escrow

On 8 August 2012, the CAT handed down Its judgment on the Group s
appea) against Ofcom s deasion toimpose the WMO Chhgations
{the Pay TV Judgment™) publishingts full jJudgment on 26 October
2012 The CAT found that "Ofcom s core competition concern 1s
unfounded” (Ofcom had found that the Group deliberately withheld
wholesale supply of its Prerium Channels) and that accordingly

the Group s appeal must be allowed

On 26 April 2013 BT was granted permission to appeal the Pay TV
Judgment to the Court of Appeal The Court of Appeal handed down
Judgment in BT's appeal and the Groups cross-appeal on whether
QOfcom had the power 1o impose the WMO Obligations on 17 February
2014 The Court of Appeal dismissed the Group s cross-appeal and
allowed BT's appeal The Court of Appeal found that Ofcoms decrsien
contained a Further competiion concern in relation to the Group s rate
card pnces and discounts to those prices and that the CAT should
have considered that concern It therefore remitted that issue 1o the
CAT for further consideranon While the CAT's finding that Ofcoms
core competitisn concern was unfounded remaims undisturbed, the
WMO Obligations (as modified by the Order) continue in force pending
the CAT consideration of the furtherissue ramitted to 1t However

the Group has agreed with a major wholesale customer to terminate
the escrow agreement and release funds in escrow to the parties

The Group has appled for permissiontothe Supreme Court to

appeal the judgment of the Court of Appeal and a deasion on that
apphcation 1s pending The CAT has indicated that it 1s not minded

to hear the remitted 1ssue until the gutcame of the Group s application
to the Supreme Court 1s khown

Qfcom has, separately announced that it will review the WMO
Obtigation in light of sector develapments since Ofcom s deaision
10 impose the WMC Oblhigation 1n 2010

BT also made an application on 11 Apnl 2014 to the CAT to vary the
Order such that the WMO Obligations would extend to distnbutian
on BT's Internet Protocal Television ("IPTV) platforms “Carcknal®
and BT YouVtew™ That applcation which Sky opposed was heard
on 23 July 2014

The Group 1 currently unable to determine whether and to what
extent the appeals concerning the WMO Obligations and BT s
application to vary the Qrder would be successful and 1t 1s not possible
for the Group to conclude on the finangal tmpact of the outcome

at this stage However should the outcome of these processes be
adverse to the Group this may have a significant effect onthe financial
position or profitability of the Group
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Ofcom Competition Act Investigation

Fallowing receipt of a compiaint from BT on 14 June 2013 Ofcom
opened an investigation into whether the Group has abused a
dominant positien contrary to Chapter H of the Competition

Act 1998 and/or Article 102 of the Treaty on the Funcuontng of the EU
The complamnt alleges that the Group s making wholesale supply

of Sky Sports 1and 2 to BT for its YouView service conditicnal on BT
wholesaling BT Sports channels to the Group for retail on the Groups
satellite platform and that constitutes an abuse of dominance

In 1ts complaint, BT alse made an application for intenm measures
against the Group, either to restrain the Group from insisting on the
wholesale supply of Sky Sports 1 and Sky Sports 2 to BT's YouView
platform being condititonal on BT whalesakng BT Sport channels

to the Group, or to mandate Sky to prowide wholesale access to

BT to 5ky Sports 1 and Sky Sports 2 on equivalent terms to those
which the Group has already agreed for cther platforms Ofcom
refused BT's application for interim measures on 31 July 2013

Ofcoms iInvestigation of BT's complaint is continung

The Group 1s currently unable to determine the outcome of Ofcom’s
investigation or its finanaial impact, however, should the outcome
be adverse to the Group this may have a sigruficant effect on the
financial position or profitability of the Group

The strategic report was approved by the Board and signed
on its behalf by the Chief Executive Officer
By order of the Board

Jaremy Darroch
Chief Executive Officer

25 July 2014

Strategicreport - Regulatory matcers

Forward looking statements

This document contains certam forward fooking statements with
respect to our financial condition results of operations and business
and our strategy plans and objectives

These statements indude without imitation those that express
forecast expectations and projections such as forecasts
expectations and projections with respect to new products and
services the potentsal for growth of free-to-air and pay tetewision
fixed-line telephony broadband and bandwdth requirements
advertising growth Direct-to-Home ("DTH") customer growth
Over-the-top ("OTT ) customer growth Multiscreen, On Demand
NOW T, Sky Go Sky Go Extra Skyt+ Sky+HD and other services
churn revenue, profitability and margin growth cash flow generation,
programming costs subscriber managements and supply chain
costs administration costs and other costs marketing expenditure
capital expenditure programmes and proposals for returning capital
to sharehclders

Although the Company beheves that the expectations reflected in
such forward looken g statements are reasonable these statements
(and all other forward looking statements containad in this document)
are not guarantees of future performance and are subject to nsks
uncertainties and other factors some of which are beyond our control
are difficult to predict and could cause actual results to differ
matenally from those expressed orimplied or forecast in the forward
looking statements These factors nclude but are not bmmited to
those nsks that are highlighted in this document i the section
entitled Pnncipal nsks and uncertamtres and information on the
significant risks and uncertainties associated with our business

ts descnbed therein

No part of these results constitutes or shall be taken to constitute
aninatationonnducement to invest in the Company or any other
entity and must not be relied upon In any way in connection with any
investment deasion All forward leoking statements in this docurnent
are based on information known to us on the date hereof Except as
required by law we undertake no obligation publicly to update or
rewsse any forward looking statements whether as a result of new
infarmation future events or othenwse
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Governance ~ Board of Directors

Board of Directors

3

Key

B Audit Committee

A Bigger Ficture Committee

# Corporate Governance & Nominations Committee
® Remuneration Commitied

t Committes Charman

1 Nick Ferguson, CBE (65) ¢ @
Chairman

Nick was apponted to the Board asa
Nor-Executrve Director in une 2004 and
became Chairman in Apnl 2012 Nickhas
previously served as Deputy Chakman angd
Seruor Indepandent Non-Executive Director

Experience

Nick bnngs extensive ieadership experience
from the private equity and Irvestment
sactors Nick was co-founder and
mstrumental in the development of Schroder
Ventures (the prrvate equity Sroun which.
1ater bacame Permara) of wiveh he sarved
as Chairman from 1984 to 2001 Ha later
served as Charman of SvVG Cepital ple,
apublic quoted private equity group

From Apnl 2005 to November 2012, Nick

hag atang-standing witerest wn tha arts

and phulanthropy, and served as Charman
of the Courtauld Institute of Art for ten
years before retunngin July 2012,

Externa! Appointments

Nk 5 Chairman of Alta Adwsers Limited,
an rvestment adwsory firm, & position

ba has held since January 2007 He s also
Chalrman and Founder of the Kilfinan
Group which of fers mentoning by Chairmen
and CEOs to Heads of Chantres Nickisa
Faflow of Winchester College

2 Jeremy Dasroch (52)

Chief Executve Officer

Jeremy joned Sky as Chie Finanoal
Officer and Executive Director In 2004
and was apponted to hus current role
in December 2007

Experience

Jecemy has extenswe experiencesn the
rataling and fast moving consumer goods
sectors Pnor tojoning Sky Jeremy was
Group Finance Direcror of 05G Intamational
pke (D5G), formerty Drons Group ple, Prior to
DSG he spant 12 years at Procter & Gamble
n avariety of roles 1n the UK and Ewrope
Jeremy 1s a formar Non-Executive Director
and Chairman of the Audit Carnnttee of
Marks and Spencer Group pk (2006 2013).

External appointments

InFebruary 2014 Jeremy was apponted
Non-Executrne Director of Burberry Group
pic and serves as a member of the Audit,
Rermuneration and Nominations committees.
Jeremy 15 a Business Member of the National
Centre for Urwversities and Business

3 Andrew Griffith (43)
Chaef Financal Officer

Ardrew jowsed Sky n 1999 and held a
number of senkr finance roles prior to

hes appointment as Chief Finanoal Officer
and Executive Director in April 2008

In addition to hus role 23 CFO Andrew has
axecutive responsibility for Sky's commeraal
businesses, induding adverusing, data
serioas, Wil and subscrIption services
tocommercial customers

Experierce

Pror to yosung Sky Andraw was at
Rothschild the ivestment banking
organsalion, where he prosdad financial
and strategic advice to corporate

ehents in the technology media and
LETECOMMUNICATIONS $8CTOr ANdrew s a
qualified dhartered accountant andhas a
degree inlaw from Nottngham University

External appointments

I March 2014 Andrew was spponted
Non-Executive Birector of just Eat pic.
He serves s Senor indepandent
Non-Executive Directer Chairman

of the Audhit Committee and member
of the Remuneration 2nd Neminations
Cammitteas

Andrew s amernber of tha 100 Group
of Finance Duectors and Advisofy Board
of the Oxford University Centre for
Bustniess Taxation

4 Chase Carey (60)
Non-Executrve Director

Chase joinad the Board as a Non Executive
Diractor i Jaruary 2013

Expenence

As President and Chief Operating Officer
of 215t Cenrtury Fox, Chase has extensive
knowledge and expengnce of the
Internationa! media and pay TV sectors
Chase 1s former President and Chief
Executive Officer of CIREC TV wherehe

led the operations and strategi direction
of DIRECTY Prior to joreng DIRECTY he
was Co-Chief Operating Officer of Newrs
Corporatian (subseduently renamed

215t Century Fox} and Charman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Fox Television Group

External appointments

In addhition T hus role at 215t Centuny Fox
Chase 15 a member of the Supervisory Boasd
of Sky Deutschland 4 G
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S TracyClarke (47) A. @ }
Independent Non-Executive Director

Tracy joened the Board as a Non-Exgcutive
Director In Jure 2012

Expenence

Tracy brings a wide range of operational
experience and oversight for corporate
affairs brand and marketing madia
refations human resources legal and
cormpliance matters » her rofe at Standard
Chartered Bank Tracyhas servedas a
Non-Executive Director of SC First Bank
i horea [2005-2007) and Non-Executive
Cirecter of Eaga ple (2007-200), where
she charad the Remuneration Committae

Extermal Appointments

Tracy1s a member of (ha exacutve
managernent group ard 1s Dwrector for
Lormpharce People and Commarucations at
Standard Chartered Bank. Tracy 1s a trustee
of WORKINg for YOULh a charity working
with busness to create job opportunities
for young peoale Tracy 15 a mernber of the
Institute of Finangal Services and a Fellow
of the Chartered Institute of Persannel and
Development

€ David F DuVoe (57}
Non-Exefutive Director

David jaried the Board as aNon Execulive
Directorin December 1994

Experience

David bnngs awealth of executive and
finance expenenca fromthe media sector
David served as Chief Financial Officer of
News Corporation Subsequently renamed
21st Century Fou) for over 20 yaars and
during that time was appomted Senior
ExecutivaVice President unt! he stepped
down from beth rofes in June 2073 Dawd
1s a former director of Gemstar TV Guide
(2001-2008) and DirecTV (2003 2008}

External Appambinents
David 1s S2rior Advisor to the Board of
21st Certury Fox

7 Martin Gilbert (59) W |
Independent Non-Executive Director

Aarkinwas appainted 1o the Board asa
Neon-Executve Director in Movember 2011

Experience

Martin has extansive investment, finance
and executive leadership expenence through
hus role as eo-faunder and Chief Executive
Officer of Aberdaen Assel Management PLC
Martinhas senved as Chairman of Firstgroug
ple Chaucer PLC and was Non-Exacutive
Director of Dyrrnark (mtermational Limited
&motile messaging and data applications
services provider

External Appointments

in addition to Fus role as Chief Executive
Officer of Aberdeen Asset Managament PLL,
Martinis a member of the Scottsh
Government s Fnancial Services

Advisory Board

8 Adine Grate(53)E @
tndependent Non-Executive Director

Ading was appointad te the Board ag
aNon-Executive Drectar in July 2013,

Experience

Adine brings awaalth of exacutive finance
and Investrnent management and
communications technology experence
having operated at the top tiers of Nordic
based international business for the past
two decades Formerly Executive Vice
Prasident a2nd Managing Oirector of lnveston
AB owner of anumber of Nordic based
rlermationa) companies

External Appointments

Charperson of NASDAQ OMY S uedish
Listing Cormmittee and Vice Chairperson

of AP7 a Smedsh pansan avd sanngs asget
management compan, Adine s aDirector
af Three {Scandinava). amabile
talecommunications and broadband
operator SCHIAB an international speciahty
neatthcare corpany Sampd OFf aleading
financial and insurance institution and
Swedavia AB anairport operator Adine s
Chairparson af non-profit organisations
Friends of a Design museumand the
Swedish Dance Museum,

9 Andy Higginson 5Ty m ¢ |
Semorlndependent Non-Executive
Director

Andy was appointed to the Beard as
Non-Executive Director in September
2004 and has been Senicrindependent
Director sinca Apnl 2012

Experience

Andy brings sigrificant commergial, retail and
leadership exgenence to the Board Andy

1% a former Diractor of Tesco pic having spent
15 years at the company firstas Finance

and Strategy Director and latterly as

Chiaf Exacutive of their Rataling Servicas
business His early career was with

Urulever Guinriess Laurg Ashiay and

the Burton Group

External Appointiments

Andy s Charmanof Poundland Group ple
ard N Brown plc and 15 2 Non Executive
Dactor of Woatwarth SA and the Bughy
Feotbal Uruery Heis amember of the
100 Group of Finance Directos

10 Davelewis(49) M 4 »
Indepandent Non-Executive Directar

Dave was apponted to the 8oard asa
Non-Executive Diractor in Novernber 2012

Expenence

Dave 15 an experienced exscutive with strong
operaticnal expertise and has held a variety
of leadership reles at rvleverin Europe
South Amencaand Asia Including President
for the Americas and Charmanof Unilever
UK and Ir eland

Extemnal Appointments

Dave s Presicent Personal Care for Urilever
phe. wharg he also sits on the Unilever
Leadersiup Exacutive

11 James Murdoch (41) & t
Non-Executive Diractor

lameswas apponted tothe Board as a
Maon-Crecutne D rector i Fetiruary 2003
He served as Chef Executive Officer and
Executive Director (2003-2007)and as
Cnawman fram 200/ until April 2012

Expeneénce

James 5 Co-Chief Operating Officer
at21st Century Fox and brings ssgruficant
media sector knewledge and expe-ence
Batween 2000 and 2003 he was Charman
and CEQ of Star Group Litited and hald
Non Executve Drector roles at
GlaxoSmuthKline pk (2009 2012)

and Satheby's Q010-2012}

External Appolntments

As Co Cheef Qperating Officer James s
amembe of the Board of Directors and
Exacutive Committee at 21st Century Fox
He alsoserves as a membar of the Board

of News Conporation arvd s a Mon-Exacutive
Diracter of Yankee Global Enterprises

12 MatthieuPigasse (46) %
Indepandent Non-Executive Director

Matthieu was appanted to the Board as
Nen Exgoutive Directer in November 200t

Expariance

Matthueu 1s Deputy CEQ of Lazard in France
andvice Charman of Lazard inEurcpe He
has also served as evillan admirustrator of
the French Minstry of Econony and Financa

External Appontnents

in addivon 1o role at Lazard Matthey
has a number of interests n media and
publishing, natably Le Monde and the
Hutfington Post (France) Matthiey s a
Board mernber of Group Lucen Barrére SAS
an operator of Wxury notels and restaurants
Derichebourg arecycling and maintenance
services business and Relax News a French
news agency dediated toleisure news

Governance - Board of Directors

13 Danny Rimer (43)
Independent Non-Executive Director

Dannywas appointed to the Beard as
A Non-Execut v Drector i Apnl 2008

Expenence

Danmy bnngs significant international
Irvestment, finance expenence and
krowiedge of ntermet infrastructure
software and services techrlogy
comMUNICat:ons end @-commerce
businesses threugh hisrole as Genaral
Partner of the ventura capital firm Index
ventures Management LLP (Index vVenturas)
Prior to joururg Index Ventures he wasa
(General Partner of The Barksdale Group

Extesnal Appaintments

Darwy serves on @ number of boards
including Etsy Inc. Frst ibs Inc, Flipboard
ng. FON Wireless Limited Nasty Gal inc,
fightScale Inc and Viagogo,

14 Arthur Siskind (75) ¢
Non Executive Drector

Arthurwas appainted to the Board asa
mon Executiva Director in Movember 1957

Expenence

Arthur brings aver 30 years experience
gained through executive and fegal counsel
roles at Meows Corporation (subsenuently
renamed 21st Century Fox) Arthuris abighly
experenced legat practitianer and member
of tha Bar of the State of New York since 1962

External Appointments

Servor Advisor to the Cha rman since January
2005 and Director Ementus since October
2012 of Nst Contury Fos

15 Pndy Sukawaty (59) e
Independent Non-Executive Director

Andywas appainted to the Board as
a Non-Executive Dhrector in.sune 2013

Experience

Andy 15 Executive Chavrnan of Inmarsst ple
globaf mobie satelite communications
provider and has prewviously hald anumber
of senior management positiens in the
telecommunications ndustry including
Chwef Executive and President of Spaint PCS
and Chief Executive of NTL (UK) and reles at
LS Westand AT&T

External Appomitments

It addition to his role at inmarsat pie, Andy s
Mon-Executive Chatrman of the Suparusory
Board of Ziggo NV, a Dutch natonal madia
and communicallons company
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Govemnance - Corporate governanca report

Corporate governance report

Chairman’s overview

On behalf of the Board it gives me great pleasure to introduce this
year's corporate governance report.

As a Board, we are the stewards of the Company It s our responsibility
to ensure that the Company s strategy 1s aligned to the interests of
our investors and takes account of the interests of all the Company's
stakeholders Asindividuals we believe that effective corporate
governance Is based on honesty integnty and transparency and

can only be fully realised within an environment of open robust

and effective debate This I1s the Board culture we foster at Sky

and it 1s my personal responsibility as Chairman to ensure that

we continue to hive this culture and promote 1t within our business

Following last years external Board evaluatien and in ine with
corporate governance best practice during the year aninternal

Board evaluation was undertaken The feedback from the evaluation
confirmed that the Board and each of its Committees continue to
operate effectively and that each Director continues to make an
effective contnbution and retains a strong commitment to ther

role The resultng development themes that arose from the evaluation
are discussed on page 57

The Board has established arrangements to evaluate whether the
information in the annuat report is fair balanced and understandable
Further detail of these arrangements can be found on page 55 Asa
result of thus the Board considers the annual report and a¢counits
taken as a whole 1s far balanced and understandable and provides
the Information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company's
performance business model and strategy

Dunng the year we have continued our work in promoting greater
and more effective engagement with our shareholders Andy
Higginson our Executive Directors and have met with institutional
investors and analysts Along with Tracy Clarke Chairman of

the Remuneration Committee, we wilt continue to engage with
shareholders over the course of the corming financial year

Nick Ferguson
Chairman

Compliance with the UK corporate governance code
The UK Corporate Governance Code as revised in September 2012

(the "Code™) provides the standard for corporate governance in the UK
The Finanaial Conduct Authonty regurres listed companies to disclose
whether they have complied with the provisions of the Code
throughout the financral year

The Board considers that the Company has fully complied with the
provisions and applied the main panaples of the Code for the whole
cf the year ended 30 June 2014 This sectton of the Annual Report
along wath the Directors remuneration report on pages 59 10 76 the
Directors' report and other statutory disclosures on pages 77 to 80
provide details of how the Company has appled the main pnnaples

Leadership

Role of the Board and its Members

‘The Board has collective responsibibity for the management direction
and performance of the Company and provides leadershipwithin a
framework of prudent and effective controls which enables risk to be
appropriately assessed and managed The Board sets the strategic
direction ensunng that the necessary resources are in place for the
Company to meet its objectives and deliver sustatnable performance

The Board takes along-term outiook and sees itself as respansible to
awde range of stakeholders whilst pursuing its objectives in a manner
consistent with itg statutory duties for the benefit of the Company's
members as a whole

The Directors of the Board are selected on the critena of proven skill
and ability in their particutar field of endeavour and a diversity of
outlock and expenence which directly benefits the operation of the
Board as the custodian of the business A fuli blography of each Board
member s provided on pages 46 and 47

Roles and responsibilities

The roles of the Charrman and CEQ are separate and have been so
since the Company’s shares were admitted to isting in 1994 The roles
and expectations of each Director are clearly defined and recorded
within their letters of appointment orservice contracts Theroles
and responsibilities of the Board members are explained below

The Chairman

Nick Ferguson 1s responsible for leadership of the Board ensunng
Its effectiveness on all aspects of its role and setung its agenda
The Chairman is responsible for creating an environment for open,
robust and effective debate This tneludes ensunng wvia the Company
Secretary, that the Directors receive accurate timely and ctear
information

The Chief Executive Officer

Jeremy Darroch is responsible and accountable to the Board for

the management and operation of the Company advanang long-term
sharehalder value supported by the management team Hes atso
rwolved in the management of the seoal and environmental
responsibihties of the Company

Sentor Independent Non-Executive Director (S1D)

The rofe of the SID currently carned out by Andy Higgmson, 1s
responsible far providing support and counterbalance to the role
of the Chairman and prowdes an additional point of contact

for shareholders

Non-Executive Directors

Chase Carey Tracy Jark Dawid DeVoe Martin Gibert, Adine Grate
Andy Higginsan, Dave Lewts James Murdoch, Matihieu Pigasse
Danny Rimer Arthur Siskund and Andy Sukawaty collectively are
responstble for constructively challenging the Executive Birectors
and overseeing the delvery of the Company’s strategy withinthe
nsk and control framework
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Company Secretary

Chrts Taylor has been Company Secretary since November 2012 and 1s
responsible for the following in respect of effective Board operation

« To ensure good information flows wathin the Board and its
committees hetween senuar management and Non-Executive
Directors

To faciitate Director induction and assisting with professicnal
development, and

To adwise the Board through the Chairman of all corporate
governance obligations and developments inbest practice

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Sacretary who advises on corporate governance matters Beard
procedures and other relevant rules and regulations I addition
Directars have the nght to seek independent professional advice
at the Company's expense

Enviranment supportive of challenge

The effective operation of the Board i1s dependent on the inherent
checks and balances within the various Board roles As highly qualified
and successful individuals in their respective fields of endeavour, all
Nan-Executive Directors influence debate and contnbute to decisions
relating to the strategy of the Company its performance and its
impact on stakeholders The Non-Executive Directors are evaluated
and judged on the quality and content of their contributions to Board
debate and are expected to offer alternative viewpoints and challenge
perceptions and decisions as appropriate

Board Agenda

In addition to 1ts reserved and standing matters the Board also
considered and received a number of updates and presentaticns,
giving Directors a further opportunity to explore and analyse
topics such as

+ The Company’s operauons and five year financial plans

+ The general market and economic outlock

+ The compettive landscape apportunities and markat trends

» Growth of exasting business activities

« Existing and new products services and technological developments

To maintain an appropnate level of control over the day-to-day affairs
of the Company the Board has identified certain matters that only it
can approve and thase matters are contamned within the Companys
*Schedule of Matters Reserved to the Board” which can be found at
sky com/corporate

Board delegation

The Board has delegated specific responsibilities to Board committees
notably the aAudit, Remuneration Corporate Governance & Nomenations
and the Bigger Picture committees Each committees terms of
reference can be Found on the Company's corporate website

Governance - Corporate governance report

The Audit Committee has responsibility for oversight of corporate
reporting, nsk management and the Company's relatienship with

its auditor Significant nisks to the business are kept under review
and appropnate matenal controls are sanctioned and employed

as appropnate The Company's principal risks and examples of how
we mitigate those nsks are detalled on pages 40 to 43 For further
details, the Audit Commttee Report can be found on pages 53to S5

The Remuneration Comumittee 1s responsible for setting the
Rermuneraton pohcy for the Board and ensures that no Director is
involved in dearsions affecting their own remuneration The Directors
Rernuneration Report can be found on pages 59 to 76

The Carparate Governance & Nomnations Committee is respansible
for oversight of the structure size composition and succession
planming of the Board and its committees and overall compliance
with corporate governance standards The Report of the Corporate
Governance & Nominations Committee can be found on pages

56 and 57

The Bigger Picture Committee has responsibility for oversight of the soaal
ervironmental and ethicalimpacts of the Company’s activities The report
of the Bigger Pcture Commuttee can be found on pages 57 to 58

The minutes of committee meetngs are made avalabte to all Board
Directors ona umely basis At each Board meeting the charman

of each committee provides the Board with a brief update of the
work currently being carred out by the committee they chair Other
sub-committees and steering groups prowide additional resource
and support to the Board Committees or are formed for specific
tasks A committee of sensor management generally meetsona
weekly basis to allow prompt discussron of relevant business issues
It 15 chaired by the CEQ and comprises the CFO and other senor
executives from within the Group

British Sky Broadeastng Group plc
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Govemance - Corparate governance report

Corporate governance report

(continued)

Board and Committee attendance

Attendance at Board and Committee meetings during the year 1s set out in the table below The table shows the number of meetings each Director

was eligible to attend

Corporate
Governance &
Notes Board Audit Remuneration  Mormnations  Bigger Picture
Number of meetings held in year 7 6 5 3 2
Executive Directors
Jeremy Darroch CEQ 717
Andrew Gniffith, CFQ 7
Non-Executive Directors
Chase Carey 1 67
Tracy Clarke w7 515 272
David DaVioe 717
Nick Ferguson 717 515 33
Martin Gilbert 2 67 56 415
Adine Grate 3 47 5/5
Andy Higginson 4 77 516 273
Dave Lews 7 6/6 313 212
James Murdoch 77 202
Matthieu Pig 5 67 416
Danny Rimer <] 67 272 (il
Arthur Siskind 77 343
Andy Sukawaty Fild 5/5
Notes

1 Chase Caray was unable to attend a Board meeting due to confhicting businass arrangements

2 Martin Gilbert was unable to attend Board and Commuttee meetirgs due 1o prior Abardeen Asset Management engagements

3 Adine Grate was appamted to the Audit committee on26 July 2013 amd was not eligible to attend the meeting on the prioe day

4 Andy Higginson was unable to attend Comemittee meatings due to conficting Rugby Football Union board meetings

5 Matthieu Pigasse was unabla (o artend Board and Committee meetings and the Annual General Meeting due to overseas travel on Lazard business and personalreasons

& Danny Rimer was unable to attend a Board meeting due to pror Index Ventures engagements Danny stepped dawnas Charman and member of the Remuneration Committee
and as member of the Corporate Governance & Nominatens Committes following tha Company's AGM on 22 November 2013

Effectiveness
Board composition and independence

The Board currently compnses 15 Directors made up of two Executive
Directors and 13 Non-Executive Directors At least half of the Board
of Directors are determined to be independent by the Board

in accordance wth provision B 2 of the Code On appointment,

the Charrman met the independence criténa set out in provision
B11of the Code Biographies of each of the Directors are set out

on pages 46 to 47

Chase Carey David DeVae, fames Murdech and Arthur Siskind represent
the Company s largest shareholder 21st Century Fox and as such are
not considered Lo be independent within the meaning of the Code
Each of these Directors has extensive media and pay TV expenence
and makes significant contribution to Beard discussion

The independent Non-Executive Directors bring a wide range of
expenence and expertise to the Group s affairs and carry significant
welght in the Board s decisions The Independent Non-Executive
Directors are encouraged 1o challenge management and help
develop propesals on strategy Time s regularly put aside at

Board meetings to discuss the strategic direction of the Company

Pnor to appointment, and on an annual basis, each Board member
receves and completes a questionnaire to determine factors that
may affect iIndependence according to best practice statements
contained within the Code The responses to the questionnaire
assist the Board n ascertaining whether a Director 1s independent
in character and judgement and whether there are relationships

or tircumstances which are ikely to affect, or could appear to affect,
the Director s jJudgement

Board Composition
. B Chairman
‘ M Exacutive Directars

W independent Non-Executive Directors
M Other Non-Executive Directors

50 British Sky Broadcastung Group ple




Annual Report 2004

Appointments to the Board diversity and successlon planning

The Corporate Governance & Norminations Committee keeps the
Board s balance of skills knowtedge expenence and thelength of
service of individuals under constant review In respect of succession
planning and suppfementing the skill set of the Board, there s an
establshed procedure for the appointment of Directors In brief the
Commsttee identifies the set of skills and expenence requiced and
with the assistance of external search agences selects Indviduals

to take Board positions on review of their indiwvidual ments regardless
of gender race, religion, age or disability Further information on the
work of the Committee dunng the year can be found on pages 56 to 57

The Board has published a statement of its intention to increase
female representation on the Board which can be found on the
Company’s corporate website As required by company legislation,
atable on page 78 lustrates gender diversity amongst the Board

Diversity ratio of Directors appointed inlast 2 years
e @ g © @

* ‘2 * w I| 3

Female Male

Length of time served on the Board (exciuding Executive Directors)

alats alan tals alaly slals dlals alals alats daly sala

0-5years54% 5+ years 46%

Industry/background expenence’

industry related 9 ERKNEEENS]
international 17 WS W TR S T WS S N
Finance/investment 7 MM SR S NN R0 I
Technology/innovation 4 IR
Regulatory 5 SENTENEMESETIN
Executive 7 SN RS N

1 Directors may fzllinto one or more categories

Directors reappotntment

In respect of Code prowision B 71 all Executive and Non-Executive
Directors will retire and offer themselves for reappointment at the
Company s 2014 AGM with the exception of Andy Higginson who
will be retinng from the Board

External directorships

Any external appomtments for the Execuuve Directors are considered
by the Corporate Governance & Neminations Committee Executive
Directors are not allowed to take on the chawrmanship of a FTSE 100
company but are allowed to take up one external non-executive

FTSE 100 appaintment and retain any payments Inrespect of such
appointments

Governance - Corporate governance report

Jeremy Darroch was appainted as an independent non-executive
director of Burberry Group ple on 5 February 2014 and1s a member
of the audit nominations and remuneration committees

Andrew Gnffith was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Just £at plc on 12 March 2014 Andrew serves as senjor
independent director chairman of the audit committee and s a
member of the remuneration and nominations commuttees Detalls
of pay In respect of these appointments can be found In the Directors
Remuneration Report on page 66

Time commitment

Al Non-Executive Directors are advised of the kkely time commitments
required oninduction and are expected to devote suffictent time

for the effective discharge of therr functions The Company provides
Non-Exatutive Directors with appropnate support and faciities

for consideration of the Company s strategy and performance, and
adialogue with the Charrman 1s strengly encouraged so that any
1ssues regarding conflicting commitments and time pressures can

Lie addressed appropnately

Induction and trasning

All mew Directors receive aninduction tallored to therr iIndividual
requiremerits The inducton process Involves meeting with all of the
Company's Executive Directars and Senior Executives This facilitates
their understanding of the Group and the key drivers of the businesss
performance During the year, Drectors have received presentations
from a number of areas of the business including Customer Group,
Sky Media Sky Sports and Strategic Planming Group The Chairman
meets with the Directors throughout the year to review and agree
their individual trarmning and developmental needs

During the year the Company Secretary tn consultation with the
Charman and CEO Faclitated Adine Grates induction programme
The elements of the programme are detailed below

September November February April
2013 2013 2014 2014
Meetings Cuttomer Produce Accompaned
wnth Senvor contact demonstrations J a Sky engneer
Executives centre wisit on customer
Sky News and wISIES
Sky Studio
waiLs

In additien tethis various presentations from prior Board meetings
were made avalable to Adine in order to imprave her understanding of
the Company and the competitive and regulatory landscape in which it
aperates Inview of her pesition as a member of the Audit Committee
Adine met with the external auditors as part of her induction

Board evaluation

In ine with corporate governance best pracuce and following the
external Board evaluation carried out by Alice Perkins of JCA Group
fastyear aninternal Board evaluation was undertaken during the year

The process was faciitated by Andy Higginson our Senior Independent
Director and Charman of the Corporate Governance & Neminations
Committee Further detall of the evaluation process can be found in the
Corporate Governance & Nominations Committee report onpage 57

British Sky Broadcasting Group ple
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Corporate governance report

(continued)

Information provided to the Directors

The Company Secretary 1s responsible for ensunng good information
flows within the Beard and its committees and between senior
management and Non-Executive Directors For each Board and
Committee meetng, Directors are provided with a tallored Board pack
at least cne week pnor to the meeting Toimprove the dehvery and
secunty of Board papers the Company has adopted an electronic
system allowing the Board to easily access information rrespective of
geographic location Directors regularly receive additional information
from the Company between Board meetings including a daily press
summary and a monthly Group perfarmance update Where a Director
was unable to attend a meeting, they were provided with all the papers
and information relating to that meeting and were able to discuss
1ssues arising directlywith the Chairman and CEQ

Conflicts of interest

Under UK company law all Directors must seek authonsation before
taking up any pesition with another company that conflicts or may
possibly conflict, with the Campany’s interests The Company’s Articles
of Association contan provisions to allow the Directors to authornise
situations of potentral conflicts of interest so that a Director 1s not

in breach of his duty under company law

Al existing external appointments for each Director have been
authensed by the Board and each authensationis setout ina
Conflicts Register Directors are required to notfy the Board of
potential conflicts so that they can be considered, and if appropriate
authonsed by the Board In addibion, the Corporate Governance

& Nominations Committee conducts an annual review of Directors
conflicts and reports its findings to the Board The Corporate
Govermnance & Nominations Committee reviewed the Board s conflicts
dunng the financal year and concluded that conflicts had been
appropnately authorised and that the process for authorisation

1s operating effectively The Corperate Governance & Nominations
Committee and the Board will continue to monmitor and review potential
confhets of interest on a regular basis

Drrectors’ and Officers Insurance and Indemmty

The Company recognises that all Directors are equally and collectively
accountable under the law for the proper stewardship of the
Company’s affarrs The Company maintains a Directors and Officers
liabality Insurance policy Additionally the Company s Articles of
Association allow the Company to indemnify the Directors and deeds
of ndemnity have been 1ssued to all Directors of the Company

Relations with shareholders
Shareholder communications

Presentations and webcasts on the development of the business

are available to all shareholders on the Company’s corperate

website The Company also uses email alerts and actively promotes
downloading of all reports enhancing speed and equality of
shareholder communicaton The Company has taken full advantage
of the provisions within the Companies Act 2006 allowing the website
to be used as the pimary means of communication with shareholders
where they have not requested hard copy documentation The
sharehclder information section on page 141 contains further details
on electronic shareholder communications together with more general
information of interest to shareholders which 1s also included on the
Company’s corporate website

Shareholder engagement

The Company:s committed to mamntaining and improving dialogua with
shareholders in order to ensure that the objectives of both the Group
and the shareholders are understoed A programme of meetngs with
nsututonal sharehoiders, fund managers and analysts takes place
each year and the Chairman CEQ, CFO and Andy Higginson have
attended meetings with investors as appropriate The Company also
makes presentations to analysts and investors around the time of
the half-year and full-year results announcement conference calls
are held with analysts and investors following the announcement

of the first quarter and third quarter results, and presentatrons are
made during the year to many existing or potential shareholders at
invastor conferences The Company hosts an annual meebng forits
major shareholders to discuss remuneration policy and this year

as a result of new remuneration regulations the Company irmated

1ts major shareholders to comment on the proposed changes toits
remuneration pokcy

The Annual General Megting

The Board views the AGM as an opportunity to communicate with
private nvestors and sets aside time at the meeting for shareholders
to ask questions At the AGM the Chairman provides a brief summary
of tha Company’s activities for the previous year All resalutions at
the 2013 AGM were voted by way of a poll This follows best practice
and alfows the Company to count a!l votes rather than just those of
shareholders attending the meeting As recomrended by the Code
allresolutions were voted separately and the final voting results
whuch incdluded allvotes cast for against and those withheld togsther
with ali proxies lodged prior to the meeting were released to the
London Stock Exchange as soon as practcable after the meeting

The announcement was also made avalable on the Company’s
corporate website As tn previous years the proxy form and the
announcement of the voting results made it clear that a “vote withheld”
1S not avote In law and will not be counted In the calculation of the
proportuon of the votes for or against the resolution
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Report of the Audit Committee

Charrman’s overview

Governance - Corporate gevemanca raport.

We have had a busy year as
we continued to focus on
the financial performance
of the Company, internal
audit, external audit, nsk
management, compliance
and financial governance

We were pleased 1o welcome Adine Grate as a member of the
Committee in July 2013 Adine has extensive finanaal and investment
management expenence and we value her contribution at Committee
meetings We have continued to receive a number of presentations
from the management of different business argas which this year
included Sky Bet Product Dasign and Development and the Sales and
Marketing Groups to improve our understanding of thetr operations
the nsks they face and how those nsks are managed

We reviewed the tntegration approach of the O2 consumer broadband
and fixed-lIine telephony business both at the start and following

Its completion and receved arange of presentations relating

to data governance health and safety fraud and cyber secunity

We also receved regular reports from the internal audit function

and external auditor

We have considered the processes underpinning the production
and approval of this year's annual report 1o enable the Board to
confirm that the annual report taken as a whole s far balanced

and understandable and provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Company s performance business model
and strategy and a description of how we approached this can

be found below

There were six meetings dunng the year and after eath Committee
meeting | gave an oral update to the Board on the key issues discussed
dunng our meeungs The Committee alsa has private meetngs with
the Company's external auditors throughout the year

You can find additional information of how we have carried out

our role and responsibifities within the remainder of this report
The Committee s terms of reference are availlable on the Company's
corporate website

Martun Gilbert
Committee Charman

Committee compositicn

Martin Gilbert (Chairman)

Adine Grate (appointed on 26 July 2013)
Andy Higginson

Dave Lewis

Matthieu Pigasse

The Committee members have considerable financial and business
experience and the Board considers that the membership as a whole
has suffiment recent and relevant financial experience to discharge
its responsibiities In addition the Board has determined that each
memtzer of the Committee has sufficent accounting or related
financial management expertise In ine with the Code

Attendance at Committee Meetings

Dawid DeVioe and Arthur Siskind have a standing invitation to attend
meetings However their attengiance at these meeungs s as observers
only and in a non-voting capacity The CFO other business and finance
executives and representatives from the external auditor Defortte LLP
and the mtemnal audit department attend meetings at the request

of the Committee The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to

the Committee

Audit Committee Agenda

Focus for the Commuttee this yearhas centred on the following items

Review and recommendation to the Board of the quarterly intenm
and full-year financial statements

.

The review and recommendation to the Board of the dwdend policy
and proposed paymaents

Liquidity and going concern review

Rewview and recommendatron of the budget to the Board

*

Annual reporting - due dillgence procedures and corporate
governance updates

The external auditors assessment of the effectiveness of the
external audit process terms of engagement and scope of audit

Auditor independence and the policy on the provision of nen-audit
services by the external auditor

Audit plans and findings of external and intemal audits

Quarterlyreports from the treasury function on the funding,
iquidity going concermn and operational capabifities of the Group
and compliance with treasury policies

.

Quarterly updates from internal audit on the status of Servor
Accounting Officer (SAQ) certification work to ensure SAD
comphiance,

Paost-acquisition review of the O2 consumer broadband and
fixed-line telephone business

Quarterly reports of all related party transactions dunng the year
In excess of £100 Q00 Invalue

Review and oversight of the Group nsk register nisk methodology
and risk management systerms and processes

Monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of the Group s internal
audit function and controls

Taxation secunty, fraud whistleblowng, cyber secunty health
and safety data protection and internal audit updates

British Sky Broadrasting Group pic
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Governance - Corparate governance report

Corporate governance report

(continued)

Significant accounting 1ssues

when considenng the annual finanaal statements the Committee
reviewed the significant areas of judgement and the Group s citical
accounting policies as set out on pages 90 and 96 with particular
focus on the following

Retall subscription revenue

The majonty of the Group s revenues denve from retall subscnption
packages including hardware, supplied to customers The Group
applies jJudgement in determirung the accounting allocation of
payments received from customers to different elements of the
bundled package taking into consideration the timing and relative
value attnbuted to each element Dunng the year the Committee
received a performance report from the CFO at each committae
meeting that mcluded a rewiew of revenues recogrused in the penod

Inadditton the Committee received presentations on the Group s
sales and marketing operations and on new revenue streams
incdluding NOW TV The Committee considered managemant s
policy and presentations, and considerad the views of the external
auditor and s satisfied that the pelicies have been apphed
consistently and appropriataly

General entertainment programming inventory

The Committes reviews the policy for the recognition of content costs
and seeks assurances from management and takes into account the
views of the external auditor that the policy 1s appropriate and has
been applied consistently The methaod for recognising general
entertamment programming expense requires estimation and
Judgement_In the year the Committee received a presentation from
management that reviewed the accounting methodology for the
different range of programme genres by comparing viewing profiles
and industry benchmarks to ensure that the expense recognised 1s
consistent with the associated relative value receved from broadcast
The Committee 1s satisfied that the polioes have been apphed
consistently are appropnate and are aligned to industry practice

Capitalisaton of intangible and tangible non-current assets

The Committee considered the Group s policies and sought assurances
from management that the Group s project accounting controls are
aperanng as intended and that spend capitalised as Property Plant
and Equipment and Intangible assets meets the relevant accounting
requirements During the year the Committee also received
presentations on the Group s principal project functions induding
product design and development and technology The Commictee
also considered the report from the external auditor The Committee
1s satisfied that the Group has Followed accounting standards
regarding the capitalisation of project expenditure

Internal control and risk management

The Board Is responsible for establishing and maintaining the Group's
systems of internal control and nisk management and for reviewing
their effaectiveness These systems are designed to manage and
where possible eliminate the risk of falure to achieve business
objectwes and to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
aganst matenal misstatement or loss There s an ongoing process
fordentifying evaluating and managing the sigmficant nsks faced
by the Group in accordance with the revised guidance oninternal
control 1ssued by the Financiat Reporting Counal in October 2005
Duning the pened under review no stgnificant failings or weaknesses
were identified

The Committee on behalf of the Board censiders the effecuveness
of the operation of the Group s systems of internal control and risk
management dunng the year, and this revew has been carried out for
the year ended 30 June 2014 and up to the date on which the finanaal
statements were approved This review relatas to the Company and
1ts subsidianes and does not extend to joint ventures The Committee
meets on at least a quarterly basis wath the Group s Director Audit,
Risk Management and Comphance and the external auditors.

There s a comprehensive budgeting and forecasting process and the
annual budget, which 1s regularly reviewed and updated 1s approved
by the Board Performance 1s momtored against budget through
weekly and monthly reporting cycles Dunng the finandal year under
review monthly reports on performance were prowided to the Beard
and the Group reports to shareholders each quarter

In respect of Group financial reporting, the Group Finance team s
respansible for preparing the Group financial statements and there
are well established controls over the financial reporting process
These are also documented in line with the requirements of the Semior
Accounting Officer {SAQ) legislation and the controls are reviewed and
signed off to confirm therr continuous operation by the control owners
twice a year and are Independently tested by the internal audit team
The results of the SAC testing are reported to the Commitlee on a
quarterly basis

Changes ininternal controls

No change in the Group s internal control over financial reporting
has occurred dunng the year ended 30 June 2014 that has matenally
affected or1s reasonably likely to matenally affact the Group's
internal control over financial reporting

Risk registers

There are risk registers which identify the nisks faced by the Group
and these are consolidated into a Group Risk Register The nsk register
framework I1s based on methodology toidentify the nsk based on
impact and likelhood The nsk 1s assessed quantified and measured
which enables discussions on nsk appetite The registers detail the
controls that manage the nsks and where necessary the action plans
to mitigate the nsk exposure

The business develops the action plans and the internal audit team
moniters therr implementation The Committee formally reviews the
Group Risk Register twice a year and there s a rolling programme
where senor executives from the business prasent therr nsk
management plans

The internal audit team provides objectve assurance as to the
effectiveness of the Group s systems of Internal control and risk
management to the Groups operating management

The Group s pnnapal nsks and uncertainties are detailed on pages
40to 43
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Fair balanced and understandable assessment

To enable the Board to confirm that the Annual Report taken as a
whole s fair, Balanced and understandable a processwas approved
by the Committee which invelved establishing a steenng committee
consisting of stakeholders from Corporate Affairs, Investor Relations
Group Finance the Bigger Picture Company Secretanat and Legal
which had oversight of the production of the Annual Report.
Comprehensive due diigence procedures and guidance were
developed ta assist with the review process and requirements of
the Code The Disclosure Committee maintained oversight of the
review process and submitted certification to the Committee prior to
approval that the necessary complance requirements had been met

Disclosure controls and procedures

The Campany mamtans disclosure controls procedures and systems
that are designed to ensure that information requtred to be disclosed
as part of the Company s UK Iisting obligations is accumulated and
communicated to managerment including the CEQ and CFO as
appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures

Auditor independence

For the year ended 30 June 2014 the Committee has reviewad audit
independence and scope of non-audit services and independence
safeguards with Deloitte LLP ("Deloitte™) the Group s external auditor
As part of the review the Audit Committee has recerved and reviewed
confirmationin wnung that, in Deloitte s professional judgement
Celoitte Is ndependent within the meaning of all UK regulatory

and professional requirements and the objectivity of the audit
engagement partner and audit staff is not impaired

The Committee was satisfied throughout the year that the chyectivity
and independence of Deloitte was not in any way imparrad by either
the nature of the non-audit related services undertaken durng the
year the level of non-audit fees charged or any other facts or
crcumstances Audit and non-audit services provided during the year
were appraved by the Committee Ananalysis of auditor remuneration
is disclosed in note § to the consolidated financial statements

Audit and non-audit services

The Group has a policy an the prowsion by the external auditor of audit
and non-audit services which categorises such services between

« Those services which the auditor 1s not permitted to provide

- Those services which are acceptable for the auditor to provide and
the prowision of which has been pre-approved by the Committee
and

+ Those services for which the speaific approval of the Committee
1s required before the auditor 15 permitted to provide the service

The policy defines the types of services falling under each category
and sets out the cntena which need to be met and theinternal
approval mechanisms required to be completed prior to any
engagement An analysis of all services provided by the external
auditor 1s reviewed by the Committee on a quarterly basis

Governance - Corporate governanca report

Dunng the year the following examples were deemed to be
pre-approved in accordance wath the policy

+ Comfort procedures in relation to debt programime update

« Assurance of certain KPls for the Bigger Picture Review

Effectiveness of external auditor process

Dunng the year the effectiveness of the audit process was assessed
by the Committee Group Finance team and other key internal
stakeholdersin the form of a questionnatre The areas under

review were

+ Quality resources and scope of planning of the audit

.

Objectvity independence and transparency of the audit

Identification of key accounting judgements significant audit
and accounung Issues

Level of technical knowledge and professional scepticism

Understanding Sky as a bustness its values and culture and
challenges it faces

Qualty of reporting and communications to the Audit Committee

The responses to the assessment were discussed which confirmed
that Delaitte are performing as expected Celoitte continue to
demonstrate strengths in the majonty of these areas

There are no significant findings from the assessment and Deloitte
continue to carry out an effective and robust external audit

Audit partner rotation

The external auditor i3 required torotate the audht partner responsible
for the engagement every five years The current jead partner started
his term of office 1n relation to the 2010/11 financtal year As the audit
partner enters the fifth year of engagement with the Company

it has been agreed that a new audit partner be imited to Commitiee
meetngs to ensure a smooth and orderly transition In terms of orderly
succession and to safeguard challenge 2nd objectity the current
audit partner will rotate after the 2014115 audit

Tenure of external auditor

The regulatory regime relating to mandatory audit tendering has
significantly changed in the UK and Europe The Committee is closely
rmonitoring these developments and taking inte account that
Deloitte has been the external auditor of the Company since June
2002 1t expects to conduct an audit tender before June 2020 The
Committee is satisfied with the quality of challenge scepticism

and execution by the current auditers and takes intc account the
Committee s annual assessment of the quaty of the external audit
process the Company's strategic plans and the implementation of
the EU audit directive inthe UK
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Governance - Corpacate Bovernance report

Corporate governance report

(continued)

Corporate Governance & Nominations Committee
Chairman s gverview

We have had an active
year, continuing to grow
and diversify our Board
and Committees

A

We were pleased to recommend Tracy Clarke as Charr of the
Remuneration Committee, in place of Danny Rimer who stepped
down as both Chairman and a member of the Remuneration
Committee followng the Company’s 2013 AGM We further
recommencded Adine Grate to the Board of Directors and

as a member cf the Audit Committee

Trus year an internal Board evaluation process was undertaken
following on from last year s external evaluation The results of
the evaluation were encouraging and confirmed that the Board
and its Carmmuttees continue to operate effectively with each
of the Directors making valued and effective contributions

The Board as a whole welcames the opportunity to adapt to
innovations and ¢change within the field and continues to actively
progress inibatives such as addressing gender balance on the Board,
soureing the nght skills to complement our talented management
team and creating robust succession plans to safeguard the
Company s future performance

There were three meetings held during the year and after each
Committee meeting | reported to the Board on the key issues
discussed dunng our meetings You can find further information
of how we have carred out our role and responsibilities within
the remainder of this report. The Committee s terms of reference
are available on the Company’s corparate website

Andy Higginson
Commuttee Charrman

Committee composition

Andy Higginsen (Chairman)
Mick Ferguson

Dave Lewis

Arthur Siskind

Attendance at Committee Meetings

The CEC and General Counsel attend the meetings from time to time
and the Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee

Corporate Governance & Nominatians Committee Agenda

Focus for the Committee this year has centred on the following items
« Board and Committee composition

+ Internal Board evaluation

+ Rewview of Non-Executive Director independence

« Rewview of Directors conflicts of interest

+ Succession planning

= Changes to the bisting Rules for companies with controlling
shareholders

Activities dunng the year

Recruitment processes

During the year the Committee has continued to review the
composition of the Board and its committees There s a formal
recruitment process to identify candidates who meet the
Board s cnteria

In the case of Adine Grate the most recent appointment to the
Board the Committee engaged with Ridgaway Partners an external
recruitment consultancy to help identify possible candidates and run
the recruitment process Ridgeway Partners has no other connection
with the Company The ttming and recrutment process of Adines
appointment was started inthe pror year and was completed in this
financial year The recruitment process includes

Briefing of external recruitment consultancy to ensure greater
understanding of the Company s requrements

Review of a shortlist of potential candidates

Rewview of candidate 5 background experience and skill set,
and potential areas for strengthening the Board

Candidate interviews with members of the Committee and the CEC

Committee composition

During the year the Committee reviewed the composition of all
Committees and it was agreed that Adine Grate be appointed to the
Aucht Committee on 26 July 2013 and Danny Rimer would step down
as Chawrman and member of the Remuneration Committee and as

a member of the Corporate Governance & Nominations Committee
following the Company’s AGM in Nowvember 2013 Tracy Qarke was
identified as a suitable successor and she succeeded Danny Rimer
as Chatrman of the Remuneration Committee after the Company s
AGM On 24 July 2014 Martin Gilbert stepped down as a member

of the Remuneration Committee and Adine Grate was appainted

in hus place with effect from 25 July 2014
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Board evaluation
Dunng the year time was scheduled with each of the Directors
to discuss the following

the effectiveness of the Board as a whole

B

the mix of skills and expernence on the Board

the effectiveness of Board processes and procedures,
» development of the Company s strategy and
+ the performance of Board commttees

The Chairman of the Committee reported the findings of the evaluation
to the Committee and the Board and noted a number of strengths

The quality and structure of the Directors induction pragramme
was comprenensive

The guality of mformation presented to the Board was of a high
standard

The most recently appointed members of the Board had embedded
well and had strengthened the diversity of the Beard

-

Board strategy sessions Insight and priaritisation of projects had
enriched Board discussion

Overall, it was concluded that the Board and its Committees continues
to operate effectively

Independence

During the year, all Non-Executive Directors were asked to complete
questionnames to enable the Committee to determine ther
ndependence The Committee reviewed the questionnaires and
recommended to the Baard that there be no ¢thanges to the
independent status of the current Independent Non-Executive
Directers The Non-Executive Directors who are considered by the
Board to be independent are clearly identified on pages 46 to 47

As noted on page 50 James Murdaoch, Chase Carey David DeVoe and
Arthur Siskind are not considered to be independent within the meaning
of the Code however, fallowing the evaluation the Committea considers
and agrees that each of these directers continue to make a significant
contribution to Beard and Committee discussions

The Committee s review took Into consideration the fact that
Andy Higginson has served an the Board for more than nine years
Provision B 11 of the Code states that serving more than nine years
could be relevant to the determination of a Non-Exacutive Directors
independence The Committee concluded that Andy Higginson
continues to demonstrate the essential charactenstics of
Independence expected by the Board and that there are no
relationships or aircumstances that are lkely to affect or could
appear to affect, tus judgement In July 2013 the Board agreed that
he should remain on the Board for an additional year in crder te
maintain a degree of certainty and smooth handover of Board and
Commuttee experience and knowledge and help to integrate the
recently appointed Independent Non-Exacutive Directors Andy
Higainson will step down at this year s AGM

Directors conflicts

The Committee reviewed the Board s conflicts dunng the financial

year and concluded that Directors conflicts had been appropnately
authornsed and that the process for authonsation was operating
effectively The Committee and the Board will continue to monitor
and review potential conflicts of iInterest and take action to mitigate
them as necessary

Governance - Corporate governance repant

Bigger Picture Committee

Chatrman’s overview

During the year, the Committee
has continued to provide
strategic leadership in relation
to Sky's Bigger Picture
initiatives

There were two meetings during the year and after each Committee
meeting | reported to the Board on the key issues discussed dunng
the meeting

| am pleased to repart that the Committee has seen significant
progress across all areas of the programme from the launch of
Sky Academy in November 2013 {0 regucing envircnment impacts
and working with suppliers to strengthen cur approach to
responsible sourcing

In 2013 once again we were identified as one of the leading companies
in the Publishing Media sectar of the Dow Jones Sustainability Index

Progress aganst afl of our Bigger Picture commitments and imitiatives
1s detalled on pages 27 to 31 and at sky comibiggerpicture

The Committee believes that the focus and scale of the work being
done continues to make a significant cantnbution to Sky s ability
to bulld a better business for the long term

James Murdoch
Committee Charrman

Composition of the Commuttes

James Murdoch {Chairman)
Tracy Clarke
Dave Lews

Attendance at Committee Meetings

The CEQ CFO senior executives representatives from Corporate
Affasrs and the Biggrer Picture team attend meetings at the request
of the Chairman The Deputy Company Secretary acts as Secretary
to the Committee The Committees terms of reference are available
on the Company’s corporate website

Bigger Picture Committee Agenda

Focus for the year has centred on the following items

« Areview of cansumer tracker results

.

Responsible cyciing and impact of our partnership with British Cycling
Sky Rainforest Rescue

Sky Arts Ignition

Sky Academy

Ermvironmental performance
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Corporate governance report

(continued)

Activities dunng the year

The Committee oversaw a number of key developments in relation

to Skys Bigger Picture inttiatives notably the launch of Sky Acacemy
with a target to help up to one million young people fulfil their
patentiat by 2020 The development of Sky Academny as the hub

for Sky's commitment to enable young people has supported the
recommendation of the Committee for greater focus on a clear set
of intatives with a common goal The Committee noted the early
progress of all strands of Sky Academy initiatives including reaching
over 20,000 young people since its lzunch through Sky Academy
Skills Studros and expanding into Scotland extending our Sky Academy
Scholarshups offenng with the launch of TV scholarships, reaching
mare than 95 000 young people through Sky Sports Living for Sports
initiatives expanding into Ireland and making a strong start against
our commitment to doubling the number of career opportunities
available for young people within Sky

The Cammittee also reviewed progress aganst Sky s environment
targets and accompanying commitments The Committee noted
that there has been a further reduction in carbonintensity by 2%
over the last year and they discussed the potential carbon savings
of the campus redevelopment plans and progress insmplementing
these plans See page 79 for more informaton on our emissians

CQver the year the Committee reviewed the positive progress
made in raising consumer awareness and favourability through
the Bigger Picture initatives The independent quarterly mass
consurmer survey shows further growth in awareness of Bigger
Picture initiatives increasing to almeost 70% of customers and
almost half of prospective customers

The Committee expressed its support for the commencement of the

next phase of the cycling partnership with British Cyding after a great

year of strong pro-cyching and grassroots performance and staff and

stakeholder mvolvernent The Committee encouraged the business

to take a stronger position in promotng safe cychng through Sky's

partnership with Bnush Cycling, particularly around the use of helmets ~
In marketing campangns and focus on mutual respect between cyclists

and motorists

The Committee oversaw the success of the Sky Rainforest Rescue
partnership wath WWF 1n reacheng the overall campasgn fundraising
target of £8 mill:on a year early The partnership continues to drive
effarts for the project area in Acre Brazil and activities to raise
awareness In the UK of rainforest deforestation in the Amazon

The Committee reviewed the achievements of the Sky Arts ignition
Memory Palace project with the V&A_along with the launch of a
groundbreaking digital project and on-air programming in Ireland
in partnership with Rough Magic and Opera Tounng Company

The Committee continues £o note the positive econonmic, sooal and
ermaronmental contribution of Sky in the UK and Ireland through
1ts approach to seeing the bigger picture For more information

go to sky com/biggerpicture
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Directors’ remuneration report
Annual statement from the Chairman

Dear Shareholder

On behalf of the Board | am pleased to present our report on
Directors remuneration for the year ended 30 June 2014 which
shareholders will be asked to approve at the 2014 AGM The report
takes account of the new regulations how we have mplemented
our policy over the past 12 months and cur proposed approach

to executive remuneration for the next three years Having been
appointed to the role of Committee Charr in November | was keen
to gauge the views of our larger institutional shareholders on Sky's
approach to executive remuneration Therefore, over the summer
bwrote to our major shareholders outhmng the changes we

were proposing to make to qur remuneration policy and met

with the institutional voting bodies This process of engagement
was very constiuctive

Our approach to remuneration has served Sky and its shareholders
extremely well for many years Our sustained focus on paying for
performance with a high ratio of varable pay to fixed pay and the
consistency in which we have applied our policy has delivered
outstanding business results Qur remuneration philosophy continues
to motivate and retain our Executive Directors providing stability to
the Company in anincreasingly competitive and changng landscape

It also aligns the interests of the Executive Directors closely to those
of our shareholders

Executive pay at Sky remains firmly tied to the achievement of
stretching performance goals which are linked to business strategy
The measures we use are based on specific areas that drive growth
and returns to shareholders We believe that the concept of a
threshold, target and maximum formula to underpin annual bonus
decisions would compromise our drive for growth so we set one dear
and ambitious stretch target for each bonus measure every year

Awards under the Long Term Incentiwve Pian are determined annuatly
The normal award for both Executive Directors has remained the same
for a number of years This year the Committee decided to increase the
leve! of award granted to the CFO in recognition of his brpader role and
Increasing contribution Awards vest every other year whichis atypicat
and this year there was no vesting of share awards relating to the
current performance penod This means that if the business performs
well next year total remuneration will ke when share awards are

due to vest. It will then go down agan the following year when there

IS no vestung

The Committee reviews the design and effect of this plan regularty and
continues to support the current approach as it provides consistency
and a good balance between long and short-term thinking Grants are
made as a fixed number of shares rather than as a multiple of salary
This de-links the award from automatically increasing wath salary and
15 key in drvang growth and achieving streng alignment with returns

to shareholders

Strong performance aganst key metnes has underpinned our bonus
decisions again this year Against a challenging backdrop we have
added 23% more products and 33% more customers excluding the
acquired 02 consumer and product base Qurinvestment to accelerate
take up and usage of new connected TV serices is delivenng well with
three million Sky HD boxes connected qver the year As a conseguence
adjusted revenue excluding ESPN 15 up 7% to £76 billion and adjusted
basic earnings per share 1s flat at 60 0 pence despite the investment
in cennected TV services and one-off step up tn Premier League costs
The Committee therefore awarded the CEO and CFO a maximum
bonus at 200% and 150% of salary respectively Notwithstanding the
outstanding performance of both Executive Directors the Committee
made modest base salary increases of 2 5% to the CEQ and 2.96%

to the CFO which recogmises therr contribution without compromysing
the philosophy of retairung a relatively low level of fixed pay versus

aur comparator group

The ratio of fixed pay tovariable pay s 12% 88% for the CEO and
13% 87% for the CFO compared to the average of 23% 77% for our
comparakor group

The continued support of our shareholders s wital Inresponse

te feedback we have recerved over the last 12 months and in the
context of the new reportaing regulations we have made a number
of changes to our remuneration policy These changes seek

to further protect and align shareholder interests and are set
outin our remuneration policy on pages 60 to 66 and include

* The mtreduction of a cap on annual awards under the Long Term
Incentive Plan

» Ammimum shareholding requirement for the Executive Directors
+ Aformal policy on malus

+ More explanation and disclosure on performance outcomes

+ Morenformation on our recrutment pohcy

We will continue to refine and develop the structure of our report
to provide clanty on our remuneration approach and welcome
further feedback from our shareholders on I1ts content

Tracy Clarke
Remuneration Committee Chair

For further information an remuneration go to

Qur Remuneration Policy
Annual Remuneration implementation Report

Page 60
Page 67
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Directors’ remuneration report
Our Remuneration Policy

This section describes the Directors’ Remuneration Policy which shareholders will be asked to approve at the 2014 AGM The Committee intends
that this policy will take effect from that date and will be effective untit the 2017 AGM

Remuneration Principles
There are frve key principles which underpin the remuneration policy for our Executive Directors

+ Qur approach to executive pay 1s aigned to the interests of our shareholders

» We reward our people faily and competitively to attract motivate and retain the skills we need o deliver sigrificant growth

The level of base pay 1s deaded in the same way as for all employees, based on individual performance and experience the size and scope
of the role and takmg account of total remuneration

The majonty of executive pay s tied to the achievement of stretching performance goals linked to the strategic pricrities for the business
Executive Directors will be well rewarded only if they meet or exceed the maximum performance standards set and achieve stretching levels
of performance

+ We take care to ensure that remuneration does not inadvertently encourage inapproprate nisk taking.

Our principles set the foundation for our remuneration policy and ensure that decisions made by the Committee are consistent and appropnate
in the context of business priorties shareholder interests and employee pay

Summary of the Executive Directors’ Remuneration Policy
The table below shows how our remuneration policy inks to our business strategy and its terms of operation Any contractual commitments
entered into or awards made before the policy comes into effect or a person became a director will be henoured

Purpasa and link to strategy

Oparation

Maxmnum opportunity

Performance hnk

Basesalary Attracts and retamns
Executive Directors
taking account of
personal contribution
and size of role

Reviewed annually typically
with effect from 1 tuly

Salary s set relatively low versus
the peer group of compantes

of simifar market capitalisation
to the Company

The Committee [ooks at
pay practices in selected
international media companies

Decisions on salary also take
into account the performance
and expenence of the iIndmnidual
changes in the size and scope of
the role, and the level of salary
awards across the business

Any increase will bein ine with
those provided to employees
within the Company

Higherincreases may be made
as a result of a change inrole
or responsibility or other
performance-based
clreumstance

Thas 1s.1n line with our policy
for all employees

Indradual and business
perfarmance s taken
Inte account when
reviewing salaries

Pensian Provides opportunity for
longer-term saving and/or
retirement provision

Executive Directors may recewe
employer contnbutions into the
BSkyB Pension Scheme acash
supplement in lieu of pension,
or a combination thereof

All payments are made as a
percentage of basesalary

Employer contnbutions to the

pension scheme or an equivalent
cash supplement are around 16%

of base salary

NfA
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Purpose and link to strategy Operation Maximum opportunity Parformance knk
Other Provides Executive Executive Directors are entitled Benefits provided to Executive N/A
benefits Directors with a range of to arange of benefits including, Directors are broadly in ine wth
core and fringe benefits as  but not imited to pavate medical  those offered to allemployees
part of a competitive total  insurance life assurance (ll health Where exceptions are mace,
remuneration package Income protection paid holiday, the Committee ensures that,
sick pay Sky subscnption package  benefits offered areinline
company car allowance and use with market practice for sumilar
of a cormpany car generally for roles in similar arganisations
business travel purposes
The Committee may make minar
changes to benefits orinclude
ather benefits that are deemed
appropriate from time to time
Refocatien allowances and
benefits may be provided
where needed to assist with
the relocation or intermationa!
transfer of an Executive Director
and theirdependents
Annual Drives and rewards the Performance measures and The maximurn bonus Performance 1s assessed
bonus delivery of stretching weightings are reviewed at apportunty Is 200% of against a combination of
annual performance goals  the startof each year to take base salary and 15 payable operational and finangial
aligned with the account of current business for the achievernent of objectives which are
Company s averall plans Stretching performance stretch objectives determined at the start
business strategy targets are set annually The minimum payment 1$ zera of the year
Performance aganst targets The Committee beleves the The weighting of the
1s monitored quarterly and measures Is determined
concept of threshold, target and
determined annually based at the start of each year
maximum compromises our dnve
on assessment of performance for growth so we set one clear but each measure will have
versus each target and ambytious stretch target a maxmum weighting of 40%
Payment is made only once annual  for each performance measure Further details are
results have been audited every year The achievement disclesed in the notes
In exceptronal circumstances the of streteh goals will resultin to the policy table and
a payout at Maugmum or the Annual Remuneration
Committee will use its judgement
to adjust bonus outcomes up near—maxlmudehe Committee  Implementation Repart
or down to ensure alignment exercises its Judgement an on page 68
of pay with performance and the level of bonus payable For
with shareholder interests outcomes short of maximum
within the policy maximum
Co- Encourages persanal Executive Directors may invest The maximum annual award The performance measure to
Investment investmentand up to half of thetr earned annual 15 150% of base salary determine the vesting of the
Plan (CIP) shareholder ahignment, Bonus in the Company s shares shares s chosen each year

rewards long-term focus
and perfermance
achievement

These investment shares are
matched on a gross basis and
vest based on performance over
a three-year pericd Shares are
matched by up to 15 shares for
every1share nvestedn hine
with performance

Cnce vested partiopants
may exercise the awards
duning a five-year period

Participation in the plan
1svoluntary

No matching awards are capable
of vesting f performance 1s
below threshold a1 for 1 match
may vest when the minimum

of therange 1s met and all the
shares vest {or 1 5 shares for
every share nvested) when the
maximum of the range is met

and 15 tymically a financial
measure such as EPS growth

Further details on the
performance cnitena for
threshold and maxmum
vesting are disclosed in
the Annual Remuneration
Implementation Report
on pages 68 to 70
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Directors’ remuneration report
Our Remuneration Policy

(continued)

Purpose and hink to strategy Operation

Maximum opportunity

Perfermance ink

LengTerm  Rewardslonger-term

Incentive value creation and altgns
Plan (LTIP) Executive Directors
interests with those

of sharehalders

Awards ara made annually under
the terms of the scheme rnutes
based onnumber of shares

This de-links the award from
In¢reasing automatically

with salary adjustments

Vesting of awards s based on
stretching performance over a
three-year period Awards are
made in Year 1 and in Year 2 with
vesting of both awards at the
end of Year 3 This means that
vesting of awards occurs every
other year with zero vesting

in between

Oncevested partiapants may
exerase the awards duning
afive-year penod

Ininstances of gross misconduct
allunvested LTIP awards lapse
immediately

This year the Company has
introduced a policy on malus
The Committee may use 1ts
ciscretion after having taken
ndependent advice to withhold
or vary downwards any unvested
awards typically in the event of

« the matenal restatement
of the Company’s audited
results or

actions attributable to
particpants resulting in
material reputational damage
tothebusiness

The Committee will determine
how to apply this sanction
on a case-by-case basis

The Committee reviews the
number of shares to be granted
annually A typical award for the
CEQ s 600 000 shares in any
12-month period

This year the Company has
intreduced a maximum award
leve! of 900 000 shares un any
12-month penod Such awards
will only be made in exceptional
grcumstances

100% of the shares vest when
the performance cntenia are
met in full I the mimmum of
the range1s met each year
for all measures 26% of the
shares vest

Performance measures are
typically a mix of cperational
measures and relative TSR

Operational measures used
inthe past have included EPS
operating cash flow and
revenue growth

The weightuing of the measures
may vary but1s typically 70%
operational measures and
30%relative TSR

Around 650 employees are eligible for awards under the Long Term Incentive Plan A smaller number of employees (around 130) are also invited to

participate in the Co-Investment Plan All employees are eligible to receve a comprehensive benefits package and the majonty are eligible to receive

either a monthly or quarterly cash incentive ar an annual bonus
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Shareholder ahgnment

The Committee considers sharehclders views as they are received
during the year at the AGM through shareholder meetings and
through cerrespandence This year we wrote to our major shareholders
outlirung our approach to executive remuneration and the changes

we propose to make

We wall continue to engage with our mayor shareholders and welcome
feedback at any time Should we propose to make any major changes
to the remuneration structure we will seek the views of our major
shareholders in advance

The context for setting executive remuneration policy

The pnnciples underlying our executive remuneration policy are
aligned to those that underpin reward for our employees as a whole
which aim to attract motivate and retain people by offering a
market-competitive total remuneration package The Committee
takes into consideration the pay and conchtions of all employees
when determiring the remuneration for the Executive Directors

It does not consuit with employeesin this process

Our performance measures and how they ocperate

Executive pay remains firmly tied to the achievement of stretching
performance goals linked to business strategy The measures we
use are based on specific areas that drive growth and returns to
shareholders We believe the concept of a threshold target and
maximum formula would compromise our drive for growth so we
set ane clear and ambitious stretch target for each performance
measure every year

Annual bonus

The performance measures for the annual bonus are determmed by
the committee based on the busmness pricrities for the year They are
typically a mix of operational and finanwal performance measures

The measures are usually a combination of operatng profit operating
cash flow and a measure of product growth They are all key indicators
of the underlying performance of the business Each year stretch
objectives are set In the ight of the Company’s annual business plan
and the operating enviranment

Co-Investment Plan and Long Term Incentive Plan

Performance measures for the LTIF and CIP are reviewed annually

to ensure alignment with the Company's strategy and shareholders
interests The CIP measure 1s typically compound EPS growth in excess
of RPI over the performance period which ensures close alignment
with our shareholders interests Performance required for threshold
and maximum vesting are described in the Annual Remuneration
Implementation Report, on page 68

The LTIP measures are typicaltly a mix of operational measures and
relative TSR performance with a 70/30 spht The operational measures
are usually EPS growth operating cash flow and revenue growth

As the conversion of profit to cash flow s a key indicator of the
underlying performance of the business 1t 1s used as a measure

th bath the annual bonus and the LTIP

Governance - Drectors remuneraton eport

Qur LTIP vestung cycle 1s atypical and has served the business and
shareholders well since it was introduced in 2005 Vesting occurs

only every other year and as a conseguence the amount of
remuneration delivered to Executive Directors will spike every

other year This approach encourages focus on the longer term

The performance ranges for each measure are reviewed annually in the
light of the Company’s three year plan brokers forecasts and histarical
performance Performance at the top end of the range 1 stretching,

Pay scenaro analysis

The charts below provide an estmate of the awards that could be
received by our Executve Directors under the remuneration policy
for 2004 showing

Mintmum base salary as at 1July 2014 plus pension and benefits
as per the table on page 71 (fixed pay)

Maximum fixed pay plus mauxamum awards for annual borus
(200% of base salary for the CEC and 150% for the CFO)
Co-Investment Plan {maximum deferral of 50% of the annual
bonus into investment shares and full vesting of 1 5x matching
shares})and Long Term Incentive Plan (600 000 shares for the
CEO and 350 000 shares for the CFO)

The Committee sets one clear and armbitious stretch target for
each performance measure [f stretch targets are met then 100%
of maximum for the bonus s paid and the shares awarded under
the LTIP and CIP will vestin full There 1s no additional payment for
achievement over the stretch goals

Awards under the LTIP are made annually but vesting oceurs only every
two years The mpact of this vesting cyde on actual realised pay 1s shown
n the five year single figure remuneration table for the CEQon page 72

Jeremy Darroch CEO

—ong Term Incentive Man
- Lo khtmect Flan
— Arewal Bonwrs

Mirumum m EtIm s Fioact Py

00 w20 30 40 s &0 70 BO 90 100

Em
Andrew Gnffith, CFO
£ ong berm Inoent ve Fan
. 6 harstmant Pan
- Arvvud Eonis
Minmum m EQ7m ™ Focd Pay

p—
Qo 10 20 340 49 50 a0

£m

Scenarios are modelled assuming a share pnce of £8 818 which
ts the average share price aver the period 1 April to 30 June 2014
with no allowance for share price apprecation
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Directors’ remuneration report

Our Remuneration Policy
{continued)

Other share schemes

Management Long-Term Incentive Plan (MLTIP)

The Company also operates a MLTIP for selected employees excduding
the Executive Directors and senior executives who participate In the
LTtP Awards under this scheme are made at the discretion of the CEQ,
within the parameters agreed by the Committee The MLTIP mirrors
the LTIP in design 1n order to ensure abgnment between partiapants
In either plan

Executive Share Option Schemes (Executive Schemes)

The Company has in place Approved and Unapproved Executive Share
Option Schemes No options have been granted since 2004 and we
do not envisage making any future awards as part of these schemes

Sharesave Scheme

The Sharesave Scheme s open to UK and Insh employees and
encourages them to make along-term investment in the Company’s
shares In a tax efficient way The current legislation provides for
employees to save up to £500 per month Currently the lisnit for Sky
employees 1s £250 per month although the Company may deade to
adjust this amount in future Cptions are nermally esercisable after
either three or five years from the date of grant. The pnce at which
options are offered 1s not less than 83% of the middle-market price
on the dealing day /mmedhately preceding the date of mvitation

or the average of the three days preceding the date of invitation

It 1s the policy of the Company toinvite employees to participate

in the scheme following the announcement of the year end

results Currently approxmately 9 000 employees partiapate

in these schemes

Shareholding gurdelines and share ownership

The Comnuttee recognises the mportance of aligning Exacutive
Directors’ and shareholders interests through executives butlding up

a significant sharehalding in the Company This year new sharaholding
requiremnents have been introduced at 3x base salary for the CEQ and
2x base salary for the CFO Executive Directors are required to buld up
their shareholding to the required levels within five years There are no
shareholding guidelines for Independent Non-Executive Direccors but
they are able to partcipate in a monthly share purchase plan See page
73 for further details on Directors interests

How the Remuneration Committee exercises discretion

The Committee retains discretion relating to annual benus TP and
CIP in ine with their rules and accarding to the remuneration palicy

These include but are not Imited to
= Timing of a grant of an award/payment

«» Size of an award/bonus payment up to the maximums indicated
Inthe policy tabte

= Determination of vesting and the apphcation of malus for the LTIP
+ Dealingwith a change of control

« Determination of treatment of leavers based on the rufes of the
plan and the leaver policy

+ Annual review of performance measures and weighting and targets
of the plan from year to year

Any use of discretion wathin the policy framework will be explained
In the Annual Remuneration Implementation Report There may

be exceptional crcumstances under which the Committee may
use discretion or judgementin the interests of the business and
shareholders These exceptional circumstances may be the subject
of discussion wath the Company's major shareholders

Remuneration on recruitment or appointment to the Board

It1s expected that the remuneration package for a new Executive
Director wall be agreed 1n hine with the approved remuneration pohcy
at the ume of appeolntment. The Committee would seek approval from
Its major sharehclders if 1t felt it necessary to pay more to attract the
best candidate The last time an executive appointment was made
the Committee approved a total remuneration package lower than
the previous incumbent.,

Typically base salary on appointment will take into account individual
experience the size and scope of the role total remuneration and
relevant market pay levels Where the intal base salary 1s set below
competitive levels for example to account for someone who may be
newly promoted to the Board the Committee will realign salaryin the
years following appointment assuming the required level of personal
performance 1s met The Committee wil disclose its intentien to do
this at tha time of appointment

Other elements of remuneration will be set In line with our pohey
unless speaific arcumstances dictate otherwise For example

It reay be necessary to use different performance measures initally
for the annual bonus taking into account the time of joning In

the financial year and responsitulities of the indmdual

The Committee may offer one-off cash and/or share-based elements
In addition to the standard remuneration package These willonly be
offered where it considers these to beimperative to attracung the
best external candidate in order to compensate for elements of pay
such as forfeited bonus entitlements and/or unvested long term
incentve awards from an exisung employer Any buy-out of unvested
share awards would aim to match as far as possible the vesting terms
and the expected value of the awards being bought out This prowision
may also include payment for any benefits in kind pensions and ether
allowances previously provided to the indmidual

The Committee may also provide appropnate levels of relocation
assistance and payments to extemnal orinternal appointees who are
required to relocate either within or to the UK on taking up the role

Where an internal candidate Is promoted to the Board any
outstanding vanable pay award or benefits provided in relation

to the previous role may be paid or delivered according to the rules

of the ptan and may be adjusted to take into account the new role
The Commttee may also make an LTIP award on appointment outside
the annual cyele under exrsting shareholder approved plans The value
of such an award will not exceed our normal policy maximum

The remuneration arrangements for any newly-appointed Executive
Director will be disclosed n line with our regulatory obligations
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Key terms of new and existing service contracts

The Committees palicy for the Executive Directors’ service contracts
1s provided below

Notice penod Up to one year s notice for either party and a cne year
non-compete provision The Company may require the
indmdual to continue to fulfil current duties or may
assign garden leave

Paymentn One year's salary plus an amount egual to the benefits

liew of notice  and a pro-rata bonus for the penod up to the
termination date No bonus s payable for the duraton
of the notice penod unless that period is worked

Jeremy Darrach s initial service contract on appointment as CFO
commenced on 16 August 2004 The contract was revised on

7 December 2007 when he became CEQ Andrew Griffiths service
contract was revised on 7 April 2008 when he was appointed CFQ
Copies of the Executive Directors service contracts are available for
inspecton dunng normat business hours at the Company’s registered
office on any business day and will be avallable at the place where the
AGM s held from 15 minutes prior to, and during the meeting

Non-Executive Directors have letters of appointment in place for instial
terms of three years subject to annual reappointment at the AGM
These letters provide that ne compensation is payable on termination
other than accrued fees and expenses The dates of these letters of
appointment are detaled below

Date of Letter of Appointment

Nick Ferguson 15 June 2004
Chase Carey 30 January 2013
Tracy Clarke 1 June 2012

David DeVoe 15 December 2004
Martin Gilbert 29 November 2011
Adine Grate 17 July 2013

Andy Higginson 1 5eptember 2004
Dave Lewis 16 November 2012
James Murdach 7 December 2007
Matthieu Pigasse 29 Novemnber 2011
Danny Rimer 7 Apni 2008
Arthur Siskind 19 November 1991
Andy Sukawaty 1 June 2013

Governance - Directors’ remunerationreport

Payments on termination and loss of office

The Comparny s termunation policy 1s shaped by the key pnnaples that
* contractual terms wil be adhered to and

+ the arcumstances of the termination will be taken into account

Executive Directors senace contracts continue unt the agreed
retirement date or other date as the Company may agree and are
terminable on ng more than one year s notice

The Company may terminate an Executive Director s service contract
by way of payment in keu of rotice by continuing employment for the
duration of the notice penod and/or by assigrung & penod of garden
leave The current Executive Directors’ service contracts also contain
a non-compete provision of ane year from the date of terminat:on

of the agreement

Britist Sky Broadcasting Group plc
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Directors’ remuneration report

Our Remuneration Policy
(continued)

Termination for cause’ and ‘without cause” treatment of salary bonus and benefits

In the event of terrmination ‘for cause salary and benefits would be payable only up to the date of termination No bonus would be payable in the
event of termination ‘without cause the Executive Director would receive one year s salary an amount equal to the value of the benefits he would
have been eligible to receive for one year and a pro-rated banus for the penad from the start of the financial year up to the date of termination
No bonus would be payable for the year s notice perod

Traatment of share plans on termination
Executive Directors entitlements to remuneration under the shareholder-approved share plans upon termination are summarised in the table below

Plan Reasons such as death, radundancy, retirement il health, injury and  Other leaver reasons such as resignation®
disability employing company ceasing to be part of the Group or any
other reason at the discretion of the Committee*

Lnp LTIP awards will not normally be exerasable until the normal All unvested shares will usually lapse on the date of leaving.
vesting date subject to the performance conditions being met However the Committee has the discretion under the plan rles
Award vesting will be prorated according to the portion of to determune whether a proportion of the shares may vest having
the performance penod served unless the Committee taken into account any exceptional croumstances

determines otherwise

Awards may be exercised early in certam circumstances for
example In the event of death or a takeover or change in control

ar Any (nvestment shares held on behalf of the partiopant may Irvestment shares may be sold Any matching award will be
be sold Any matching awards held under the CIP wall vest forfeited However the Committee has the discretion to determine
on the same terms as outhned above in relation to the LTIP whether a proportion of the matching award may vest having

taken into account any exceptional arcumstances

Sharesave Opuions may become exercisable within 6 months, alternatively  Options will lapse and the participant may enly withdraw savings
the participant may choose to withdraw savings accrued under the savings contract

* The share plan rules do not refer to for cause or ‘without cause Termination for zause would normally be dealt vath under Other leaver reasons’ Termination 'without cause
would be dealt with ag any other reason at the discretion of the Committee

It 1s the Company s policy to use its judgement when approving payments to departing Executive Directors within the provision of the plan rules
The Committee will take into account factors such as the arcumstances and timing of the exit the performance of the Executive Director while
in office and the interests of shareholders

External appointments

External appointments for Executive Directors are constdered by the Company s Corporate Governance & Nominations Committee to ensure they
would not cause a conflict of interest and are then approved by the Chairman on behalf of the Board 1t 15 the Company s policy that remuneration
earned from such appointments may be retained by the individual

Jeremy Darroch became a Non-Executive Director of Burberry Group plc in February 2014, and serves as a member of thewr audit, remuneration
and neminations committees As at 30 June 2014 Jeremy had earnad £32666

Andrew Griffith became a Non-Executive Director of Just Eat plcin March 2014 and serves as senior Independent director chairman of the audit
committee and as a member of the remuneration and nominations committees As at 30 June 2014 Andrew had earned £195167
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Annual Remuneration Implementation Report

Rermuneration of the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors

The table below summanses the key components of remuneration for aur Chairman and Non-Executive Directors

Element and purpose

Operation

Fees Reflect individual responsibilities and
membership of Board Committees Attract
Non-Executive Directors with the skills and
expenience required to cversee the
implementation of strategy

Fees for the Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors are reviewed
annually having regard to independent advice and surveys

The Corporate Governance & Nominations Committee determines the
fees paid to the Charrman taking into account the complexity of the role
and the time and commitment required The Board of Directors determines
the fees for the Non-Executive Directors

Additienal fees for membership of or charmanship of a committee
or for other responsibilities are payable in addition to the basic fees
Fee levels for 2014 are disclosed In the table on page 75

Non-Exacutive Directors can elect to recewve a portion of their fees in the
Companys shares which are purchased on a monthly basis Directors who
are deemed to be affilated with 215t Century Fox are not permitted to take
part in this facility Non-Executive Directors’ interests are disclosed in the
tableonpage 73

Benefits Additional benefits may be pronded for business purposes e g provision
of a car to travel toffrom meetings
Non-Executive Directors are not eligible to jow Sky s pension plan
Non-Executive Directors are elipbsle to receive a Sky subscription package
Bonus and Share Non-Executive Directors are not eligible to participate In any bonus or share
FPans scheme offered by the Company
Notice and Each Non-Executive Director's appointment 1s for aninitial thiee year term
termination In accordance wath the UK Corporate Governance Code all Directors submit
provisions themselves for annual reappaintment

Mon-Executive Directors each have a letter of appointment these
appointrments may be terminated without notice Any fees payable would
be settled at the date of termination Noe continuing payment of fees are
due f a Non-Executive Director s net re-elected by shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting
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Annual Remuneration Implementation Report

(continued)

This section sets out how our remuneration policy was implemented
dunng the year ended 30 June 2014 and how It wll be /mplemented
for the coming year It also sets out the ink between Company
performance and Executive Directors remuneration, the context

in which our policy operates, details on our Executive Directors
shareholdings and the general governance of Directors remuneration

Varable pay outcomes for the year ended
30 June 2014

As shown on pages 36 to 38 the business has delivered another year
of strong growth As well as delivening a strong financial performance
the core businesses are growing well and new areas of business are
acceferating Against this background we set out below payments
made for the annual benus P and LTIP for the performance year
ended 30 June 2004

Annual bonus for2014 performance

The annual bonus dnves the achievement of annual financial and
operational business goals The plan for 2014 for Executive Directors
and senior executves was based on three equally-weighted measures
which were identified by the Commuttee as being key indicators

of performance driving grawth far our business and returns to

our shareholders

» Net Product Growth
= Adusted Operating Prefit
= Adusted Operating Cash Flow

We believe the concept of threshold target and maximum would
compromise the drive for growth so one clear stretch targat s set
for each performance measure each year

This year we have provided maore explanation on performance
outcomes The table In the next column sets out the Committees
assessment of performance versus the three measures for the last
performance period The Committee sets stretching targets which
must be delvered to achieve the business plan and for the Executive
Directors to receive the maximum bonus There are no payments
above maximum for performance above these stretch targets

The Committee will use Its judgement to assess the level of bonus if
a stretch target Is not met, taking Into account personal performance
the performance of the other measures, the underlying performance
of the business and other factors which the Committee constders to
be matenal to the results achieved

Operauanal performance has been strong, with outperformance
against each of our targets Despite difficult economic market
concditions pard-for product growth has increased by 23% excluding
the acquired O2 consumer and product base Operaung profitis
also ahead of target at £1 260 miflion duning a year of investment
Operating cash flow has seen another strong performance at
£1284 million

Based on the excellent absolute and relative performance against
the key bonus measures and the strong personal performance

of both Executive Directors the Committee has deaded to award
bonus payouts of 200% of base salary for the CEO and 150% for
the CFO respectively

Remuneration Committee s assessment of performance outcomes
versus targets set

Parformance Level of
Measure Weighting Performance achievement
Paid-For Preducts Growth 33% +31m IS
Operating Profit 33% £1,260m I
Operatng Cash Flow 33% £1284m 'S
Cverall Performance VS
Performance Key

Achievement against stretch goals Upte) v
Below stretch goals X

The Committee judges that disclosure of specific targets 1s
commercially sensitive because we operate In a hughly competitive
market both in acquinng customers and bidding for key nghts with
a very smalt number of players We therefore beleve that early
chsclosure of eur targets would of fer an unfar competitve
advantage and would De to the detriment of our shareholders

We will make retrospective disdosure when the targets are deemed
to be no longer commercially sensitive We anbicipate this to be twe
years after the end of the performance penod

Vesting of shares under the Co-lnvestment Plan 2011-2014

Under the terms of the CIP offered on 30 August 2011 for the
performance period 1July 201 ta 30 June 2014 Executive Directors
voluntarly deferred 50% of their earned 2011 bonus into iInvestment
shares which were then matched by the company up to 15 times
the gross equivalent of their investment

The table below shows the perfarmance conditions for vestung of
the matching shares

EPS growth performance Match awarded
{annual average growth {number of matching shares
over three year term) awarded per investment share*)
Less than RPI +3% 00
RP1 +3% 10
RPl +4% 17
RA1 +5% 133
RP1 +6% 15
More than RPl +6% 15

Stratght hine interpolation between points
* 18 ohequivalent gross basis

The average adjusted basic EPS growthrate of 13% per year over
the three-year periad exceeds the threshold for maximum vestng
The Committee has agreed that the matching shares under the
2071 CIPwill vestin full on 30 August 2014

Executive Long Term Incentive Plan 2012-2015

The next vesting of awards made under the terms of the LTIP

will occur on 26 July 2015 for the three-year performance period
1July 2012 te 30 June 2015 This will indude vesting of awards made
In 2012 and 2013 Awards made 1n 2010 and 2071 vested in Judy 2013
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Leong Term Incentive Plan and Co-Investment Plan Awards made in the Year (audited)
The table below sets out the LTIP and CIP awards made to Executive Directors during the year ended 30 June 2014

Mirumum % Maximum %

No ofshares Face Value on of shares that  of sharesthat
awarded Grant Date Date of Grant  Performance Peniod  Vesting Date can vest canvest

Long Term Incentive Plan
Jeremy Darroch 600000 26073 £4932000" 13712 - 300615 260715 % 100%
Andrew Grffith 320000 260713 E2630400 010712-300615 260715 0% 100%
Co-lnvestment Plan
Jeremy Darroch 162794 280813 £1369088' 010713-300616 280816 C% 100%

{ Andrew Griffith 74 243 280813 £624 434 01013 -300618 280816 0% 100%

1 market price a1 date of LTI award was EB 220 on26 July 2013

2 Market price at date of QP matching award was £8 410 on 28 August 2013

Performance conditions for the Long Term Incentive Plan
‘ Awards made 1n July 2013 were “Year 2" nil-cost option awards That 1s, they refer back to the three year performance penod baginning on 1July 2012
| and ending on 30 June 2015 and are subject to the following performance conditions

1 Operational targets - 70% of the award

There are three equally weighted operational performance measures each of whichis a key indicator of Sky s continued success

» EPSgrowth akeymeasure of shareholder returns

= Operating cash flow measures our ability to generate and manage cash

« Revenue growth core to our growth strategy

The Commettes beheves that early disdosure of cur targets would give an advantage to our competitors and would be to the detriment of our
shareholders We will make retrospective disclosure when the targets are deemed to be nolonger commercially sensitive We antiapate this
to be two years after the end of the performance period

Points are awarded for performance on the three operational measures as fallows

For EPS two points are awarded for growth of RPI +3% per year with the maximum ten points awarded for RPI +5% per year or more

.

For operatng cash flow and revenue growth, one point1s awarded for 75% achievement of target’ on a sliding scale up to ten points

for 105% or more

One point equates to 10% of the award vesting with maximum vesting for 21 points or more vesting on a straight-ine basis between these points
v There s no addittonat award for achrevernent abave 21 points

If the minimum range (s met each year for all measures 26% of the shares vest

Annual performance measures are shown in further detail in the table below

Average EPS Growth Operating Cash Flow Revenue Growth
Performance achieved Performance achieved

Performance achieved Points awarded (% of target) Points awarded {% of target) Points awarded
RPI+5%p a 16 105% or mare 10 105% or more 0
RPI+45%pa B 100% 8 100% 8
RPl+ 4% pa 6 95% & 95% ]
RPI+35%pa 4 S0% 4 S0% a4
RPi + 3% p.a 2 B5% 2 85% 2
Lessthan RPI +3%pa o 75% 1 5% 1
Less than 75% o] Less than 75% o]

\ The top end of the EPS growth range was set for awards in 2012 and 2013 at RPI +5% pa Thisis equivalent to growth in earnings of 26% over three
years if RPl s 3% a year This level of growth in earnings was set at a level which exceeded consensus research analysts estimates
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(continued)

2 Relative TSR performance - 30% of the award

The Company's TSR performance 1s measured relative to the TSR of
the constituents of the FTSE 100 If the Company's TSR performance
1s below median the TSR element of the award lapses in full

For median performance one-third of the shares subject to

the TSR condition may vest with all the shares vesting for upper
quarule performance Vesting s on a straight-line basis between
these points as shown below

TSR Vesung Schedule
Payout

% of grant)
0

L
Boww S = L] 8BS o 5 8a
dan

Finai TSR ranx (%)

TSR calculations are conducted independently by Towers Watson
adwsors te the Committee

Performance conditions for the Co-Investment Plan
CIP awards made in 2003 are subject to the performance conditions
set outin the table below

EPS growth performance Match awarded
(annual average growth (number of matching shares
over three-year tern) awarded perinvestment share®)
Less than RPf +3% 00
RPI +3% 10
RP+4% 125
RPI +5% 18
More than RPI+5% 15

Straight Ine interpolation between points
T (@ omequivalent gross basis

Review of past performance
TSR performance

The graph below shows the Company’s TSk for the five years to

30 June 2014 measured as the value of a £100 holding in ardinary
shares at the start of the penod The performance is shawn relative
to the FTSE 100 and FTSE Media 350 indices which represent the
broad market indices within which the Company s shares are traded

TSR 15 a measure of the returns that a company has provided for
its shareholders refiecting share price movements and assuming
remnvestment of ddends Datais averaged over three months
at the end of each financial year
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Payments made to Executive Directors
The table sets out total remuneration recerved by the Executive Directors for the financial year ended 30 June 2014 and the pnor year ended 30 June 2013

The vesting pattern of awards under the LTIP is biennial shares vest every other year over a three year performance period This means that every
other year no payment s due as there 1s no vesting of awards The followsng year assuming performance conditions are met, there will be a payment
which covers the equivalent of two years vesting,

The 2013 single figure for total remuneration Inctudes vesting of a one-off additional LTIP award madein 2011 at the time of the News Corporation bid
as disclosed in the 2011 Repart on Directors' Remuneration 2013 was also a vesting year for our LTIP

SIUBULIDACD

Single Figure for Executive Directors’ Total Remuneration (audited)

Long Term
Salary Taxable Benefits” Pargion’ Bonus* Ino#ntive Plan® Co-hmmstmant Flant Yo

£ 00 24 2013 2014 03 xna w3 204 013 201 03 2004 03 014
éerernyh 935000 960700 17122 17907 158564 149491 1823250 1921400 12525000 nfa 1568046 t831754 17026982 4881252
arroc

en?;et:\' 573500 6021775 16104 16M5 019 8348 831575 903263 64N350 nfa 593954 B44703 8556702 2449736
nffi

1 Executive Directors salanes werencreased on1.July 2013 by 2 75% for the CEO and 5 0% for the CFO reflectng thewr excellent performance The increase for employess who
wera simitarly categorised as outstanding performers ranged up to 10% The average increase for employees at that time was 2 5% nising to 3 5% for those earning fess than
£50 000 peryear with a range of 0% 1o 10% for performange promotions and market adpistments

Taxable benefits include company car or car allowance and healthcare

Pensiom comprises a cash allowance in leu of comparwy contributions For Jaramy Darrach Andraw Gnffith became a deferred member of the penson scheme an 1 December 2013
and recewved £16 667 11 campany contnibutions and £66 914 as a ¢ash allowance

Bonus shows the full amount earned shortly after year endinwhich the performance measures apphed incuding amounts deferred through the CIP The payout for the 2013
berus was 195% of base satary for the CEO and 145% far the (RO The figures for 2014 are 200% for the CEO and 150% for the CFQ The Executive Directors deferred 50% of ther
borus into shares through the CIPin 2013 and it 1s anticipated they will do so for 2014

Leong Term Incentive Plan shows the market value of the awards vested immediately followang the end of the refevant performance penod The figure for 201315 for LTiP shares
vestad on 29 july 2013 with a share price of EB 35 and includes the vesting of the one-off additional award of 300 000 shares for the CEQ and 135,000 far the CFO made In 201
at the time of the News Corporationbid No LTIP shares vested for the performance penod ended 30 fune 2014

Co-trwestmnent Plan shows the markat vatue of the matcung shares that vasted on 31 August 2013 with a share price of €8 525 and the estrnated value of matdung shares.
that are due to vest on 30 August 2074 using the average share price over the period 1 April to 30 June 2014 of EB B1G

o [PEL)
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CEQ's remuneration

Thetable below provides a summary of the total remuneration for the
CEQ aver the past five years including bonus payout, LTIP and CIP vesting
levels. The table hughlights the unique structure of our remuneration
policy in which vesting of LTIP shares occurs every two years rather than
the customary 12 month cycle Asour LTIP awards are made as a fixed
number the realised value 15 purely reflectve of any share price growth
over this penod, keeping it aligned to shareholders nterests

It should be noted that total remuneration for 2013 includes vesting
of the one-off additional LTIP award of 300,000 shares made in 2011
at the time of the News Corporation bid The average annual totak
remuneration paid to the CEO over thus five year penod, excluding
thisone-off award is £7553,14

Annual Ltne e

Bonus vesting vesting

payout rates rates

Single against against against

figure  maximum  maxmum maxnum
of total opportunity oppertunity opportunity
% % %

Year remuneration

2014 4 581,252 100 nfa 100
2013 170269822 975 100 100
2012 45500377 100 nla 100
201 1133554 100 83 nfa
2010 2678744 10Q nia nia

1 Includes vatuation of CIP matching shares due to vest on 30 August 2014
using the average share price over the peniod 1 Apritte 30 June 2004 of £6 BIB
inchudes vesting of the one-aff additiorsal LTIP award of 300 000 shares
rmade in 2071 at the time of the Naws Corporation bid

3 Includes first year of vesting af CIPintroduced in 2010

~

Percentage change in CEQ 5 remuneratfon

The table below shows the percentage change in CEQ remuneration
from 1 July 2013 to 30 June 2014 compared to the average change for
allemployees

CEQ % change Allemployees % change

Base Salary 275% 375% employees earming less than
£50000 2 5% above ES00Q00

Taxable Benefits 58% 0%
Annual Bonus =5 3% 130%

Relative importance of pay spend

The table below shows total employee costs and dividend payments
to shareholders for 2013 and 2014

2013 2014
{Em) (Em)
Total employee costs 489 1044
Crndend payments 441 485

Implementation of Remuneration Policy for the
coming year to 30 June 2015

The Committee has determined that the remuneration policy will
be tmplemented as set out below for the year ending 30 June 2015

Base salary

The average salary increase for our employees effective 1 July 2004,
was 3 5% for those earning less than £30Q00 and 2 5% for all other
employees with increases up to 10% for outstanding performance
promotions and market adjustments Notwithstanding the
outstanding performance of the CEO and CFO the Committee has
decided to make modest base salary adustments of 2.5% for the
CEO and the 2 S6% for the CFO effectve 1 July 2014 to recogmise
therr contnbution without compramising the long held intent to
maintain a well-leveraged package with a relatively low level of
fixed pay versus our pay comparator group

Taxable benefits and pension

No changes

Annual Benus and Co-lavestment Plan

No changes We expect that both of the Executive Directors witl
partcipate in the CIP for thisyear The perfarmance conditions
for the vesting of shares are as per the detals set out on page 70

Long Term Iincentive Plan award

The normal annual awards for the Executive Diwectors have remained
unchanged for some years at 600 000 for the CEC and 320 000 for
the CFO The Committee agreed that Jeremy Darroch would be granted
an award of 600 000 shares and Andrew Gnffith would be granted an
award of 350 000 shares on 25 July 2014 The ad)justment for Andrew
Griffith reflects the consclidation of his broader role and his increasing
contribution to the business This s the Year 1 award of the 2014-2017
Plan These awards will nermally vest on 25 Juty 2017 subject to the
performance measures being achieved

The performance conditions for this award remain the same as for
those made in 2012 and 2013 and operate using the same methodology
assetout on pages 69 and 70

EPS growth target 1S as par page 69 and the TSR vesting schedule
IS as per page 70
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As at the end of the financial year the CEQ had beneficial ownership of 411 695 shares equivalent to 3 82 x base salary and the CFO had benefical
ownership of 17903 shares equivalent to 175 x base salary using the year end closing share price of £8 93 The CEQ currently exceeds the new
shareholding guidelines it is expected that the CFO will meet the new guidelines dunng the next financial year

Interests in Bnitish Sky Broadcasting Group plc shares (audited)

Notes June 2013

Shares

acquired
Asat30 duringthe Asat30
year June2014

Executive Directors

Jeremy Darroch 1 354575 57120 41595
Andrew Gnffith 12 14452 26052 117903
Non-Executive Directors

Nick Ferguson 22128 79 30039
Chase Carey 3 - - -
Tracy Clarke 895 842 1737
David Davoe 3 -
Dave Lewis 705 2,049 2,754
Martin Gilbert 2281 1352 3673
Adine Grate 4 - 9194 9194
Andy Higginson 5 6571 949 7520
James Murdoch 3 - - -
Matthieu Pigasse 2477 1287 3764
Danny Rimer 21122 4580 25702
Arthur Siskind 3 - - -
Andy Sukawaty 95 1068 1164

"No-

hw

wm

Allinterests at the date shown are benefical and there have been no changes between 1 July and 25 July 2014

Interests inshares inctude shares purchased under the Co frvestment Man on 28 August 2013 at a price of £8 3998

Andrew Griffith disposea of 22,601 ordinary shares at a price of E8 495 on2 Septembaer 2013 These were acquired 1n 2010 as investmant shares under the CIP and were released
on 31 August 2013 when the matching award vested

The Directors assocated with 215t Century Fax are not permitted 1o particpate in the monthly share purchase plan

Ading Grate purchased 9194 sharas at £8 615 on 18 September 2013

Andy Higginson particspates in the Dinadend Reinvestment Plan
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Qutstanding share awards Jeremy Darroch (audited)

Share pnce Market  Date from

At 30 June Vested  Exercised Lapsed At30June atdateof price an which
Date of award Motes 2013 durngyear dunngyear during year 2014 award exercse exerasable Expirydate
LTIP
250710 12 600000 600000 600,000 - - £Mo £835 290713 290718
250 12 9000030 900000 900000 - - E7120 £8135 290713 290718
260712 600000 - - - 600000 E7065 nla 260715 260720
CIP Matching 3
270809 204 425 - - - 204 425 £5405 nfa 270812 270817
3080 183935 183935 - - 183935 £7075 nfa 30813 310818
30080 207728 - - - 207729 E6 460 nfa 300814 300819
280812 184145 - - - 184149 £7640 na 280815 280820
Sharesave
250909 3591 - - - 31591 E433 nfa 010215 010815
Outstanding share awards Andrew Griffith (audited)

Sharapnce Market  Date from

At 30 June Vested  Exercised tapsed At30June atdateof price on which
Date of award Notes 2013 duringyear dunngyear dunng year 2014 award exercise exercisable Expiry date
LTIP
290710 123 320000 320000 320000 - - £7110 £835 29013 290N8
290 123 455000 455000 455000 - - £7120 £835 290713 290718
260712 320000 - - - 320000 £7065 nfa 280715 260720
CIP Matching a8
30810 69672 69672 68,672 - - £7075 £EB49 310813 310818
30081 95793 - - - 95793 £6 460 nfa 300814 300819
280812 84713 - - - 843 £7640 nfa 280815 280820
Executive Options
0903 3] 44,184 - 44184 - - 662 £835 Moeo? 00913
060804 6 19819 - 19,819 - - £503 £835 060808 060814
Sharesave
16091 17N - - - 17 E508 nfa 010215 10815

1 Thesharaswere exercised and subserquently sold on 29 July 2013 the aggregate valus recerved by the Exacutive Directors on exercrse of their 2010 and 201 LTiP awards before

tax was £18 996 250 (2013 £4 095 588).

o bW

Following the vesting of awards partiapants continuing to be employed by the Company have five years 1o exercise their award
Performance condiions refating to LTIP awards made in 2010 and 207 were disclosed in the 2013 Annual Report.
Dindends are payable on shares purchased thraugh the CP During the year the Executive Directors recerved £134 560 (2012 £101 590}
Performance conditions relating to CIPmatching awards can ba found on page 68
The Company has not made any Executive Share Qplion awards since 2004
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Single Figure for the Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors
The fallowing table sets out the single figure for total remuneration for the Charman and Non-Executive Directors for the financial year ended
30 tune 2014 and the prior year ended 30 June 2013

2014 Total 2013 Total

Fees' Foes

Nick Ferguson 462 375 450000
Chase Carey 60,000 24162
Tracy Clarke? 95180 78,000
David DeVoe 60,000 58 000
Dave Lewis 20,000 45,312
Martin Gilbert 106000 94 666
( Adine Grate® 66,987 nfa
Andy Higginson 145000 151,333
James Murdoch 95000 93000
Matthieu Pigasse 70000 68000
Danny Rimer? 77769 103833
Arthur Siskind 70000 68000
Andy Sukawaty 70000 5666

1 Basic fees ware increased by 2 75% with effect from1 July 2013

2 Tracy Clarke replaced Danny Rimer as Chairman of the Remuneration Commuttee on 21 November 2013 Danny Rimer stepped down as Chairrnan and member of the
Remuneration Committee and as a member of the Corporate Gevernance & Nomenations {ommittee on 22 Novembser 2013

3 Adine Grate was appamted Non-Executive Director on17 July 2013 and joined the Aadit Cormmittee on 26 iy 2013

Fees for the Charrman and base Non-Executive Director fees were wncreased by 2 5% effectve 1 July 2014, as detailed in the table below:

1July 1luly

2004 2003

£ £

Chairman (all inclusive fee) 473934 462 375

Deputy Charrman' 30000 30000

Board member 81500 60000
Additional responsibilities

Senior Independent Director 40000 40000

Chawman of Committee 25000 25000

Member of Committee 10000 10000

‘ 1 Therole of Deputy Chairman is not required to be filled at this prasent ume

Payments to past Directors and loss of office
There were no payments made to past directors and no payments made for loss of office during the financial year

Shareholder voting outcomes

The Company 1s committed to engaging with shareholders and every year holds a meetng te talk about remuneratson with major shareholders and
mstitutional investor groups This enables the Company to take shareholders views fully into account when making decisions about remunaration
At the AGM held on 22 November 2013 774% of shareholders voted in favour of the Directors report on remuneration

Resolution Viotes For % For Votes Aganst % Against Tota!VotesCast  Votes Withheld
Approval of the remuneration report 1020278744 774% 297928 375 226% 131820719 7495148

The Committee has sought the views of major shareholders since then and has made a number of important changes to the Company s poficy In
response to this as set outin the Chairman s statement on page 59

Membership of the Commuttee

During the year ended 30 June 2014 the Committee chared by Tracy Clarke met five tmes Nick Ferguson Martin Gilbert, and Andy Sukawaty are
members of the Commuttee Danny Rimer stepped down as Chairman and member of the Committee on 22 November 2013 Martin Gilbert stepped
down as a member of the Committee on 24 July 2014 and Adine Grate was appointed in his place with effect from 25 luly 2014 Attendance during
the year 1s shown on page 50
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(continued)

Role of the Committee

The role of the Committee Is to oversee the remuneration policy so that the Cormpany IS able to recruit, retain and motivate (ts Executives and

reward their ndvidual contributions in a fair and responsible manner The Committee reviews the design and structure of employee incentives

and 15 responsible for approving the key terms of employment for the Executive Directors or any senior executive who reports directly to the CEQ

The full terms of reference for the Committee are available on the Company s corparate website !

Committee activities during the year
The table below shows a summary of the key areas discussed by the Committee dunng the financial year

July2013 November 2013 February 2074 April2014 June 2014
Performance outcomes for  Performance update - Performance update - Performance update - Policy review on 2014
bonus, LTIPand P bonus LTIP and CIP bonus LTIP and CIP bonus LTIP and CIP Directors Remuneration
Target setting for 2013/14  Update on 20i3reporting 2014 Directors’ New reporting and Repart {
Review draft Directors seascn EET:::T::::: Report implhcattons for Sky :gparo::e:‘ot Shareholder
Remuneration Report Shareholder feedback and =q 83g!
proxy voting guidance Benchmarking for
2014 Directors Executive Directors

Rernuneration Repart
requirements

Aduwisors to the Committee

Towers Watson acted as independent advisors to the Committee throughout the year The Committee 1s satisfied that the adwice it receives on
Executive Directors remuneration 1s independent and objective Terms of referance are monitored throughout the appointment Towers Watson
subscribes to the Remuneration Consultants Group's Cede of Conduct in relation to executive remuneraton The Code danfies the scope and
conduct of the role of remuneration consultants when advising UK isted companses The fees paid to Towers Watscn for their sernces m relabion
to directors’ pay totalled £193 612

The CEO and the Director for Pecple provide information and advice and attend meetings as required The Committee s also supported by the
Company Secretary Finance and Hurnan Resources functions Ne indwiduals are invotved i the deasion in relation to their own remuneraticn
The Remuneration Repart was approved by the Board of Directors on 25 July 2014 and signed on its behalf by

Tracy Clarke
Chairman of Remuneration Committee
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Directors’ report and statutory disclosures

In accordance with the Companies Act 2006 the Corporate governance
report on pages 48 to 58 and information contained in the Strategic
report forms part of this Directers’ report and are incorporated

by reference

The Directors present ther report together with the audited
conschdated and parent company financial statements for the
year ended 30 June 2014

Dividends

The Cwrectors recommend a final dvidend for the year ended 30 June
2014 of 20 0 pence pes ordinary share which together with the
interim dividend of 12 0 pence paid to shareholders an 32 Apnil 204
wll make a total dvidend For the year of 32.0 pence (2013 300 pence)
Sulyect to approval at the 2014 AGM the final dwvidend will be pad

on 5 December 2014 to shareholders appearing on the registerat

the close of business on 14 November 2014

Share capital

The Company's Issued ordinary share capital at 30 June 2014
compnsed one class of ordinary shares All of the tssued ordinary
shares are fully paid and rank equally In all respects Further details
of the Company's share capital 5 disclosed in note 23to the
consolidated financial statements

Interests invoung nghts

Infermation provided to the Company pursuant to the UK Listing
Authonty s Disclosure and Transparency Rules (DTRs)1s published
on a Regulatory Information Service and on the Company's website
As at 30 June 2014 the Company had been notified under DTRS

of the following sigruficant holdings of votng rnights inits shares

Amount  Percent of
Identity of person or group owned class

21st Century Fox UK Nominees Limited! 61676543 3914
BlackRock Inc? 88 682765 506

1 Diract holding which I1s subject to restrictions on lts voting rights
(please sea Voting nghts” below)
2 Indirect helding.

There have been no changes to the above sigrificant heldings between
1 July and 25 July 2014

At 25 July 2014 3914% of the Company s shares are held by 21st
Century Fox UK Nominees Limited a company incorporated under
the laws of England and Wales which 15 an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of 21st Century Fox The Murdoch Family Trust beneficially
owns less than 1% of 21st Century Fox Qass A Common Stock and

38 4% of its Class B Common Stock As a result of Rupert Murdoch s
ability to appoint certain members of the Board of Directors of the
corporate trustee of the Murdoch Family Trust Rupert Murdoch may
be deemed to be a beneficial owner of the shares beneficially owned
by the Murdoch Family Trust. Rupert Murdoch however disclaims any
benefical ownership of those shares Also Rupert Murdoch reports
beneficial ownership of an additional 1% of 21st Century Fox Qass B
Common Stock Rupert Murdoch s reported benefical ownership of
21st Century Fox also includes 8,729 432 shares of Class A Commaon
Stock held by the GCM Trust that is administered by independent
trustees for the benefit of Rupert Murdaech s minor children however
Rupert Murdoch disclaims beneficial ownership of such shares Thus
Rupert Murdoch may be deemed to beneficially own in the aggregate
tess than 1% of 21st Century Fox Class A Common Stock and 39 74%

of its Class B Common Stock although as stated above, Rupert
Murdoch disgaims beneficial ownership of the shares of 21st Century
Fox beneficially owned by the Murdoch Family Trust and the GCM Trust.,

The Employee Share Ownership Plan ("ESQPT) was established to
satisfy awarts made to participants of the Company’s employee

share plans The trustees of the ESOP have waived the nght to
dindends payable inrespect of the shares held by it, except to the
extent of 0 G001% of the dnadend payable on each share AL 30 June
2074 the ESOP had an interestin 17 308,999 of the Company's ordinary
shares The Trustees who are Independent of the Company have ful
discretion on how they vote the ordinary shares held by the S0P

Votng nghts

The Company's Articles of Association provide that subject 1o any
nghts or restncbions attached to any shares ona show of hands every
mernber present in person of by proxy shall have one vote and on a
poll every member shall have one vote for every share ef which he 1s

a holder Onapoll votes may be given either personally or by proxy or
(in the case of a corporate member) by a duly authorised representative

A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at a general meeting

may appoint ene or more proxies to attend and vote instead of him

If @ member appoints more than one proxy he must specify the
number of shares which each proxy 1s entitled to exercise nghts over
A proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company Holders of the
Company s ordinary shares do not have cumulative voting nghts
Avcting agreement dated 2t September 2005 was entered into
between the Company BSkyB Holdco inc, 21st Century Fox and 21st
Century Fox UK Nominees Limited which became unconditicnal on

4 November 2005 and caps 215t Century Fox UK Nominees Limited s
voting rights at any general meeting at 3719% The prowisions of the
voling agreement cease to apply on the first to oceur of a number of
arcumstances which inciude the date on which a general offer 1s made
by an ndependent person {as defined in the voting agreement) for the
ordinary share capital of the Company

Restrictions on transfer of securnities

There are no specific restrctions on the transfer of secunties sn

the Company which Is governed by the Articles of Assoaation and
prevailing legislaticn nor)s the Campany aware of any agreements
between helders of secunties that may result tn restnctions on the
transfer of secunities or that may result in restrictions on voting nghts

Variation of nghts

Subject to the Comparves Act 2006 nghts attached to any dass
of shares may be varied with the consent in wrnitsng of the halders
of three-quarters in nominal value of the ssued shares of the class
or with the sanction of a spetial resolution passed at a separate
general meeting of the shareholders

Directors’ powers in relation to the Companyissuing and buying
backits ownshares

At the Company's AGM on 22 November 2013 the Company was
granted the authority to returm ES00 million of capital to shareholders
via a share buy back pragramme This authority will apply untul the
conclusion of this year's AGM and is subject to an agreement between
the Company and 215t Century Fox (and others) dated 25 July 2013
whereby following any market purchases of shares by the Company
21st Century Fox would sell to the Company sufficent shares to
maintain its percentage sharsholding at the same level prior 1o those
market purchases
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(continued)

At the Company s AGM on 1 November 2012, the Company was granted
the authenty to return £500 million of capital to shareholders via

a share buy-back programme This authority was subject to an
agreement between the Company and 21st Century Fox {and others)
dated 28 July 2012 on substantially the same terms as the 2011 Share
Buy-Back Agreement

At the Company s AGM on 22 November 2011 the Company was
granted the authonty to return £750 million of capital to shareholders
via a share buy-back programme This authornty was subject toan
agreement batween the Company and 21st Century Fox (and others)
dated 28 July 2011 whereby following any market purchases of shares
by the Company, 21st Century Fox would sell to the Company sufficent
shares to maintain its percentage sharehelding at the same leve! as
applied prior to those market purchases (the "2011 Share Buy-back
Agreement”) The price payable to 21st Century Fox would be the price
payable by the Company in respect of the relevant market purchases

Artictes of assooation

The Companys Articles of Association may only be amended by special
resolution at a general reeting of shareholders

Board of Directors and theirinterests

The Directors who served dunng the year were Nick Ferguson
Jeremy Darrach, Andrew Griffith Chase Carey Tracy Clarke Dawid
DeVoe, Matthieu Pigasse Martin Gilbert Adine Grate Andy Higginson
Dave Lewns James Murdoch Danny Rimer Arthur Siskind and Andy
Sukawaty The bicgraphical details of the Directers of the Company
are given on pages 46 and 47

The Directors interests in the ordinary shares and options of the
Company are disclosed within the Directors remuneration repart
onpages73to 75

Appointment and retirement of Directors

The Directors may from time ta ime appoint one or mere Directors
Any such Director shall hold office only until the next AGM and shall
then be ehgible for reappaintment by the Company s shareholders
At the Company’s 2014 AGM all current Exacutive and Non-Executive
Directors will retire and offer themsetves forreappointment
compliance with the Code with the exception of Andy Higginson
whio will retire from the Board at the 2014 AGM

Alternate Directors

A Director may appoint any other Director or any ather person to act as
hus Alternate An Alternate Director shall be entitfed to recene notice

of and attend meetings of the Directors and committees of Directors

of which tug appainter 1s a member and not able to attend The Alterpate
Director shalt be entitied to vote at such meetings and generally perform
all the functions of his appointer as a Director in his absence

On the resignation of the appointer for any reason the Alternate
Birector shall cease to be an Alternate Director The appointer may
alsa remove his Alternate Director by notice to the Company Secretary
signed by the appointer revoking the appointment.

An Alternate Director shall not be enutled to fees for his servce
as an Alternate Director

Chase Carey David DeVoe Arthur Siskind and tames Murdech have
appointed each of the others to act as their Alternate Director

Equal opportuniies

The Company is an equal epportunities employer and believes that
everyone should have full and fair consideration for all vacancies
promotions, training and development Should an employee become
disabled dunng therr employment at Sky where possible the Company
wiil actively retrain and adjust the emaronment to allow them to
maxrmise the employee s potential Over the course of the year, the
Company has partnered with vanous not-for-profit organisations with
the aim of providing more opportunities for people wath disabilities
Furtherinformation can be found on page 35 and at sky comiworkforsky

Diversity

The Company treats all people equally, farly with respect and without
prejudice Decisions about people s employment with the Company
are based on ability performance and qualficatons This principle
also apples when the Company makes deasions about development,
pramotion pay and benefits

The Caompany defivers some of the mast diverse content and services
available to a wide range of consumers and rt values the same diversity
wathin the business and promotes a culture of opporcunity for all
regardless of background The Company does not tolerate unfar
treatment or discnrmination at work based on ethnicity gender age
religion disability or sexual cnentation

As at 30 June 2004 the table below demonstrates dversity
throughout the Group

Male Female
Board of Directors' 12 87% 2 13%
Senior managers' 105 4% 36 26%
Executive direct reports to the CEQ' 7 70% 3 30%
All employees? 14740 66% 7508 34%

1 Asdefined in the Companies ACt 2006 {Strategic Report and Directors Report)
Regulations 2013

2 Basedon full-time equivalent employees from conUNUING operations and
excluding peopie who work for our Joint vertures

201314 data s iIndependently assured by Deloitte LLP and can be viewed ofifine at

skycom/biggerpicture

Employee involvement

Further deta)l on employee engagement together with the information
on diversity and talent development can be found on pages 32 ta 35

Greenhouse gas emissions

Disclosures concerning greenhouse gas emissions became mandatory
under the Companies Act 2006 1n the current financial year

Since 2008/09 we've reduced our emissions relative to revenue
(tCO.e/£m) by 40% Thas means we are on track to meet our target of
halving our emissiens relative to revenue (t/£m) by 2020 Qur absolute
carbon ermssions have decreased by over 108 since 2008/09 as a
result of our continued long-term investments in improving the
effiwancy of our bulldings fleet and travel despite growing sigrificantly
as abusiness

This year across all of the sites that we have a degree of influence over
we have decreased our emissions for electniaty and gas For example
across aur Scottish sites the new Bulding Management System (BMS)
commssioned in July 2013 has allowed for better contrel and
meonitonng and fed to reduced gas and electrical usage Qverall
electnaty use In Scotland has decreased by almost a third The two
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biomass boilers installed this year have further decreased the gas
usage at these sites by about 70% Not yust this but as the butldings
are working more efficientfy the need for the heat from the biomass
has subsequently reduced

We measure our CO,e emissions in ine with the greenhouse gas
protocol Qur total gross CO,e emissions ncludes all direct Greenhouse
Gas emissions Cur net emissions take Into account the renewable
energy procured from a renewable energy tanffwith Scotush and
Southern Energy Group Scottish and Southern retan on our behalf
the Levy Exemption Certificates and Renewable Energy Guarantee of
Ongin (REGOS) In addition we offset our total gross emissions through
the purchase of Voluntary Carbon Standard offsets Historicaldatais
recalculated each year infine with the latest gurdelines to Defra/DECCS
Greenhouse Gas Conversion Factors for Company Reporting and
restated accordingly Our CO,e emissions data is independently
assured by Deloitte LLP

More iInformation about our environmental targets and performance
can be found at skycom/biggerpicture

A table detaling the enussions during the year s below

Total CO,e emissions (tCO,e)

Baseline

2008/09 2012M3 2013114
Scope 1® 20274 20860 20808
Fuel combustion (natural
gas, chesel and vehicles) 18453 20580 20350
Operation of faciities
(refrigerants) 1821 280 458
Scope 2? 85250 72029 74140
Purchased electricity net 15347 419 960
Purchased electncity gross 85250 72008 74138
Purchased steam - il 2
Total (Scope 1 and 2) net
CO,e emissions (vCO e} 35621 25051 21768
Total {Scope 1and 2) gross
CO,e emussions (tCO,e) 105524 92,889 94,948

Carbon intensity (1CO,e/Em revenue)'

Baseline
(2008/09) 201213 2013n4 Target
Carbon intensity 206 128 124
(tCO,a)/Em
Reduction In gross «38 «40 -50

CO,e emissions
relative to revenue (%)

Notas

1 2013714 datass ndependently assured by Defoitte LLP and can be wewed online at
sky com/biggerpicture

2 Direct greenhouse gas @missions

indirect Greenhouse Gas emussians from consumption of purchased electncty

heat or steam

w

Significant agreements

The following sigruficant agreements which were in force at 30 June 2014
take effect alter or terminate on a change of control of the Company

Premier League

In 2012 Briish Sky Broadcasting Linwted (a Group subsidiary) entered
Into an agreement (the "PL Licenca™) wath The Football Association
Premier League Limited (the “PL") pursuant to which the Group was
awarded five of seven avaitable packages of live audio-visual nghts
for PremierLeague football (the seven packages are together the
"Live Packages™) together consisting of 116 live matches per season
The PL will not award Live Packages containing in the aggregate mare
than 116 lve matches per season to a single licensee (either onits
own or as part of a consortium or through one or more of its related
parties) (the "Single Buyer Rule™) Pursuant to the PL Licence the PL.
can suspend and/or terminate afl of the nights which are included in,
or exerasable as part of Live Packages containing in the aggregate up
to 38 live matches per season In the event that a change of control of
the Company occuUrs at any time prior to the expiry of the PL Licence
whuch if it had oceurred prior to the award of the Live Packages to
the Group would have resulted in a breach of the Single Buyer Rule

Revohing Credit Facibty

The Group has a £743 milkon syndicated revohveing credit facility ("RCF™)
with a matunty date of 31 October 2018 In the event of a change of
control of the Company as a result of which both S&P and Moody's
downgrade the Company s credit rating below investment grade withun
90 days thelenders can require any amounts outstanding under the
RCF to be repaid (other than in the event that 21st Century Fox or any
subsidiary or holding company thereof (or a subsidiary of such holding
company) acquires such control)

21st Century Fox voting agreement

On 21 September 2005 the Company, BSkyB Holdeo Ine 21st Century
Fox UK Nominees Limited and 21st Century Fox entered into avotng
agreement, pursuant to which 21st Century Fox UK Nominees Limited s
votng rights at any general meeting are capped at 3719% (the "Voung
Agreement”) The provisions of the Voting Agreement cease to apply
inter aha onachange of control of the Company

EMTN bond 1ssue

On 3 April 2007 the Group established a eure medium term note
programme (the "EMTN Programme”} which provides the Group with
a standardised docurnentation platform to allow for sentor debt
Issuance in the furobond markets On 7 February 2014 the programme
was Updated and expanded to become a globa! medium term note
programme (the “GMTN Programme”) The maximum potential
1Issuance under the GMTN Programme 1s £2 5 bilion On 14 May 2007
under the EMTN Programme the Company rssued Eurobands
consisting of £300 milhon guaranteed notes paying 6 000% interest
and matunngen 14 May 2027 (the "Notes™ Pursuant to the final terms
attachung to the Notes the Company will be required to make an offer
to redeem or purchase Its Notes at (ts princtpal amount plusinterast
up to the date of redemption or repurchase If there 1S a change of
control of the Company () which if the Notes carry an investment
grade credit rating, results n a downgrade to a non-investment grade
rating or a withdrawal of that rating or () where,if the Notes carry a
nori-tnvestrment grade rating, results in a downgrade by one or mare
notches or awthdrawal of that non-investment grade rating or (1)
where if the Notes do not carry a credit rating the Company does not
seek such arating oris unable to achieve such arating, pronded that
in each case the degision to downgrade withdraw or not to award a
credit rating occurs wathin a certain pertod of time after the change
of cantrol and the relevant rating agency cites that such deqision{s)
resulted from the change of control
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February 2008 November 2008 and Novemnber 2012 bond issues

In February 2008 the Group entered inte anindenture In respect of
US$750 mithon 6 100% senior unsecured netes due 2018 (n November
2008 the Group entered into an indenture In respect of US§600
mullion 9 500% senor unsecured notes due 2018 In November 2012,
the Group updated the November 2008 indenture in respect of a
further 1ssuance of US$800 million 3125% sentor unsecured notes
due November 2022 Pursuant to the final terms attaching to the
secunties the Company will ba required to make an offer to redeem
or purchase its securities at a price equal to 101% of their pnncipal
amount plus accrued and unpaid interest up to the date of
redemption or repurchase, If there 1s a change of contre! of the
Company {1) which f the secunties carry an nvestiment grade credit
rating results in a downgrade to anon-investment grade rating or
awithdrawal of that rating or (i) whuch If the securities carry a
non-nvestment grade rating, results in adowngrade by one or more
rotehes or a withdrawal! of that non-investment grade rating, or (i}
where If the secunties do not carry a credit rating the Company does
not seek such arating or 1s unable to achieve such a rating, provided
that 1n each case the decision ta downgrade withdraw or not to award
a credit rating occurs within a certain period of ime after the change
of control and the relevant rating agency cites that such decsion(s)
resulted from the change of control

UK broadcasting licences

The Group ts party to a number of Ofcom breadcasting icences

for the broadeast of the Sky Channels The Broadcastung Act 1990

{as amended by the Broadcastung Act 1996 and the Communications
Act) lays down a number of restnctions on those parties permitted

to hold Ofcom broadcasting hcences Among those restricted from
holding Ofcom broadcasting licences or from controlling a heensed
company are (a) local authonties (b) political bodies (¢) religious
bodies, (d) any company controlled by any of the previous categornes or
by their officers or associates (g) advertising agenaies or any company
controiled by such an agency or In which it holds more than a 5%
interest Licensees have an ongoing obligation to comply with these
ownership restnictions Failure by a icensee to do so (either by the
licensee becoming a *disqualfied person® or any change affecting the
nature charactenstics or control of the licensee which would have
preciuded the original grant of the licence) may constitute a breach of
the icence and if not rectified could result in revocation of the licence

Ofcom also has a duty under the Broadcasting Acts to be satisfied
that any person holding a broadcasting icence is fit and proper to
hold those cences and may revoke those icences if it ceases to be
so satisfied

Financaiakinstruments

Details of the Group's use of financial Instruments togetherwith
information on our finanoal sk management objectives and polices
and our exposure to financial nsks can be foundin note 22 to the
consobdated inancial statements

Political contributions

Poliica contributions of the Group in the UK dunng 2014 amounted
to rul (2043 mil)

Branches

The Group through various subsidianes has established branches
i a number of different jurisdictions in which the business operates

Going concerm

The Group s business activities togetherwith the factors likely to
affect its future development, performance and position are set out
tn the Strategic report on pages 2 to 45 The financial position of
the Group, its cash flows and hquidity pesition are described in the
finanoal review on pages 36 to 38 In additien notes 20 to 22 to the
consofidated financial statements inglude details of the Groups
treasury activittes long-term funding arrangements, finangal
instruments and hedging actmties and exposure to financiai risk

As set out above the Group has sufficent financial resources which
together with internally generated cash flows will continue to prowide
sufficient sources of hquidity to Fund its current operations including
its contractual and commeraal commitments as set out on pages 123
to 124 its approved capital expenditure and any proposed dividends
and the Group 1s well placed to manage its business nisks successfully
despita the current economic outlook

After making enquiries the Directors have formed the judgemant

at the time of approving the consolidated financial statements that
there s a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue 1n operational existence for the foreseeable
future For this reason the Directors continue to adopt the going
concern basis In preparing the consolidated financial statements

Disclosure of information te auditors

In accerdance with the provisiens of section 418 of the Compantes Act
2006, each of the persens who are Directors of the Company at the
date of approval of this report confirms that

+ so far as the Director s aware thereis no relevant audit information
(as defined in the Companies Act 2006) of which the Company’s
auditor I1s unaware, and

+ the Director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken
as a Director to make himself/herself aware of any relevant audit
information (as defined) and to establish that the Company's
auditor 1s aware of that information

Auditors

Deleitte LLP the auditors of the Campany have expressed therr
willingness to continue n office A resolution to reappoint them

as the Company s auditors and to authorise the Directors to determine
their remuneratton will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM

Annual General Meeting

The venue and tming of the Company's 2014 AGMis detailled in the
notice convening the AGM which witl be available for download from
the Company’s corparate website atsky com/corperate

By order of the Board C'::-‘l_;\_’ v\/

Chns Taylor
Company Secretary

25 July 2014
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Statement of Directors’

The Cirectors are respensible for preparing the Annual Report
and the financial statements in accordance with applicable kaw
and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financal statements
for each financial year Under that law the Directors are required

to prepare the Group financral statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Union and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and have also
chosen to prepare the parent Company financial statements under
IFRSs as adopted by the EU Under Company law the Directors must
nat approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that they give

a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the profit or loss of the Company for that penod In prepanng these
financial statements Intermational Accounting Standard | requires
that Directors

= properly select and apply accounting policies

+ present information including accounung policies in a manner
that provides relevant reliable comparable and understandable
information

+ provide additional disclosures when compliance with the speafic
requirements in IFRSs are insufficent to enable users to understand
the mpact of particutar transactions other events and conditions
on the entity’s financial position and financal performance, and

- make an assessment of the Campany's ability to continue
as a gong concern

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company s
transactions and disclose wath reasenable accuracy at any ume

the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregulanties

The Directars are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of
the corporate and finanaal infermation included cn the Company s
website Legislationin the United Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation
In other jurisdictions

FAnancial statements - Statement of Diractors’ responsibdities

responsibilities

Drrectors responsibibity statement

The Directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge

1

¥ ]

w

The finanaal statements, prepared in accordance with IFRSs
give a true and fair view of theassets liabilites financial position
and profit orloss of the Company ane the undertakings induded
in the consolidation taken as awhole,

The strategic report inciudes a farr review of the development

and perfermance of the business and the position of the Company
and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole
togetherwith a descnption of the pnnapal nsks and uncertainties
that they face and

The Annual Report and financial statements taken as a whole

are farr balanced and understandable and prowide the information
necessary for sharehalders to assess the Company's performance
bus:ness model and strategy

By arder of the Board

leremy Darroch Andrew Griffith

Chief Executive OFficer Chief Finanaal Officer
25 July 2014

Bntish Sky Broadcasting Grouppke 81

q10da1 2853805

SIUBLISTETS [BOLBULY FIURWIAOD

UCRLLOMI I3PIOU3.RYS




Annual Report 204

Fnancial statements - Independant, Auditors report

Independent Auditor’s report

Independent auditor’s report to the members
of Bntrsh Sky Broadcasting Group pic

Opinion on the fmanaal statements of Batish Sky Broadcasting
Group plc

Inour opimien the consolidated and Parent Company financial
statements of Bntish Sky Broadcasting Group plc

» give a true and fair iew of the state of the Group s and Parent
Company’s affairs as at 30 June 2014 and of therr profit for the
year then ended

have been properly prepared in accordance with International
Finanaial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union, and

have been prepared In atcordance with the requirements of the
Compames Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulatian as regards
the consohidated financial statements

The consclidated financial statements comprise the censolidated
and company iInceme staterments the consolidated and company
statements of comprehensive income the consohdated and company
balance sheets the consolidated and tompany cash fiow statements
the conschdated and company statements of changes in equity

and the related notes 1to 31 The financial reporting framewark

that has been applied in ther preparationis applicable law and

IFRSs as adopted by the European Union

Our assessment of risks significant to our audit

Separate opion in relation to IFRSs as ssued by the IASB

As explained in note 1 to the consolidated financal statements

In addition to complying with itslegal ebligation to apply IFRSs as
adopted by the European Unien the Group has alse applied IFRSs
as1ssued by the nternational Accounting Standards Board (LASE)

In our opinion the consohidated financal statements comply wath
IFRSs as issued by the IASB

Gong Concern

As required by the Listing Rules we have reviewed the Directors
statement on page 80 that the Group 15 a goiNg concerm
We confum that

+ we have not identified material uncertamties related to events
or conditions that may cast sigrficant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concem, and

we have concluded the Director’s use of the going concermn basis
of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements to
be approprate

However because not all future events or conditions can be predicted
this statement Is not a guarantee as tothe Group s ability to continue
as a going concern

There has been no significant change in the Group s operations nor in our assessment of matenality therefore the assessed nsks of matenal
misstatement descrnbed below which are those that had the greatest effect on the audit strategy the allocation of resources in the audit,
and directing the efforts of the engagement team are the same risks as in the prior yaar

Risk

How the scope of our audit responded tothe risk

Revenue recogriuen

The allocation of retail subscription revenue to each element of a bundted

transacton requires judgement as described in the Group s cntical
accounting policies and the use of jJudgement on page 95

The risk 1s that inappropriate aflocations could lead to non-compliance

with accounting standards and (nappropriate acceleration or deferral
of revenue principalty for new customers

We evaluated management s revenue recognition policy and
assessment in respect of accounting for bundled transacuons
against relevant accounting standards and gudance and tested
the implementaton of the policy

Qur procedures incduded understanding and testing the cperating
effectiveness of controls in respect of the Group s billing, viewrng and
customer relationship management systems and the reconciliation
processes between these systems and wath the general ledger
atcounting systerm We also performed substantive analytical
procedures over retall subscription revenue streams
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Risk

How the scope of our audit responded to the risk

General entertainment programming

Determining the tming and amount of the recognition of general
entertanment programming expense reguires Judgement as set out in the
Group s critical account:ng policies and the use of judgement. on page 96

The nsk identified is that the policy selected and applied by management
to expense general entertainment programming does not recognise the
cost of iInventory i line with the expected value from each broadcast

We examined the amortisation method for general entertainment
prograrmming inventory taking intg account the diffenng genres
of programmes viewing profiles and industry berchmarks

Cur procedures included

Benchmarking management s policy against industry practice

Testing the design and iImplementation of controls over the
additron and amortisation of general entertainment programming

Comparing amortisation profifes against viewing trends from
thdependent source data

Performing sensitity analyses to understand the impact
of selecting alternative amortisation profiles

Considenng the impact the impact of entertainmant programming
on brandvalue customer acquisition and churn and

Evaluating the resuits of our analysis on both a programme genre
and channel basis

Capital expenchture

The assessment and timing of whether assets meet the capitalisation
crtena set out In1AS 16 Property Plant and Equipment and IAS 38
Intangible Assets requires judgement as well as the selection of
appropriate useful economic bves as set out In the Group s entical
accounting policies and the use of judgement on page 95 In addition
determining whether there is any indication of impaument of the
carrying value of assets also requires judgement

As capital expenditure represents a matenal cost for the group there
1$ a sk that expenditure on intangible and tangible non-current assets
1s Inappropriately capitalised aganst relevant accounting guidance
and that assets are not recoverable at thew carmang value

We tested operating effectiveness of controlsin respect of the
capetalisation of assets and examined carmying values fer impairment

We tested all material and a sarnple of other capital expenditure
projects and examined management s assessment as to whether the
project spend met the recogrution eriteria set forth In [AS 16 Property
Plant and Equipment and |AS 38 Intangible Assets Our procedures
included understanding the business case for each project challenging
any core assumptions or estimates venfying capital project
authonsation tracing project costs to third-party evidence and
assessing the useful ecenomic hfe attnbuted to the asset.

In addition we consrdered whether any incicators of impairment were
present by understanding the business rationale for each project and
performing independent reviews for indicators of Impairment. as well
as testing managemaent s controls to identtfy imparment of assets

We reported to the Audit Committee that our audit work on these nsks was concluded satisfactonly and their own consideration of these nsks

1s set ocut on page 54

Our aucht procedures relating to these matters were designed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole within the context
of our assessment of matenality as descnbed below, and not to express an opin:on on indwdual audit risks, mdimdual items or disclosures in the
financial statements Our opinion an the finanaal statements is not modified with respect to any of the key nisks described atove and we do not

express an opion on these indmdual matters
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Independent Auditor’s report

(continued)

Our assessment of materiality

We define matenality as the magnitude of misstatement that makes

it probabte that the economic deasions of areasonably knowledgeable
person relying on the finangial statements would be changed or
influenced We use materalityin both planning the scope of our

audit work and in evaluating the results of our work

We determined matenality for the Group to be £50 million (2013

£50 milhon), which is approximately 4% (2013 4%) of adjusted pre-tax
profit 5% {2012 5%) of equity and 5% {2013 4%} of statutory profit
before taxation

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would repart to

the Commuttee all audit differences in excess of £2 5 millon (2013
£2 5 milion), as well as differences below that threshold that in our
view warranted reporting on qualitative grounds We alse report
to the Audit Committee any significant disclosure matters that we
identify when assessing the overall presentation of the financial
statements We confirmed to the Audit Committee that we had

no significant disclosure matters to report

An overview of the scope of our audit

Qur audit scope focused on the Group s UK and Ireland operatons,
which were subject to a full scope audit for the year ended 30 June
2014 Cur audit scope encompasses all principal business units

of the Group and substantially all of the Group s assets, revenue
and operating profit. All audit work was performed by the group
audit team

Opinions on athar matters prescribed by the Compantes Act 2006

In our opinion

« thenformation given in the Strategic report and the Directors
Report for the finanaal year for which the financial statements
are prepared I1s consistentwith the finanaal statements, and

« the part of the Directors Remuneration Report to be audited
has been properly prepared in accordance with the Compantes
Act 2006

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to youf
In our opINien

» we have not receved all the information and explanations we
require for our audit or

-

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent
Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been receved
from branches not wisited by us or

the Parent Company finanoal statements are not in agreement
wath the accounting records and retums

We have nothing to reportin respect of these matters

Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are atso required to report If in our
opnion, certan disclosures of Directors remuneration have not been
made or the part of the Directors Remuneration Report to be audited
IS net in agreement with the accounting records and returns We have
nothing to report ansing from these matters

Corporate Governance Statement

Under the Listing Rules we are also reguired to review the part of
the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the Company’s
compliance with rine provisions of the UK Corporate Governance
Code We have nothing to report ansing from our review

Our duty to read other information in the Annual Report
Under the Interational Standards on Auditing (/K and Ireland)
we are required to report to you If 1In our opirion information In
the Annual Report is

» matenally inconsistent with the nformation in the audited
finanoal statements or

apparently materially incorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent
with our knowledge of the Greup acquired in the course of
performing our audit or

- otherwse misleading

In particular we are required to consider whether we have identified
any Incensistenaes between our knowledge acquired dunng the audit
and the Directors statement that they consider the annual report

1s fair balanced and understandable and whether the annual report
appropriately discloses those matters that we communicated to

the Audit Committee which we constder should have been disclosed
We confirm that we have not identfied any such Inconsistencies or
misieading statements

B4 Briush Sky Broadcastng Group plc
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Respective responsibilities of Directors and Auditor

Responsibility of Directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully i the Statement of Directors respeonsibilities
set out on page 81 the Directors are responsible for the adequacy of
the accounting records, the preparation of the financial statements
from those records and for being satisfied that the finanaial
statements give a true and fair view

Auditor's responsibifity

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opiion on the finanoal
statements in accordance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require
us to comply wath the Auditing Practices Board s Ethical Standards
for Auditors We confirm that wn our professional judgement,

we are independent within the mearung of those standards and
our objectivity 15 not comprormised We also comply with International
Standard on Quality Control 1 (UK and Ireland) Our audit methodology
and tools aim to ensure that our quality control procedures are
effective understood and apphed Our quality controls and
systems indude our dedicated professional standards review

team strategically focused second partner reviews and
independent partner reviews

This report s made solely to the Company’s members as a body

n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006
Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company s members those matters we are required to state to them
in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body

for our audht work for this report or for the opinions we have formed

Scope of the audit of the finanaal statements

An audit Involves obtaining ewidence about the amounts and
disciosures in the financtal statements sufficient to give reasonable
agsurance that the financial statements are free from matenal
misstatement whether caused by fraud or errar This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting pelicies are appropnate to
the Group s cireumnstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disctosed the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the directors and the overall presentation of
the financial statements In addibion we read all the financial and
non-financial iInformation in the Annual Report tadentufy matenal
Inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify
any informaton that 1s apparently materially incorrect based on

or matenally iInconsistentwith the knowledge acquired by us Inthe
course of performing the audit If we become aware of any apparent
matenal misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the
imphcations for our report.

Wilham Touche
(Senior Statutory Auditor) for and on behalf of
Deloitte LLP Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor

London i —
United Kingdam

25 Juty 2014
SO ot

Finanaal statements - independent Auditor’s report.
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Finandial statements - Consoldated finanaal statements

Consolidated financial statements

Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 30 June 2014

204 2013
Noles £m Em
Revenue 2 7632 7235
Operating expense 3 (&4 (5944)
Operating profit 1161 1291
Share of results of jaint ventures and associates 13 35 46
Investment income 4 26 28
Finance costs 4 Q40) (108)
erofit before tax 5 1082 1257
Taxation 7 @7 278)
Profit for the year attnbutable to equity shareholders of the parant company B85 975
Earnings per share from profit for the year {iIn pence)
Basic B8 554p 607p
Diluted B 549p 597p
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated iIncome statement
All results relate to continuing operations
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 30 June 2074
204 2013
£m £m
Profit for the year attnbutable to equity sharehalders of the parent company 865 979
Other comprehensive iIncome
Amounts recogrnised directly in equity that may subsequently be recycled to the income statement
Gain on revaluation of avallable-for-sale Investments 104 186
Loss on cash flow hedges (176) (27)
Tax on cash flow hedges 39 7
(33) 166
Amounts rectassified and reported in the Income statement
Gain (loss) on cash flow hedges 137 (48}
Tax on cash flow hedges (30 Ll
106 3N
Other comprehensive iIncome for the year (net of tax) 73 129
Total comprehensive income for the year attnbutable to equity shareholders of the parent company 938 1108

All results relate to continuing operations

86 British Sky Broadcasting Group pk
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Financial statements = Consoikla’ed financal statements

Consolidated balance sheet

as at 30 June 2014
2014 2013
Notes Em Em
Mon-current assets
Goodwill 10 1019 999
Intangible assets n 810 7i8
Property plant and equipment 12 1088 1041
Investments in joint ventures and associates 13 173 164
Avallabfe-far-sale investments 14 533 422
Deferred tax assets 15 3 38
Programme distnbution rights 16 20 17
Trade and other receivables 17 7 17
Denvative financial assets a 185 360
3875 3776
\ Current assets
inventones 16 546 548
Trade and other receivables 17 635 591
Short-term deposits 21 295 595
Cash and cash equivalents 21 1082 815
Derwvative finanoal assets 21 15 20
2573 2,569
Total assets 6449 6345
Current habilities
Borrowings 20 n 1
Trade and other payables 18 2286 2023
Current tax habilihes 128 176
Prowvisions 9 48 94
Dervative financtal lhabilities 21 46 13
2519 2317
Non-current habilities
Borrowmngs 20 2,658 2509
Trade and other payabsles 18 58 63
Provisions 19 14 14
Denvative financial habthtues 2} 129 29
Deferred tax hablites 15 1 1
2858 3016
Total liabilities 5377 5333
Share capital 23 781 797
Share premium 24 1437 1437
Reserves 24 (1146) (1222
Total equity attnbutable to equity shareholders of the parent company 24 1,072 1,012
Totalhabdities and shareholders’ equity 6449 6,345

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated balance sheet

These consoldated financial statements of British Sky Broadcasting Group plc regrstered number 02247735 have been approved and authonsed

for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 July 2014 and were signed on 1ts behalf by

Jeremy Darroch Andrew Griffith
hief Executive Officer Chief Ringncial r

British Sky Broadeasting Groupplc 87
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Finandal statements - Consokcated financal statements

Consolidated financial statements

(continued)
Conschdated cash flow statement
for the year ended 30 June 2014
2014 2013
Notes £m Em
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 25 1769 1877
Interest received and dividends from avalable-for-sale investments 27 29
Taxation paid (240) (300)
MNet cash from operating activities 1,556 1606
Cash flows from investing actimties
Divdends recened from joint ventures and associates 32 43
Net funding to joint ventures and associates ®) @
Proceeds on disposal of an Investment - 4
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (247) (203)
Purchase of intangible assets (302) (251)
Purchase of subsidianes (net of cash and cash equivalents purchased) 20 s
Purchase of available-for-sale investments [¢2] [&)]
Decrease in short-term deposits 300 ns
Met cash used in investing actrties (244) (502)
Cash flows from financing activities
Net proceeds from borrowings - 498
Repayment of obligations under finance leases ) m
Proceeds from disposal of shares in Employee Share Ownership Plan ("ESOP7) 1 15
Purchase of own shares for ESOP (154) (69)
Purchase of own shares for cancellatron (266) (&2
Interest paid 37) (128)
Diadends pawd to shareholders (485) (@41
Net cash used in financing activities (1045) {753)
Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents 267 ast
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 815 464
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,082 815
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this censolidated cash flow statement.
-
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Financial statements - Consohdated Financial statements

for the year ended 30 June 2014
Total
Available- share-
Share Share ESOP Hedging for-sale Qther Retained helders
capital prenwum reserve reserve reserve reserves earnings equity
£m £m £m £m £m Em £m £m
At 1.July 2012 837 1,437 (1) 68 165 359 (1.850) 944
Prafit for the year - - - - - - 979 979
Revaluation of avallable-for-sale investments - - - - 186 - - 186
Recognition and transfer of cash flow hedges - - - (€] - - - (75)
Tax on items taken directly to equity - - - 18 - - - 18
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 57 186 - 979 1108
Share-based payment - - (35) - - - (3] 26
Tax on items taken directly to equity - - - - - - 8 B
( Share buy back programme (see note 24)
- Purchase of own shares for cancellation (&) - - - - 40 Bi7 ® n
- Financtal hability for close penod purchases - - - - - - 16y (16)
Dimdends - - - - - - (441 (441)
At 30 June 2013 797 1437 147) hil 351 439 {1876) 1012
Profit for the year - - - - - - 865 BBS
Revaluation of available-for-sale investments - - - - 104 - - 104
Recognition and transfer of cash flow hedges - - - [€]5)] - - - 39
Tax on items taken directly to equity - - - 8 - - - 8
Total comprehensive incoma for the year - - - [E1)] 104 = 865 938
Share-based payment - - - - - (95) (93)
Tax on items taken directly toequity - - - - - - 9 9
Share buy-back programme (see nate 243}
- Purchase of own shares for cancellation {16) - - - - 16 (250) (250)
- Finanaial habikty for close period purchases - - - - - - (59) (89)
Dividends - - - - - - (485) {485)
At 30 June 2014 pial 1437 145} {200 455 455 (1,891} 1072

For a descnption of the nature and purpose of each equity reserve, see note 24

The accompanying notes are anintegral part of this conselidated statement of changes inequity

Brush Sky Broadcasting Group plc B9
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Finanoal statements - Notes o the consolctated financal statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Accounting policies

Bnush Sky Breadcasting Group plc (the *“Company™) 15 a public imited
cornpany Incorporated in the United Kingdom ("UK"} and regstered in
England and Wales The consolidated financial statements include the
Company and its subsidianes (together the “Group”) and (ts interests
tn assoaiates and jointly-controlled entities

a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial staternents have been prepared in
accordance with internaticnal Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS™) as adopted by the European Union {"EU”) the Companies
Act 2006 and Article 4 of the International Accounting Standard
("1AS™) Regulations In addition the Group alse complied with IFRS
asissued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB”)

b) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a gotng
concern basis (as set outin the Directors Report) and on an histoncal
cost basis except for the remeasuremnent to farr value of certain
financial assets and habslises as described in the accounting policies
below The Group has adopted the new accounting pronouncements
which became effective this year none of which had any stgnificant
impact on the Group s results or financial position This includes the
adoption of IFRS 10 "Consolidated Financial Statements” IFRS 11

“Joint Arrangements”, IFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities”
amendments to IAS 28 “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”
and IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement™ where adoption an 1 July 2013

1s considered to be earty adoption for the purposes of complying with
IFRS as endorsed by the European Union

The Group maintains a 52 or 53 week fiscal year ending on the Sunday
nearest to 30 June in each year |n fiscal year 2014 this date was 29
June 2014 this being a 52 week year (fiscal year 2013 30 June 2013

52 week year) For convenience purposes, the Group continues to date
its consohdated financial statements as at 30 June and to refer to the
accounting penocd as a "year” for reporting purposes The Group has
classified assets and abilities as current when they are expected

to be realised in orintended for sale or consumption in, the normal
operating cycle of the Group

) Basis of consohdation

i Subsidiaries

Subsichanes are entities controlled by the Company Controlis
achieved where the Company has existing rights that give it the
current ability to direct the actmtes that affect the Company's
returns and exposure or nights to vanable returns from the entity
Subsidtanes are included in the consolidated financial statemenits
of the Company from the date control of the subsidiary commences
untl the date that control ceases Intra-group balances and

any unrealsed gains and losses orincome and expenses ansing
from intragroup transactions are elimnated in prepanng the
consclidated financial statements

il Associates and joint ventures

Associates are entities where the Group has significant influence
but not control or joint control over the relevant activities of the
entity Joint ventures are joint arrangements whereby the parues
that have joint contrel of the arrangement have nghts to the net
assets of the arrangement

These conselidated financial statements indude the Groups share of
the total recognised gains and losses of associates and joint ventures
using the equity method from the date that significant influence or
Joint control commences to the date that itceases based on present
ownership interests and excluding the possible exerase of potentral
voting nghts less any impairment losses (see accounting policy 1}
When the Groups Interest In an assodaate of joint venture has been
reduced to nil because the Group s share of losses exceeds its interest
In the assodate or juint venture, the Group enty provides for additional
losses to the extent that it has ncurred legal or constructive obligations
to fund such losses, or where the Group has made payments on behalf
of the associate or joint venture Where the disposal of an investment
In an assoclate or joint venture s considered to be highly probable the
investment ceases to be equity accounted and Instead 1s dassified
as held for sale and stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell

d) Goodwill

Business combinations that have occurred since 1 tuly 2004 the
date of transition to IFRS (the “Transition Date™) are accountad for by
apphang the acquisiton methed of accounting, Following this method,
goodwillis irutially recognised on consolidabion, representing the
difference between the fair value cost of the business combination
and the fair value of the idenufiabie assets habihtes and conungent
assets and labiiues assumed

In respect of business combinations that occurred pnor to the Transition
Date goodwill has been induded at the amounts recognised under
the Group s UK Generally Accepted Accounting Pninaples (UK GAAPT)
accounting policies on the Transition Date On disposal of a subsidiary
associate or joint venture the attnbutable amount of goodwillts
included in the determination of profit or loss on disposal except, for
goodwill written off to reserves under UK GAAP prior to the Transition
Date which 15 not reinstated and 1s not included in determining

any subsequent gain or loss on disposal

Goodwll s stated at cost less any impairment losses and is tested

at least annually forimparrment based on the recoverable amounts
of the cash generating unit to which the goodwill has been allocated
Any impairment identified 1s recognised immediately in the income
statement andis not subsequently reversed The carrying amount of
goodwill In respect of asscoates and joint ventures Is included in the
carrying amount of the investment in the associate or joint venture
Goodwill 1s tested for imparment in fine wath accounting policy 1 below

o} Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment (“PPE")

1 Intangible assets

Research expenditure 1s recognised m operating expense in the
income statement as the expenditure 1s ncurred Development
expenditure (relating to the application of research knowledge to
plan or design new or substantially improved products for sale or

use within the business) s recognised as an intangible asset from

the point at which the Group has theintention and ability to generate
probable future economic benefits from the development expenditure
that the development 1s technically feasible and that the subsequent
expenditure can be measured relably Any other development
expenditure s recognised in operating expense as incurred

Other intangeble assets, which are acquired by the Group separately
or through a business combination arenitially stated at cost or fair
value respectively less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses other than those that are classified as held for sale which are
stared at the lower of carrying amount and farr value less costs to sell
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Amartisation of an intangible asset begins when the asset is avalable
for use and 15 charged to the income statement through operating
expense on a straight-line basis over the intangible asset s estimated
usefulhfe pnncipally being a penod between 1 and 25 years unless
the asset ife 15 jJudged to be indefinite During the year the Group
revised the estrmated useful hfe of certain intangible assets The
revrsions were accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting
estimate and as a result the amortisation charge in the current year
has decreased by £24 milion If the useful | fe s iIndefinite or the
asset s not yet available for use no amortisation s charged and

an imparrment testis carmed out atleast annually Cther intangble
assets are tested for impairment in ine wath accounting policy 1 below

ii Property, plant and equipment

Owned PPE 15 stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
any imparrment losses (see accounting policys) other than those
items that are classified as held for sale, which are stated at the lower
of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell When an item of
PPE comprises major components having different useful economic
lives the components are accounted for as separate items of PPE

Assets held under finance leases which confer nghts and cbligations
similar to those attached to owned assets are treated as PPE
(see accounting policy n)

The cost of PPE less estmated residual value 1s depreaated in
operating expense on a straght-line basis over its estmated usaful
life Land and assets that are not yet available for use are not
deprecated Pnnapal useful economic ives used for this purpose are

+ Freehold buitdings 25t0 40 years

= Equipment, furniture and fixtures 3 to 20years

- Assetsunder financeleasesand  Lesseroflease term and the
leasehold improvements useful economiclife of the asset

Borrowing costs directly attnbutable to the acquisition, construction
or preduction of qualfying assets which are assets that necessanly
take a substantal penod of time to get ready for therr ntended use
orsale are added to the cost of those assets until such ime as the
assets are substantially ready for therr intended use or sale

To the extent that the financing for a qualifying asset 1s part of
the Group s general borrawings the interest cost to becapitalised
1s calculated based upon the weighted average cost of borrowing
to the Group (excluding the interest on any borrowings specific

to any quahfying assets) This 1s then applied to the expenditures
on the asset

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or lossin the
period to which they relate

f) Derivative financal instruments and hedging activites

The Group uses dervative finangal instruments to hedgets
exposure to fluctuations in interest and foreign exchange rates

Derivatives are held at farr value from the date on which a denvative
contract s entered nte Farr value s defined as the price that would
be receved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a hability in an erderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement
date under IFRS 13 "Farr Value Measurament” The Group calculates
a separate credit valuation adjustment (“CVA™) or debit valuation
adjustment ("DVAT) for each denvative based upon the net position
far each counterparty relationship The Group calculates the CVA
where it has a pet asset position using a guoted credit default swap

Financial statements - Notes to the Consobdated financat statements

curve for the counterparty and calculates the DVA where it has a

net l:ability posiion using an industry proxy credit defauit swap
curve for the Group The fair value of denivative financial Instruments
15 catculated by discounting future cash flows with reference to the
benchmark Libor curve adjusted by the relevant credit default swap
curve Certam derivatives held by the Group which relate to highly
probable forecast transactions ("hedged items™) which meet
qualfying criteria under 1AS 39 *Financial Instruments Recognition
and Measurement” ("IAS 397), are designated as cash flow hedges

or far value hedges and are subject to cash flow hedge accounting
or fair value hedge accounting respectively Certain other derivatives
held by the Group da not meet the qualifying cnitena for recogrition
for accounting purposes as hedges despite this being thewr econamic
function Changes in the fair values of these dervatives are recogrised
immediately in the income statement The Group does net hold or
1ssue dervatives for speculative purposes

1 Denvatives that qualify for cash flow hedge accounting

Changes (n the fair values of derivatives that are designated as cash
flow hedges {*cash flow hedging instruments™) are inttially recognised
in the hedging reserve In arcumstances in which the denvative used
1s 8 currency option only changes in the intnnsic value of the option
are designated under the cash flowhedgng relationship with all other
movemeants being recorded immediately i the income statement
Amounts accumulated in the hedging reserve are subsaquently
recogmsed n the tncome statement in the periods in which the
related hedged items are recognised i the income statement

At Inception, the effectiveness of the Group s cash flow hedges (s
assessed through a companson of the principal terms of the hedging
instrument and the underying hedged item The ongoing effectiveness
of the Groups cash Flow hedges 1s assessed using the dollar-offset
approach withthe expected cash flows of hedging instruments being
compared to the expected cash flows of the hedged stems This
assessmentisused to demonstrate that each hedge relationship 1s
expected to be ighly effective on inception, has been highly effective
in the peniod and 15 expected to continue to be highly effective in
future periods The measurement of hedge ineffectiveness for the
Group s hedging instruments s calculated using the hypothetical
denvative method with the fair values of the hedging instruments
being compared to those of the hypothetical dervative that would
result in the designated cash flow hedge achieving perfect hedge
effectiveness The excess of the cumulative change 1n the fair value of
the actual hedgng instrument compared te that of the hypothetical
dervative 1s deemed to be hadge ineffectiveness which s recognised
In the income statement

The Group uses a range of 80% to 125% for hedge effectiveness

In accordance with IAS 39 and any relationship which has effectiveness
outside this range 1s deemed to be ineffective and hedge accounting
15 suspended

When a cash flow hedging instrument expires 1s terminated aris
exercised or fahedge nolonger meets the quahfying cntena for
hedge accounting any cumulative gain or loss exisbing in the hedging
reserve at that tme remains in the hedging reserve and 1s recognised
when the forecast transaction s ultimately recognised in the income
statement. prowded that the underlying transactionis still expected
to occur When a forecast transactionis no longer expected Lo oceur
the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in the hedging reserve
1s immedhately recogrised in the income statement and all future
changes in the far value of the cash flow hedging instruments

are immediately recogmsed in the mcome statement

Britsh Sky Broadcasting Group plc
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Finandal statements - Notes to the consoldated financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(continued)

1 Accounting policies {contmued)

it Derivatives that qualify for fair value hedge accounting

The Group has designated certain derivatives as fair vatue hedges

as defined under IAS 39 Any changes in the fair value of the denvatives
are recognised immediately in the income statement The carrying
values of the underlying hedged items are adjusted for the changein
the farr value of the hedged risks with the gains or losses recognised
immediately in the income statement offsetung the fair value
movement on the dervative

Prospective effectiveness s assessed quarterly through a compartson
of the pnnaipal terms of the hedgng Instrument and the underlying
hedged item including the likelihood of default by the denvative
counterparty The retrospective effectiveness of the Group s far
value hedges is calculated quarterly using the cumulatve dollar-offset
approach, with mavements In the far value of the hedged item being
compared to movements in the fair value of the hedging instrument

The Group uses a range of 80% to 125% for hedge effectiveness and
any relationship which has effectiveness outside this range 1s deemed
to be ineffective and hedge accounting s suspended

i Embedded dervatives

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or other host
cantracts are treated as separate dernivatives when their nsks and
characteristics are not dosely related to those of the host centracts
and the host contracts are not carned at fair value, with unrealsed
gains or losses reported in the income statement Embedded
denvatives are carred on the balance sheet at farr value from the
inception of the host contract Changes in fair value are recognised
within the Income statement durning the pertod 1n which they arise

&) Inventornies

i Acquired and commissioned television programme inventories

for broadcast

Programme mventories for broadeast are stated at the lower of cost
and net reahisable value (*"NRV"), induding where applicable estimated
subscriber escalation payments and net of the accumulated expense
charged to the Income statement to date

Such programming nghts are included asinventanes when the tegaily
enforceablelicence pencd commences and allof the following conditions
have been met (a) the cost of each programme 1s known or reasonably
determinable (b) the programme matenal has been accepted by the
Group in accordance with the conditions of the rights and (¢) the
programme Is available for its first showing Pnor to being included
ininventones, the programmung rights are classified as television
programme nghts not yet avallable for transmission and not recorded
as inventornes on the Group s balance sheet and are instead disclosed
as contractual commitments (see note 26} Payments made upen
recaipt of cornmissioned and acquired programiming but in advance

of the legal nght to broadcast the programmes are treated

as prepayments

The cost of television programme inventones Is recogrised
in the operating expense hine of the income statement, pnmarnly
as described below

» Sports~100% of the cost 1s recognised in the income statement
on the first broadcast or, where the nghts are for multiple seasons
or competitions such nghts are prnapally recognised on
a straight-ine basis across the seasons or competitions

News - 100% of the cost s recognised in the income statement
on first broadcast

Movies - The cost 1s recogmsed in the income staternent
on a straight-lne basis over the penod of broadcast rights

.

General entertainment - The cost 1s recogrnised in the iIncome
statement based on the expected value of each planned broadcast,

Where programme broadcast rights are surplus to the Groups
requirements, and no gain 1s anticipated through a disposal of

the nghts or where the programmung wil not be broadcast for

any other reason a write-down to the income statement 1s made
Any reversals of inventory wnite-downs are recogrised as reductons
11 operating expense

is Programme distribution rights

Programme distribution nights are valued at the lower of cost
and NRV, net of the accumulated expense charged to the income
statement to date

The cost of the programme distribution nights 1s recogmised in
the operating expense lne of the iIncome statement on an Wtimate
revenue forecast basis

m Set-top boxes, routers and related equiprment

Set-top boxes routers and refated equipment are valued at the
lower of cost and NRV the latter of which reflects the value that
the business expects to realise from the set-top boxes and related
equipment in the hands of the customer, and are recagnised through
the operating expense ine of the income statermnent Any subsidy
is expensed on enablement, which is the process of activating

the viewing card duning installatton so as to enable a wewer to
view encrypted broadcast services and effectively represents

the completion of the installation process for new customers

The amount recogrised in the Income statement 1s determined on
awelghted average cost basis tn accordance with 1AS 2 "Inventory”

v Raw matenals, consumables and goods held for resale

Raw materials consumables and geods held for resale are valued

at the fower of cost and NRY The cost of raw matenals consumables
and goods held for resale 1s recogrised through the operating expense
line of the income statement on a first-in-first-out basis

h) Finanoial assets and habiities

Financial assets and labilities are imtially recogrused at fair vatue

plus any directly attributable transaction costs At each balance
sheet date the Group assesses whether there s any chjective
evidence that any financial asset 1s impaired Financial assets and
kabilities are recognised on the Group s balance sheet when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the finangal asset
or hability Financial assets are derecognised from the balance sheet
when the Group’s contractual rights to the cash flows expire or the
Group transfers substanually alf the nisks and rewards of the financial
asset Financial latwhties are derecogrused from the Groups balance
sheet when the obligation specified in the contract I1s discharged
cancelled cr expires
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1 Avallable-for-sale investments

Equity iInvestments intended to be held for an indefinite period
are classifted as available-for-sale investments They are carned
at farvalue where this can be reliably measured with movements
in far value recognised directly in the available-for-sale reserve
Where the fair value cannot be reliably measured, the investment
1scarned at cost

Any impairment losses in equity Investments classified as avalable-
far-gale investments are recogrised in the income statement and are
not reversible through the income statement and are determined with
reference to the dosing market share price at the balance sheet date
Any subsequent increase in the fair value of the avallable-for-sale
investment above the impaired value will be recognised within the
available-for-sale reserve

Available-for-sale investments are included within non-current assets
unless the carrying value 1s expected to be recovered principally
through sale rather than continung use 1n which case they are
included within current assets On disposal the difference between
the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration recewved and
any cumulative gain or loss that had previcusly been recogrused
directly in reserves s recognised in the income statement

1 Trade and other recervables

Trade and other receivables are non-dervative finanaal assets with
fixed or determinable payments and, where no stated interestrate

1s appiicable are measured at the ongnal invoice amount, If the effect
of discounting is immaterial Where discounting 1s matenal trade and
other receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interast method An allowance account 1s mamtamed to reduce the
carrying value of trade and other recevables for impairment losses
identified from objective evidence, with movements in the allowance
account either from increased impairment losses or reversals of
impairment losses, being recognised in the iIncome statement.

i Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equuvalents include ¢ash in hand bank accounts,
deposits receivable on demand and deposits with matunty dates
of three months or less from the date of inception Bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and which form an integral part of
the Group s cash management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents where offset conditions are met.

W Short-term deposits

This includes short-term deposits which have matunty dates of
more than three months frominception These deposits are initially
recognised at far value and then carried at amortised cost through
the income statement less any allowance for mpairment losses

v Trade and other payables

Tracle and other payables are non-denvative financial labihties and
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method
Trade and cther payables with no stated interest rate are measured
at the oniginal Invoice amount If the effect of discounting 1s iImmatenal

wi Borrowings

Barrowings are recarded as the proceeds receved net of direct 1ssue
costs Finance charges including any premium payable an settlement
or redemption and direct 1ssue costs are accounted for on an accruals
basis in the income statement using the effective interest methad
and are added to the carrying amount of the undertying Instrument
to whuch they relate to the extent that they are not settled in the
pernod in which they anse

Financial statements - Notesto the consolidated financial statements.

1} Impairment

At each balance sheet date i accordance with EAS 36 “impairment.

of Assets” the Group reviews the carmying amounts of all its assets
excluding inventones (see accounting policy g) non-current assets
classified as held for sale finanaal assets (see accounting policy h)
and deferred taxation (see accounting policy o) to determme whether
there s anyindication that any of those assets have suffered an
impairment loss

An impatrment Is recogrised in the income statement whenever the
carrying amount of an asset or (ts cash generaung unit exceeds its
recoverableamount Animpairment of aninvestment in ajoint venture
or assouate 1s recogrused within the share of profit from joint ventures
and associates The recoverable amount s the greater of net selling
price defined as the far value less costs to sell and value in use

In assessingvalue n use the esumated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
nisks specific to the asset Where it rs not pessible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset
belongs iImpairment losses recognised in respect of cash generating
uryts are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwll
allocated tothose units, and then to reduce the carrying amount of
other assets in the unit on a pro-rata basis

An impairment loss for anindividual asset or cash generating unit will
be reversed fthere has been a change in estmates used to determine
the recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised
and is only reversed to the extent that the asset s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined net of depreciation or amortisation if noimpairment

loss had beenrecognised impawrment of goodwill 15 not reversed

) Pronsions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a probable present
legal or constructive obligation to make a transfer of economic
benefits as aresult of past events where a reliable estimate s
avallable The amountsrecogmised represent the Groups best
estimate of the transfer of benefits that will be requirad to settle

the ebigation as of the balance sheet date Prowisrons are discounted
if the effect of the Limevalue of money s matenal using a pre-tax
market rate adjusted for nsks speafic to the kability

k) ESOP reserve

Where the Company orits subsidiaries purchase the Company s own
equity shares the cost of those shares mcluding any attributable
transactron costs s presented within the ESOP reserve as a deduction
In shareholders’ equity In the consolidated financial statements
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Finandal statements - Notes to the consokdated finanaal statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(continued)

1 Accounting polictes {continued)
1) Revenue recognition

Revenue which excludes value added tax and transactions between
Group companies represents the gross inflow of economic benefit
from Sky s operating actvites The Group s main sources of revenue
are recognised as follows

+ Retaill subscription revenue, induding subsenptions for TV and
over-the-1op services, Sky Broadband and Sky Talk services
1s recognised as the goods or services are pronded net of
any discount given Pay-per-view and transactional revenue
1s recognised when the event or movie is viewed

+ Wholesale revenue 13 recognised as the services are provided to
cable and other retailers and s based on the number of subscnbers
taking the Sky channels as reported to the Group by the cable
and other retalers and the applicable rate card or contract

+ Advertising sales revenue Is recognised when the advertising
15 broadcast Revenue generated from artime sales where Sky
acts as an agent on behalf of third parties, 1 recognised on a
net commission basis

Installatron, hardware and serace revenue 1s recognised in the
Income statement when the goods and services are acuvated

QOther revenue principally includes income frorn Sky Bet technical
platform services third party set-top box sales public access WiFI
services and programme distnbution fees With the exception of Sky
Bet revenue other revenue 1s recognised net of any discount given
when the refevant goods or service are prowded Sky Bet revenueis
recagrised in accordance with IAS 35 and represents income in the
penod for betting and gaming activities defined as amounts staked
by customers less winnings paid out

Revenue 1s measured at the far value of the consideration recemed
or receivable When the Group sells a set-top box, installatien or
service and a subscrnption in one bundled transaction the total
congideration from the arrangement s allocated to each element
based on therr relative fair values The far value of each individual
element 12 determined using vendor speafic or third party evidence
The amount of revenue the Group recognises for delivered elements
1s imited to the cash received

m) Employee benefits

Wages salaries sooal security contnbutions bonuses payable and
non-monetary benefits for current employees are recognised in
the income statement as the employees services arerendered

The Graup provides pensions to eligible employees through defined
contnbution schemes The amount charged to the income statement.
in the year represents the cost of contributtons payable by the Group
to the schemes in exchange for employee services rendered in that
year The assets of the schemes are held independently of the Group

Termination benefits are recognised as a liability at the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit
and when the Group recognises any related restructuring costs such
termination being before the normal retirement date or as the result
of an offer to encourage voluntary redundancy

The Group 1ssues equity-settled share-based payments to certain
employees which must be measured at farr value and recognised as
an expense N the ncome statement with a corresponding increase
1n eguity The farr values of these payments are measured at the
dates of grant using opuon-pricing models taking inte account the
terms and conditions upon which the awards are granted The fair

value 1s recognised over the penod dunng which employees become
unconditicnally entitled to the awards subject to the Groups estimate
of the number of awards which will be forfeited erther due to
employees leaving the Group pnor to vesting or due to non-market
based performance conditions not being met Where an award has
market-based performance conditions, the far value of the award s
adjusted for the probatnhity of achieving these via the option pricing
model The total amount recognised In theincome statement as an
expense Is adjusted te reflect the actual number of awards that vest
except whera forfeiture 15 due to the fadure to meet market-based
performance measures In the event of a cancellation, whether by
the Group or by a participating employee the compensat:on expense
that would have been recognised over the remainder of the vesting
penod 15 recogmsed immediately in profit or loss

n) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially aYl the nsks and rewards inadental to
ownership of the asset ta the lessee Allother leases are classified
as operating leases

When the Group 1s a lessor sub-lease income from operating leases
1s recognised on a straight-ine basis over the term of the lease

When the Group s 2 lessee assets heldunder finance leases are
recognised as assets of the Group at therr fair value on the date
of acquisition or flower at the present value of the minmum lease
payments The corresponding bability to the lessoris incuded in
the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation

Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and
reductions of the lease obligation so as to achueve a constant rate
of Interest on the remaining balance of the liability

The lease expense ansing from operating leases 1s charged to the
income statement on a straght-line basis over the term of the lease
Benefits received and receivable as incentives to enter into operaung
leases aze recorded on a straight-line basis over the lease term

©) Taxation including deferred taxation

The Group s lability for current tax is based on taxable profit for
the year and s cakutated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

Peferred tax assets and habiities are recogrnised using the balance
sheet abiity method, providing for temporary differences between
the carrying ameunts of assets and habitities 1n the balance sheet
and the corresponding tax bases usedin the computation of taxable
profit Temporary differences ansing from goodwill and the initial
recognition of assets or llabdities that affect nerther accounting profit
nar taxable profit are not provided for Deferred tax labilities are
recognised for taxable temporary differences ansing on investments
in subsidianes and assogates and interests in joint ventures except.
where the Group)s able to control thereversal of the temporary
difference and 1tis probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future The amount of deferred tax provided
1s based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of assets and liabilitres using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets s reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect an amount that s probable
to be realised based on the weight of all avallable evidence Deferred
tax s calculated at the rates that are expected te apply in the period
when the Lability 15 settled or the asset 15 realised Deferred taxassets
and liabihties are not discounted Deferred tax is charged or credited
In tha Income statement, except where it relates toitems charged

or credited directly to equity in which case the deferred taxis alse
included within equity Deferred tax assets and liabilittes are offset
when there Is a legally enforceable right to et of f current tax assets
against current tax habiities and when they refate to Income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to

settle Its current tax assets and llabilities on a net basis

p) Distributions to equity shareholders

Dinctends are recognised in the retaimed earmings reserve in the year
in which they are declared

The cost of repurchasing the Group s own equity shares for
cancellation ("share buy-backs~) 1s recorded m retained earnings
In addition the norminal cost of shares repurchased is deducted
from share capital and a matching credit 1s recorded in the capital
redemption reserve

q) Earnings per share

Basic earnings or loss per share represents the profit or boss for

the year dimded by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
1n 1ssue during the year excluding the weighted average number

of ordinary shares purchased by the Group and held in the Group s
ESOP during the year to satisfy employee share awards

Diluted earnings orloss per share represents the profit or loss for

the year dwided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
in1ssue during the year excluding the weighted average numberof
ordinary shares purchased by the Greup and held in the Group s ESOP
during the year to satisfy employee share awards, plus the weighted
average number of dilutive shares resuiting from share options where
the inciusion of these would not be anudilutive

r) Forergn currency transfatien

The Group s presentational currency 1s pounds sterkng, Trading
activiues denominated in forergn currencies are recorded in pounds
sterling at the applicabie menthly exchange rates Monetary assets
labilties and commitments denominated in foreign currencies at the
balance sheet date are reported at the rates of exchange at that date
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated to pounds sterling at the axchange rate prevailing at the
date of the inipal transaction Gains and losses from the retranslation
of assets and hiabilities are included netin profit for the year except
for exchange differences arising on non-monetary assets and hatwities
where the changes in farr value are recogrised directly in equity

The assets and habilties of the Group s foreign operations are
transfated at exchange rates prevalhing on the balance sheet date
Income and expense items are translated at the applicable monthly
average exchange rates Any exchange differences artsing are classified
as equity and transferred to other reserves

Financlal statements - Notes to the consolidated financal statements

s) Reportable segments

IFRS 8 "Operating Segments” requires the segment information
presented in the financial statements to be that which 1s used
internally by the chief operating decision maker to evaluate the
performance of the business and decide how to allocate resources
The Group has identified the Board of Directors as its chief eperating
decision maker and as the internal reporung reviewed by the Board
focuses anthe operations of the Group as awhole and does net
identify indimdual operating segments, the Group has only one
reportable segment

t) Accounting Standards, interpretations and amendments to
existing standards that are not yet effective

The Group has not yet adopted certain new standards amendments
and interpretations to existing standards which have been published
but are only effective for our accounting penods begianing on or
after1July2004 or later periods These new pronouncements are
Isted below

-

.

N

Amendments to IAS 36 *Impairment of Assets”
(effecuve 1 January 2014)

Amendmants to IAS 32 “Finanaal Instruments Presentaticn
— Offsetung Finanaal Assets and Finanaal Liaihties”
(effactive1 January 2014)

Amendments to [AS 3% “Financial Instruments Recognition
and Measurement - Novation of Denvatves and Continuation
of Hedge Accounting (effective 1 lanuary 2014)

Annual Improvements 2010-2012 cycle (effective 1 July 2014
Annual Improvernents 2011-2013 eycle (effective 1 July 2014)

Amendments to IFRS 11 "Accounting for Acquisittons of
Interestsin Jont Operations” (effective 1 January 2016)*

Amendments to IAS16 and IAS 38 "Qarfication of
Acceptable Methods of Deprecation and Amortisation”
(effective January 2016)*

IFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers™
(effective Llanuary 2017

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments® (effective 1 January 2008)*

* not yet endorsed for use in the EU

The Directars are currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of
these standards amendments and interpretations in future penods

u) Cntical accounting policies and the use of judgement

Certain accounting policies are considered to be critical to the Group
An accounting policy 15 considered to be cntical if in the Directors
Judgement its selection or application matenally affects the Group s
financial position or resuits Below s a summary of the Groupss ¢ntical
accounting policies and details of the key areas of judgement that
are exercised in their apphication
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Finandal staremants - Notes tothe consoadated finanoal statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(continued)

1 Accounting policies {continued)

I Revenue (see note 2)

Selecting the appropnate timing for and amount of revenue to be
recognised requires judgement This may nvolve estimating the fair
value of consideration before 1t s received When the Group sells a
set-top box instaltation or service and a subscniption in one bundled
transaction, the total consideration from the arrangement is aliocated
to each element based on its refative far value The far value of each
ndividual element is determined using vendor specific or third party
evidence The amount of revenue the Group recognises for delivered
elements s knuted to the cash receved

U1 Taxatron, including deferred taxation (see notes 7 and 15}

The Groups tax charge 15 the sum of the total current and deferred
tax charges The calculation of the Group s total tax charge necessanly
involves a degree of esumabion and judgement In respect of certan
items whose tax treatment cannot be finally determined until
resciution has been reached with the relevant tax authority or

as appropriate, through a formal legal process

Prowvisions for tax contingencies require management, to make
Judgements and esumates in relation to tax audit Issues and exposures
Armnounts provided are based on management s mterpretauion of
country-specific tax taw and the Ikelihood of settlement Tax benefits
are not recognised unless itrs probable that the tax positions will be
sustained Once considered to be probable management reviews each
matenal tax benefit to assess whether a prowision should be taken
aganst full recognition of the benefit on the basis of the likely resclution
of the 1ssue through negotiation and/or litigation

The amounts recognised in the consolidated financal statements

n respect of each matter are derived from the Group s best estimation
and judgement, as described above However the inherent uncertainty
regarding the outcome of these items means the eventual resolution
could differ from the provision and in such event the Group would

be required to make an adjustment in a subsequent penod which
could have a materialimpact on the Group’s profit and loss andfor
cash position

The key area of judgement in respect of deferred tax accountingis
the assessment of the expected tming and manner of realisation
or settlement, of the carrying amounts of assets and habilities held
at the balance sheet date In particular assessmentis required

of whether it is probable that there will be suitable future taxable
profits against which any deferred tax assets can be utifised

in Acauisitton accountng and goodwill (see note 10)

Judgement s required in determining the far vatue of identifiable
assets llabilities and contingent assets and babidities assumedina
business combination and the fair value of the consideration payable
Caleulating the fair values involves the use of significant estimates and
assumptions Including expectations abeut future cash flows discount
rates and the lives of assets following purchase

Judgement is also required inidentifying the cash generating units

to which the goodwillis associated for the purposes of goodwill
impairment testing Identification of cash generating units involves
an assessment of whether assets or groups of assets generate cash
flows that are largely independent of other assets or groups of assets
Goodwillis then allocated te each identified cash generating unit

that s expected to benefit from the synergies of the business
combinations from which goodwill has anisen

v intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

(see notes 11 and 12)

The assessment of the useful economiclives of these assets
requires judgement. Deprecration and amortisation s charged to
the income statement based on the useful econemic Iife selected
This assessment requires estimation of the penod over which the
Group will benefit from the assets

Determining whether the carrying amount of these assets has any
indication of impairment also requires judgement If an incication
of mparment s identified, further jJudgement s required to assess
whether the carnyng amount can be supported by the net present
value of future cash fiows forecast to be denwved from the asset.
This forecast involves cash flow projections and selectng the
appropnate discount rate

Assessing whether assets meet the required critena forinigial
capitalisatton requires Judgement This requires a determination

of whether the assets wall result in future benefits to the Group

In particular internally generated intangble assets must be assessed
dunng the development phase to identfy whether the Group has

the ability and Intention to complete the development successhully

v Programming inventory for broadcast (see note 16)

The key area of accounting for programming inventory for broadeast
that requires judgement 15 the assessment of the appropriate

profile over whuch to amortse general entertainment programming
This assessment requires the Group to form an expectation of the
number of times a programme will be broadcast, and the refative valug
associated with each broadcast tn order to perform this assessment
the Group considers the following factars

The pertod over which the programme 1s expected to be shown
on the Group s channels This is usually based on a combination
of the actual period speafied In the contract for the programme
nghts and thenitial expectation of when repeat broadcasts
will be scheduled

The alternative programming available to the Group for scheduling
within this peried This consideration provides the most appropriate
Information in order to estimate how frequently indiwidual
programmes wiil be shown duning the pened in which the Greup
holds their broadcast nghts

The potential benefits associated with scheduling programming
Certain high-profile or high quality programming titles have
additenal value to the Greup as they attract new TV customers
and encourage retention of existing TV customers As such these
programmes are able to retain more value throughout their
broadcast runs than would be indicated when considering the
expected viewng numbers alone

Expectations as to the number of viewers a programme s hikaly
to achieve for each indmdual broadcast over the contractual
broadcast penod The number of viewers per broadcast directly
influences advertsing revenue for channels although this
consideration is partly influenced by the Group s assessment

of the potentialimpact of the publicly avalable information onits
competitors’ scheduling intentions against planned broadcasts
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Financial statements « Notes to the consobidatad hinancal statements

2 Revenue
2014 2013
Em £m
Retail subscnption 6,255 5951
Wholesale subscription 422 386
Advertising 472 440
Installation hardware and service a5 87
Qther 398 361
7632 7235

Revenue anses from goods and services provided to the UK, with the exception of E478 milton (2013 E46) million) which anses from services provided
to okher countnes Included within wholesale subscniption revenue For the year ended 30 June 2014 15 £15 mullion credit received followng the termination

of an escrow agreement with a current wholesale operator

3 Operating expense

2014 2013

Em Em

Programming 2662 2487
Direct networks 850 686
Marketing 1215 m7
Subscriber management and supply chain 694 673
Transmission technology and fixed networks 460 405
Admirustration 590 576
6471 5944

Inchuded within operating expenses for the year ended 30 June 2014 are

Costs of EZ2miTronrelating to the acquisition and integration of the 02 consumer broadband and fixed-line telephony business including amortisation of £27 milkon in fetation

to asseciated intangble assets The costs have been recognised as follows

- E31mulhon withindirect networks

- E24 mllron withun admirestration

= E13mithon withintransmission, technology and fixed networks

= E3mionwthin subscriber management and supply dhamn

= Elmfhion within markating.

Costs of E40 million relating to a corporate restructuring and effiency programme i the current year ncuding an impairment of £2 milion i relation to assocated ntangible
and tangible assets These costs have beenrecognsed as follows

= E22 mullitn withun admnsstration

= E15 myfllon withun marketing

= E3millonwathin subscnber management and supply chain

Cests of E2milien as aresult of the termination of an escrow agreemant with a current wholesale operator This cost has been recognsad withun admarustration

B

Inchaded within operating expenses for the year ended 30 June 2013 are

Credit of €32 milhon relating to acredit note recewvad following an Dfcom determination This credit has been recogrused within direct networks.

Credit of £33 mihonrelating to the final settlement of disputes with a former manufacturer of set top boxes, net of assooated costs and including an impasment of £6 rmilion
wn refation to associated intangible assets This credit has beenrecogased within subscnber management and suppty chain

Costs of £31 million relating tothe one-offupgrade of set top boxes The costs have beenrecognised within subscriber managermant and supply chain

Costs of £25 rmillan relating to & programme to of far wireless connectors to selected Sky Movies customers The costs have been recogrused within subscnber management
and supply chain

Costs of 15 mélion refating to the acquisition and integration of the 02 consumar broadband and fixed-iine telephony business induding amerusation of £4 millon n relation
to assocated intangible assets The costs have been recognised as follows

- €7 millon within admenistration

- £3 mithon within direct networks

- E3rilionwithin transmmission, technalegy and fired networks

- E2milhon withun sutrserber management and supply chain,

Costs of £33 milkon relating to a corporate efficency programme in the prior year including an impairment of £6 mullion inrelabon to assecated mtangible and tangible assets
The cests have been recogrised as follows

- E29milhon withwn administration

= Elmullion withun programming

= E1mlin within marketing

- Elmilion withun subscriber management and supply chain

- £1 mullien within transmissian, technology and fixed netwarks
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Financial statemernts - Notes to the consolidated financal statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(continued)

4 Investment income and finance costs

2004 2013
£m Em
Investment income
Interest on cash cash equivalents and short-term deposits 4 g9
Dividends recewed from available-for-sale ;nvestments 22 19
26 28
2004 2013
Em £m
Finance costs
~Interest payable and similar charges
£743 million Revohling Credit Facility ("RCF7) [#a) [#4]
Guaranteed Notes (see note 20) (126) (122)
Finance lease Interest 7) (€]
(135) 31
- Gther finance iIncome (expense)
Remeasurement of borrowings and borrowings-related derivative financial Instruments (not qualifyving for hedge accounting) 3] 2
Remeasurement of other danvative financial instruments (not qualifying for hedge accounting) (G )]
Loss ansing on denvatives in a designated fair value hedge accounting retationship (30 (34)
Gain anising on adjustment for hedged item in a designated fair value hedge accounting refatienship 32 36
{5} 23
(140} €108)
Borrowing costs inciuded in the cost of qualifying assets dunng the year arose on the general borrowing pocl and are calculated by
applying a capitalisation rate of 4 9% (2013 S 2%) to expenditure on such assets The amount capitalised in the current year amounted
to £4 million (2013 £2 mullion)
5 Profit before taxation
Prefit before taxation s stated after charging
2014 2013
Em Em
Cost of Inventories recognised as an expense 2208 1992
Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment 208 76
Amortisatton and impairment of intangible assets 228 202
Rentals on operating leases and similar arrangements 49 51
Consolidated non-current assets outside the UK were E3 milllon (2013 £8 milion)
Foreign exchange
Foreign exchange losses recogrused in the income statement dunng the year amounted to £2 milhion (2013 losses of £1million)
Audit fees
An analysis of auditor's remuneration is as follows
2014 2013
Em £m
Total audit fees 16 13
Total non-audit fees 14 1
Total auditor remuneration 30 24

Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the Company s annual accounts were £1 3milion (2013 E12million) and fees payable
to the Company's auditor for the audit of the Company’s subsidianes pursuant to legislation were £0 3 milion (2013 £EC1mulion)

Amounts paid to the auditor for non-audit fees include audit related services of £0 2millien (2013 £Q 3milhon) taxation services of £05 mullion

(2013 EQ 3 rmulbon) other assurance services of £01million (2093 £0 3 million) other adwisory services of nil (2013 nil) and transaction services
of £06 million (2013 £0 2 million)
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6 Employee benefits and key management compensation

a) Group employee benefits

Financial statements - Notes ta the congobidated financial statements

2014 2013

Em £Em

Wages and safaries Ba4 781
Social security costs 101 (o}
Costs of employee share option schemes® &0 80
Contributions to the Group s pension schemes® 39 27
1044 989

(i} E6D mithoncharge relates to equity-settled share-based payments (2013 £80 milhon charge)

() The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes The pension charga for the year represents the cost of contributions payabte by the Group to the schemes
during the year The amaount payable te the schermes by the Group at 30 June 2014 was £5 midlion Q013 £2 mulhon).

The average monthly number of full-time equivalent persons (including temporary employees) employed by the Group during the year was as follows

2014 2013

Number Number

Channels and services 3477 270
Customer service sales and marketing 13035 1943
Transmussion and technofogy 3257 3651
Management and administration 1072 ma
20841 15 413

There are approximately 457 (2013 523) temporary staff included within the average number of fuil-ime equivalent persans employed by the Group

b) Key management compensation {(see note 28d)

2014 2013

£m Em

Short-term employee benefits & 6
Share-based payments 7 10
13 16

Post-employment benefits were less than £1miflion (2013 less than £1 million) The amounts disclosed for key management compensatron are included

within the disclosures mnete 6(@)
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(continued)

7 Taxation

a) Taxation recognised in the income statement

2014 2013
£m £m
Current tax expense
Current year 232 332
Adjustment in respect of prior years [E1)] (44)
Total current tax charge 20 288
Deferred tax expense
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences 5 {20}
Adjustment in respect of prior years n 10
Total deferred tax charge {credit) 16 (1)
Taxation 217 278
Taxation relates to a £215 milion UK corperation tax charge (2013 £275 milbon) and £2 million overseas corperation tax charge (2013 £3 millwn)
b) Taxation recogmsed directly in equity
2014 2013
Em Em
Current tax credit, relating to share-based payments (9 (3]
Deferred tax credit relating to share-based payments - (]
Deferred tax credit relating to cash flow hedges (8) (8)
an 26)
) Reconahation of effective tax rate
The tax expense for the year 1s iower (2013 lower) than the expense that would have been charged using the blended rate of corporation tax
n the UK (22.5%) applied to profit before tax The applicable enacted or substantively enacted effective rate of UK corporatzon tax for the year
was 22.5% (2013 23 75%) The differences are explained below
2014 2013
£m £m
Profit before tax 1082 1257
Profit before tax mulupled by blended rate of corporation tax n the UK of 22 5% (2013 23 75%) 243 299
Effects of
Net effect of non-taxable/non-deductble items ® 13
Deferred tax write-off following tax rate change -
Adjustments in respect of pror years 20) (34)
Taxation 217 278
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8 Earnings per share

The wetghted average number of shares for the year was

2014 2013
Millionsof  Millions of
shares shares
Ordinary shares 1581 1633
ESOP trust ordinary shares 9) (19}
Basic shares 1562 1614
Dilutive ordinary shares from share options 14 26
Diluted shares 1576 1640
There are no share options (2013 none) which could potentially dilute earnings per share in the future but which have been excluded from
the caleudation of diluted earrings per share as they are anti-dilutive in the year
Basic and diluted earnings per share are cattulated by dividing the prefit for the year into the weighted average number of shares for the year
In order to provide a measure of underlying performance management have chosen to present an adjusted profit for the year which excludes
1terns that may distort cemparability Such items arise from events or transactions that fall within the ordinary activities of the Group but which
management belleves should be separately identified to help explain underiying performance
201 2013
£m £m
Reconciliation from profit for the year to adjusted profit for the year
Profit for the year 865 49758
Costs relating to the acqusition and integration of the O2 consumer broadband and fixed-ine telephony business
(seenote 3} 72 15
Costs relating to corporate restructuning and effiency programmes (see note 3) 40 33
Net credit received following termination of an escrow agreement with a current wholesale operator (see notes 2 and 3) 3) -
Credit recerved folfowing an Ofcom determination (see note 3} - (32)
Costs relating to programme to offer wireless connectors to selected Sky Movies customers (see note 3) - 25
Net eredit receved Following fina) settlement of disputes with a former manufacturer of set-top boxes and costs
relating to one-off upgrade of set-top boxes (see note 3) - 2
Remeasurement of all dervative financialinstruments not quahifying for hedge accounting and hedge
neffectiveness (see note 4) 5 (23)
Profit on disposal of joint venture (see note 13) - 9)
Tax adjusting Items and the tax effect of above items (32 )
Adjusted profit for the year 937 269
2014 2013
pence pence
Earnings per share from profit for the year
Basic 554p 607p
Diluted 549p 587p
Adjusted earnings per share from adjusted prefit for the year
Basic 600p &0Cp
Diluted 595p 591p
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(continued)
9 Dividends
2004 2m3
Em £m
Dividends declared and paid duning the year
2012 Final dividend paid 16 20p per ordinary share - 265
2013 Interim dvidend paid 11 00p per ordinary share - 176
2013 Final dwdend paid 19 00p per ordinary share 298 -
2014 Intenm dividend paid 12 00p per ardinary share 187 -
485 441

The 2014 final dividend proposed 1s 20 0 pence per ordinary share being £308 milbon The divtdend was not declared at the balance sheet date
and 1s therefore not recognised as a lability as at 30 June 2014

Dividends are paid between Group compan:es out of profits avalable for distribution subject to inter alia the prowisions of the companies
articles of association and the Companies Act 2006 The ESOP has waved 1ts nghts to dwvidends

10 Goodwill f
Em

Carrying value

At 1 July 2012 956

Purchase of 02 consumer broadband and fixed-line tefephony business 49

Other ®

At 30 June 2013 999

Other 20

At 30 June 2014 1,019

Goodwill has principally arisen from the Group's purchases of the Sports Internet Group ("SIG”) British Interactive Broadcasting ('BiB") Easynets
UK broadband network assets and residentral activities 365 Media Amstrad Living TV The Cloud and the 02 consumer breadband and fixed-line
telephony business

Goodwill allacated by cash generating urit 15 analysed as folows

2004 203

£m £m

Broadcast® 870 850
Betting and gamingt? 149 149
1019 999

Imparment reviews were performed on these goodwill balances at 3¢ June 2014 which did not indicate imgairment
The Broadcast unit Includes intang bles wath indefinite ives of £25 milhion (2013 £25 milkon)

Recoverable amounts for the cash generating units were calcutated on the basis of value in use or fair value less costs to sell as approprate
using cash flows calculated for the next five years as forecast by management A long-term growth rate of 3% was appled in order to extrapolate
cash flow projections beyond this perniod (2013 3%} The cash flows of the Broadcast unit were discounted using a pre-tax discount rate of 8%
(2013 8%) and the cash flows of the Betting and gaming unit were discounted using a pre-tax discount rate of 10% (2013 10%)

In determming the applicable discount rate management applied judgement in respect of several factors which included inter aha assessing
the risk attached to future cash flows and making reference to the capital asset pricing model (the *CAPM ) Management gave consideration

to the selection of appropriate INnputs to the CAPM which included the nsk free rate the equity risk premium and a measure of systematic nsk
Management also considers capital structure and an appropnate cost of debt in arriving at the discount rate

i) Broadcast

The Broadeast unit inciudes goodwill arising from the purchase of Bi8 Easynet s UK broadband network assets and residential actimties 365 Medias
content activties Amstrad Living TV, The Joud and the G2 consumer broadband and fixed-line telephonybusiness The key assumptions on which
forecast five-year cash flows of the Broadcast unit were based include the number of gross customer additions the rate of churn, the average revenue
per user levels of programming spend acquisition casts per customer and anticipated changes in the product mix and marketing mix of the broadcast
activities The values assignad to each of these assumptions were determined based on the extrapolation of histoncal trends within the Group and
external Information on expected future trends m the UK and Ireland entertainment and communications industry

1) Becting and gaming

The 8etung and gaming unit includes goodwll ansing from the purchase of SIG and 365 Medias betung actvities The key assumptions on
which forecast five-year cash flows were based include the number of weekly unique users the number of bets placed per user per week
the average stake per user per week and the average spend per active user per week The values assigned to each of these assumptions
were determined based on an extrapolation of historical trands withen the urit and external information on expected future trends in
betting and gaming
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N Intangible assets

Internalty
generated Acquired
Software Customer intangible ntangible
Internally development contracts assets assets
generated {external) and refated Other not yet not yet
ntangible  and software customer intangible avatlable avalable
assets licences  relationships assets foruse foruse Tetal
Em Em Em £m £m Em £m
Cost
At July 2012 252 427 €0 224 84 103 1120
Additions from business combinauons - - 137 2 - - 139
Additions 102 45 - 66 25 20 258
Disposals (15} ()] - - 2 {7 &)
Transfers 47 59 - - (47) (59 -
At 30 June 2013 386 525 197 282 30 57 1,487
Addittons from business combinations - - 6 2 - - 8
Additions 87 38 - 64 84 41 312
Disposals {8y (ia) - 3 - - (3s)
Transfers 43 n - 1 (43) [4F)) -
At 30 June 2014 4938 558 203 356 pll a6 1,772
Amertisation
At 1 July 2012 122 308 g 158 - - 557
Amortisation 72 55 7 57 - - 19
Disposals (s (6) - - (2} 7y {30y
Imparments 2 - - - 2 7 1t
At 30 June 2013 181 357 16 215 - = 769
Amortisation 76 53 26 il - - 226
Disposals {18) (4 - [€)] - - (35)
Impairments - 1 - 1 - - 2
At 30 June 2014 239 357 42 284 - - 962
Carrying amounts
At July 2012 130 19 5 66 54 103 523
At 30 fune 2013 205 168 181 77 30 57 718
At 30 lune 2014 259 161 161 72 71 86 810

The Group s Internally generated intangible assets refate pnnapally to software development associated with our customer management systems
and set-top boxes The Group s other intangible assets mainly include copyright licences connection fees and patents and brands acquired in business
combinations

The estimated future amortisation charge on intangible assets with finite lives for each of the next five years 15 set out. below ttis hkely that future
amortisation will vary from the figures below as the estimate does not include the impact of any future investments disposals or capital expenditure

2015 2016 a7 2018 2019
£m Em £m Em £m
Estimated amortisation charge 230 183 151 105 55

For intangible assets acquired i business combrnations in the year the average amortisation penod s § years (2013 6 years)

Other Intangible assets include certain assets with indefinite usefulives The carrying value of these assets rs £25 milkon (2013 £25 million)
Animpairment review of the assets 1s performed annually as part of the Group s review of the Broadcast CGU (note 10)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(continued)
12 Property, plant and equipment.

Equipment Assets
Freehold furniture not yet
land and Leasehold and available
buldings®™) improvements fixtures for use Total
£m £m Em £m £m
Cost
A1 July 2012 333 59 1210 27 1629
Additiens from business combinations - - 25 - 25
Additions 1 1 94 48 244
Dispasals - (2 (64) - {66)
Transfers - - 22 (22 -
At 30 June 2013 334 58 1,387 53 1832
Additions 4 - 13 n9 254
Disposals - (] 74 - 75)
Transfers £ - 34 (65) -
At 30 June 2074 369 57 1478 107, 20m
Depreaation
AL July 2012 40 27 614 - 681
Depreciation [ 2 160 - 174
Disposals - 2 &4) - (663
Impairments - 1 1 - 2
At 30 June 2013 46 34 1 - 791
Foreign exchange movements - - (1) - [4))
Depreciation 8 7 193 - 208
Disposals - (M 74y - (75)
At 30 June 2014 54 40 229 - 923
Carrying amounts
AL July 2012 253 32 586 7 948
At 30 June 20713 288 24 676 53 1043
At 30 June 2014 315 17 649 107 1088

() The amounts shown include assets held under finance leases with a net book value of £14 million (2013 £13 million) The cost of these assetswas £23 milion (M3 £20 miltor)
and the accumulated depreciationwas €9 milion (2013 E7 million} Depreaation charged during the year on such assets was E2 eillion (2013 £3 rullien)y
(O Depreciation was not charged on EB8 millien of fand (2073 £88 millon).
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13 Investments in Joint ventures and associates

A list of the Group s significant iInvestments in joint ventures and associates including thename country of incorporation and propertion
of ownership interest 1s gven in note 30 to the consolidated finanaal statements

The movementin joint ventures and assocates duning the year was as follows

204 2003
Em £m
Share of net assets
AL July 164 156
Mavement in net assets
- Funding, net of repayments 6 4
- Dividends recevedd (32 {43
- Share of profits® 35 46
- Disposal of jont venture - 0}
- Exchange differences on translation of foreign joint ventures and associates - 2
AL 30 June 73 164
(1) During the prior year the Group dispasad of its interest v MUTV Limuted nglutted in share of profits for the year 1s a profit on disposal of £9 midhion.
Consideration recewved on the sale of £10 miflion 1s included within dvidends received
The Groups share of any capital commitments and cantingent habilities of asseciates and joint ventures 1s shown in note 26
a) Investmentsin associates
Representing a 100% share of two matenal assoctates NGC Netwoerk International LLC and NGC Network Latin America LLC, In aggregate
2014 2013
£m £m
Non-curment assets 83 67
Cuirent assets 236 241
Cutrrent llabiities (73) (B6)
Shareholders equity 246 222
Group s share of shareholders equity 52 47
Consolidation and other adjustments 80 82
Investment in asscciates 132 129
Revenue 323 325
profit from continuing operations 106 107
b) Investments in joint ventures
Representing the Group s share of each Jjoint venture
2014 2013
£m £m
Non-current assets 26 18
Current assets a6 P
Current habilities (74) (32)
Nan-current liabilites O] (40)
Shareholders’ equity 17 18
Revenue 23 a0
Expense N 70
Taxation 3) &)
Share of profit from joint ventures 13 15

The aggregate carrying amount of the investments in jo:nt venturas and assocates that are not indvidualty matena! for the Group
1s £41 milkon as at 30 June 2014 (2013 £35 million)
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(continued)

14 Avallable-for-sale investments

2014 2013

£m fm

Investment in ITV at cost 946 346
Impairment of ITV investment (BO7) 807

Realsed gan on ITV investment 15 15
Part disposal of ITV.Investment (196) (196)

Unrealised gain on [TV investment 456 351

ITV investment 514 409

Other investments 19 13

533 422

©On 17 Navember 2006 the Group acquired 696 million shares in ITV, at a price of 135 pence per share representing 179% of the issued capitat of TV
for a total consideration of £946 mifionincluding fees and taxes The Groups investment in ITV s carried at fair value

The farr value I1s determined with reference to its equity share price at the balance sheet date In accordance with IFRS the Group has recognised
impairment kosses in the years ended 30 June 2008 and 30 June 2009 the first of which was recorded at 31 December 2007 due to the significant
and profonged dedine in the equity share price The latest impairment loss was determined with reference to ITV s closing equity share price

of 20 0 pence at 27 March 2009 bringing the cumulative mpairment loss to EB07 mulion In ine with IFRS all subsequent increases in the fair

value of the ITV Investment above this impaired value have been recorded in the available -for-sale reserve

©On 8 February 2010 the Group placed a shareholding of 10 4% 1n ITV In accordance with the final undertakings given by the Group to the Secretary

of State for Business Innovation and Skills relating to the Group s investment n ITV The placing by the Group of 404 362,095 TV shares at 48 5 pence
per share resulted In aggregate consideration of £196 million A profit of £115 million was realised on disposal being the excess of the consideration
above the imparred value of the shares The disposal was exempt from tax under the provisions of the Substantial Shareholding Exemption ("S5€7)
and as such the SSE provisions prevented any capital loss ansing for tax purposes

AL 30 tune 2014 the Group held 723% of the shares in [TV On 17 July 2014 the Group sold a shareholding of approximately 6 4% in TV consisting
of 259820065 ITV shares For further details refer to note 29 The disposal of these shares inITV will not be eligible for SSE but the gan on disposal
of the shares will be covered by capital losses

15 Deferred tax

1) Recognised deferred tax assets (habihities)

Share based Financial
Accelerated Short-term payments  instruments
tax temporary temporary temporary
depreaiation Tax losses differences differences differences Total
Em Em £m £m £m £rm
At 1July 2012 12 1 6 26 [€ly)] i5
{Chargs) credit to Income (2 ] - 18 (5) 10
Credit to equity - - - 6 18 24
Acquisition of subsidiaries 12) - - - - 02)
Effect of change in tax rate
- Income \ 1 - M o 1 -
At 30 fune 2013 )] - 5 49 {16} 37
Credit (charge) to income 4 - m (18) 1 {19
Credit to equity - - - 1 10
Acquisition of subsidiaries 1 - - - - 1
Effect of change in tax rate
- Income - - - [&)] 1 {2y
- Equity - - - [0} m @
At 30 June 2014 4 - 4 28 (5} 30

Deferred tax assets have been recogrised at 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013 on the basis that from management s current forecast of the Groups
entities 1t 1s probable that there will be sutable taxable profits against which these assets can be utilised Tax losses are treated as unrecognised
deferred tax assetsf it 15 not considered probable that sutable future taxable profits will anse During the year, any taxlosses suffered by UK
entinies have been relieved against taxable profits in other UK enbties in the Group

Deferred tax assets and habilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to applyin the pencdsin which they reverse The rate enacted
or substantively enacted for the relevant periods of reversal i1s 20% as at 30 June 2014 (2013 23%)

The rate s due to come into effect on 1 Apnl 2015
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Certain deferred tax assets and labilities have been offset The following is the anatysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for financal
reporting purposes

2014 2013

£m Em

Deferred tax assets 52 70
Deferred tax labiities (22) {33
30 37

iy Unrecogrised deferred tax assets

204 2013

£m £m

Tax lusses ansing from trading 245 2n
Tax losses ansing from capital disposals and pravisions againstinvestments 283 323
528 594

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the items above because 1t s not probable that future taxable prefits will be avalable
against which the Group can utulise the losses

AL 30 June 2014, a deferred tax asset of £9 milion (2013 £15 million) prinapally ansing from UK trading losses 1n the Group has not been recognised
These losses can only be offset against taxable profits generatedin the entitias concerned There 1S curtently insufficrent evidence to support the
recognition of a deferred tax asset relating to these losses The UK trading losses can be carned forward indefinitely

AL 30 June 2014 a deferred tax asset of £236 million (2013 £256 milhion) has not been recognised in respect of overseas tracing losses on the
basis that it I1s not probable that these temporary differences will be utilised These losses nclude £233 milhion (2013 £250 millior) with respect
ta the Group s German holding company's former investrnent In KirehPayTV and £3 million (2013 £6 milion) with respect to other subsidianies

At 30 June 2014 a deferred tax asset of £274 milion (2013 £312 million) has not been recogrised in respect of capitallosses related to the Groups
former mvestment in KirchPayTV on the basis that utdisation of these temparary differences 1s not probable At 3C June 2014 the Group alse has
capital losses with a tax value estimated to be £8 milhon (2013 E11 mullion) including impairment of a footbalf club and other investments which
have not been recognised as a deferred tax asset onthe basis thatitis not probable that they will be utised The capital losses can be carned
forward indefinitely

16 Inventories

20014 2013

Em £m

Television programme rights 488 470
Set-top boxes and related equipment 50 70
QOther inventones 8 8
Currentinventory 546 548
Non-current programme distribution nghts 20 17
Total inventory 566 565

At 30 June 2014 81% (2013 85%) of the telewision programme rights and 100% (2013 100%) of set-top boxes and related equpment and other
inventories Is expected to be recognised in the income statement within 12 menths
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(continued}

17 Trade and other receivables

204 2013
Em £m
Gross trade recevables 235 163
Less provision for impairment of recervables (95) (89)
Net trade receivables 140 74
Amounts recevable from joint ventures and associates 7 8
Amounts recevable from other related parties 5 ?
Prepayments 279 309
Accrued iIncome 179 162
VAT 2 i
QOther 23 30
Current trade and other receivables 635 531
Prepayments 4 3]
Cther receivables 3 1 {
Non-current trade and other recevables 7 17
Total trade and other receivables 542 608
Included withtn current trade and other recewvables s nil (2013 nily which s due in mare than one year
The ageing of the Group $ net trade receivables which are past due but not mparred 5 as follows
204 2013
£m £m
Up to 30 days past due date 107 52
30 to 60 days past due date 4 s
60 to 120 days past due date 2 2
113 59
The Directors consider that the carrying amaunt of trade and other recevables approximates therr fair values The Group Is exposed to
credit risk on its trade and other receivables however the Group does nat have any sigmificant concentrations of credit nsk, wath expaosure
spread aver a large number of counterparties and customers Trade recewables principally comprise amounts outstanding from subscribers
advertisers and other customers
Prowvisions For doubtful debts
2014 2003
£m £m
Balance at beginning of year 89 89
Amounts utilised 27 {36)
Provided dunng the year a3 36
Balance at end of year 85 89 |
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2014 2013
Em Em
Trade payables® e 2
Amounts owed to joint ventures and asscciates n 9
Amounts owed to other related parties 124 102
VAT 169 143
Accruals 747 685
Deferred ncome 38 205
Other 15 77
Current trade and other payables 2,286 2,023
Trade payables 23 18
Amounts owed to other related parties 10 -
Deferred ncome 5 9
Other 18 36
Non-current trade and other payables 56 63
Total trade and other payables 2342 2086
(N Included withun trade payables are E213 rillon (2093 £225 milbon) of US dollar-denominated payables
The Directors consicer that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates their fair values Trade payables principally
comprise amounts outstanding for programming purchases and ongoing costs
19 Prowvisions
Provided
At Reclassfied (released) Vthised At Provided Utilised
1July dunng during during 1 July dunng dunng At
2012 theyear the year the year 2013 the year the year 30 June
Em £m £m Em Em Em Em 2014
Current iabilities
Restructuring provision® 6 - 13 (3) 16 14 (8) 22
Acquired and acquisition-related prowisions®? 15 [} () - - - - -
Customer-related provisions®? - - a7 ©) 4] - 39
Other provisions®™ 22 ird 17 [415)] 37 & (19 24
43 15 63 {28) 94 20 (66) 48
Non-current liabilices
Othar provisions®™ 12 2 8 {6) 14 10 (10) 14

) Theseprovisions s:gnificantiyrelate to costs incurred as part of corporate efficiercy programmes
) These provis:ors arose on the acquisiticn of Amstrad which took place dunng the year ended 30 June 2008

(1) These provisions are for those costs Incurred in the one off upgrade of s et-top boxes and the programme to offer wireless connectors to selected Sky Mowes customers

(V) Included inother provisions are amounts prowided For legat disputes and warranty labilies
() Included within non-current ather pi
oh the terms of the leases, but are expected to CONUINUG up to August 2016

15 are amounts provided for onerous contracts for propertylsases and mantenance The trming of the cash flows are dependent
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(continued)

20 Borrowings

004 2003
Em Em
Current borrowings

Obligations under finance leases™ 1 1

Non-current borrowngs
US$750 million of 5 625% Guaranteed Notes repayable in Qctober 20159 434 496
E£400 milhon of & 750% Guaranteed Notes repayable in Octaber 2017 400 a04
US$750 millicn of §100% Guaranteed Notes repayable in February 20189 442 498
US$5828 millicn of 9 500% Guaranteed Notes repayable in November 20189 353 a0a
US$800 million of 3125% Guaranteed Notes repayable in November 20224 466 520
£300 mihon of 6 000% Guaranteed Notes repayable i May 20270 296 296
US$350 million of 6 500% Guaranteed Notes repayable in October 2035@ 201 225
Loan Notes repayable in December 2006 1 -
Obligations under finance leases® 65 66
2,658 2,908

(1) Guaranteed Notes

At 30 June 2014, the Group had in 1ssue the following Guaranteed Notes which were issued by the Company

interest Rate Hedping Hedged interest Rates
Hedged
Valug* Fixad Floating
£m £m Em Fixed Floating
1S$750 million of 6100% Guarantesd Notes repayable \n February 2018 387 260 97 6 829% &m LIBOR +1892%
Us$582 B million of 9 500% Guaranteed Notes repayable In November 2018 339 260 129 7091% &m LIBOR + 5 542%
US$800 million of 3125% Guaranteed Notes repayable in November 2022 503 503 - 3226% NiA
E 300 milleon of & CO0% Guaranteed Notes repayable in May 2027 300 300 - 6000% NiA
1,579 1353 226
AL 30 June 2014 the Group had inissue the following Guaranteed Notes, which were issued by BSkyB Finance UK ple
Interest Rate Hedging Hedgad interest Rates
Hedged
Value* Fixed Floating
£m £m £m Fixed Floating
5$750 mullion of 5 625% Guaranteed Notes repayable in Gctober 2015 423 7 257 5427% &m LIBOR + C598%
£400 milzon of S 750% Guarantead Notes repayable in October 2017 400 350 50 5750% 6m LIBOR - D 229%
US$350 million of 6 500% Guaranteed Notes repayable in Gctober 2035 200 200 - 5 B826% N/A
1,028 T2 307
At 30 June 2013 the Group had in issue the following Guaranteed Notes, which ware 1ssued by the Company
Interest Rate Hedging Hedged Interest Rates
Hedged
Value* Frxed Floaung
£m Em £m Fixed Floating
Us$750 mitlion of 6100% Guaranteed Notes repayable in February 2018 387 290 97 6 B823% &m LIBOR + 1892%
US$582 8 milion of 9 500% Guaranteed Netes repayable in Novernber 2018 389 260 129 709% 6m LIBOR + 5542%
US$800 million of 3125% Guaranteed Notes repayable in November 2022 503 503 - 3226% Nia
E300 million of & Q00% Guaranteed Notes repayable in May 2027 300 300 - 6000% N/A
1579 1353 226
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At 30 June 2013 the Group had in1ssue the following Guaranteed Notes which were 1ssued by BSkyB Finance UK plc

Interest Rate Hedging Hedgedinterest Rates
Hedged

Value* Fixed Floating
£m £m £m Frxed Floating
US$750 million of 5 625% Guaranteed Notes repayable in October 2015 428 7 257 5 427% &m LIBOR + 0 658%
E400 millon of 5 750% Guaranteed Notes repayable in October 2017 400 350 5C 5750% 6m LIBOR - 0 229%
US%350 milhon of 6 500% Guaranteed Notes repayable in Octolser 2035 200 200 - 5 826% NIA

1028 prAl 307

*Note Hedged value s the final redemption value including any hedging.

The Group has a Global Medium Term Note Programme (the “Programme”) which provides the Group with a standardised documentation
platform fer sermior debt issuance of up to £2 5 billion in the major globat bond markets The £300 muthon of 6 000% Guaranteed Notes
matunng ih May 2027 have been 1ssued under the "predecessor EMTN” Programme

(i) Finance |eases

The minimum lease payments under finance leases fall due as follows

204 2013
£m £m
Within one year " n
Between one and two years 12 1
Between twa and three years 9 n
Between three and four years 2] 8
Between four and five years 9 8
After five years 136 144
186 193

Future finance charges on finance lease iablittes oy Mme)
Present value of finance lease labilities 76 77

The main obligations under finance leases are in relation to

(@ finance arrangements i connection with the broadband network infrastructure Dunng the year repayments of 7 millien (2013 £7 million)
were made aganst the lease A proportion of these payments have been allocated against the capitat outstanding The lease bears interest
at a rate of 111% and expires in November 2039

(b) finance arrangements in connection with the contact centre in Dunfermhine Dunng the year repayments of £1 million (2013 £1 milion)
were made against the lease Aproportion of these payments have been allocated aganst the capital amount outstanding The lease
bears interest at a rate of 8 5% and expires in September 2020

(¢) finance arrangements In connection with datacentre equipment During the year repayments of £3 millon (2013 less than £1 million)
were made against the lease A proportion of these payments have been allecated aganst the capital amount outstanding The lease
bears interest at arate of 3 6% and expires in June 2016

(hi) Revelving Credit Facility

The Group has a £743 millian RCF with a maturity date of 31 October 2018 syndicated across 10 counterparty banks each with a mmnimum
credit rating of “Baal” or equivalent from Standard & Peor 5 At 30 June 2014 the RCF was undrawn (2013 undrawn)

The Group 1s subject te twe financial covenants under the RCF a maximum leverage ratio and a minimum interest cover ratie which are tested
at the end of each six monthly period The key financial covenants are the ratio of Net Debt to EBITDA (as defined in the loan agreements)
and EBITDA to Net Interest Payable (as defined in the loan agreements) Net Debt to EBITDA must be no more than 3001 and EBITDA

to Net Interest Payable must be at least 3 501 The Graup was in compliance with these covenants for all periods presented

{v) Guarantees

The following guarantees are in place relating te the Group s borrowings (8) British Sky Broadeasting Limited Sky Subscribers Services Linmited
BSkyB Finance UK ple and Sky In-Home Service Limited have given joint and several guarantees in relation to the Companys £743 million RCF
and the autstanding Guaranteed Notes 1ssued by the Company, and () the Company Briush Sky Broadcasting Lirmited Sky Subscnbers
Senvices Limited and Sky In-Home Service Limited have given joint and several guarantees inrelation to the outstanding Guaranteed Notes
Issued by BSkyB Finance UK plc
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(continued)

21 Denvatives and other financial nstruments

Set out below are the deavatve financial instruments entered into by the Group to manage Its interest rate and foreign exchange nsks

204 2003
Asset Liability Asset Liability
Far vatue Notional Fair Value Notional Fair Value Notional Fair Value Notional
£m Em £m £m Em £m im £m
Fairvalue hedges
Interest rate swaps 77 767 - - 108 851 - -
Cash flow hedges
Cross-currency swaps 72 661 (36) 503 166 7 - 47
Forward foreign exchange contracts 33 764 (76) 1464 37 1146 (26) 973
Denvatives not in a formal hedge relationshep
Cross-currency swaps 21 353 (59) 390 a7 ac3 (15) 390
Forward foreign exchange contracts 2 217 [C)] 262 1 4 ()] 45
Interest rate swaps 5 260 - - 1 260 - -
Total 210 3,022 (175) 2618 380 3841 (42) 1459
The maturity of the dervative financial instruments is as follows
2014 2013
Asset Liabuhity Assat Liabilizy
Em Em £m £m
In one year or less 15 (39) 15 (13)
Between one and two years 43 (25) 15 (&)
Between two and five years 132 (75) 251 (8)
In more than five years 20 (36) 59 (15)
Total 210 (175) 380 42

‘The far value of the Group s debt-related dervative portfolio at 30 June 2014 was a EBO million net asset (2013 netasset of £327 million) with net
nottonal principal amounts totaling £13957 millon (2013 £1,957 million) This comprised net assets of £36 mihon designated as cash flow hedges
{2013 net assets of £166 million), net assets of E77 milllon designated as farr value hedges (2013 net assets of £108 milion) and net labiibes of
£33 milhon not designated in a formal hedge relationship (2013 net assets of £53 million)

At 30 June 2014 the carrying value of financial assets that were upon :nitial recognition, designated as financial assets at far value through profit
or loss was nil {2013 nil)

The Group has entered into a coltar arrangement to manage tts exposure to movements in the value of certain available-for-sale investments over
& periad of up to 18 months and with a notional value of £22 million The coltar instrument has not been designated for hedge accounting purposes
with movements in the far value of the collar being taken to the mcome statement.

Hedge accounting classification and mpact

The Group has designated certatn interest rate swaps as fair value hedges of interest rate nisk representing 30% (2013 30%) of the Group s debt
portfolo Movements in the fair value of the hedged wems are taken to the Income statement and are offset by movements in the far value of the
hedging instruments te the extent that hedge accounting 1s achieved

The Group has designated certain fixed rate cross-currency swaps as cash flow hedges of 45% (2013 47%) of the Groups debt portfclio As such the
effective portion of the gamn orloss on these contracts is reported as a separate component of the hedging reserve and is then reclassified to the income
statement in the same periods that the forecast transactions affect the income statement Cash flows on the swaps oceur semi-annually up to and
inclustve of the relevant bond matunity disclosed in nete 20 During the current year losses of £140 million were remeved from the hedging reserve and
charged to finance costs in the income statement te offset the currency translation movements in the underlying hedged debt (2013 gains of £40 million)

The Group designates certain forward foreign exchange contracts and the intrinsic element of options (collars) as cash flow hedges of forecast foreign
currency sales and purchases Gains or losses are released from the hedging reserve and recycled to the income statement in the same period as the
hedged item s recognised If forecast transactions are no longer expected to occur any amounts included in the hedging reserve related to that forecast
transacuon would be recognised directly in the income statement Durnng the current year, gains of £7 millian were remeved from the hedging reserve
and credited to operating expense In the income statement (2013 gains of £2 milhen) Losses of £2 millonwere removed from the hedging resenne

and debited to revenue in the income statement (2013 gains of £8 milion)

Hedge effectiveness testing is performed quarterly using the dollar-offset approach The actual movernent in the hedging items s compared with
the movement in the valuation of the hypothetcally perfect hedge of the undertying nsk at nception and any ineffectiveness s recognised directly
Inthe Income statement Ineffectiveness of £1 milion was recognised in the income statement dunng the current year (2013 £2 milhon)

Ahedge relationshep s deemed to be effective if the ratro of changes in valuation of the underlying hedged item and the hedging instrument 1s within
the range of 80% to 125% Any relationship which has a ratio outside this range 1s deemed to be ineffective at which point hedge accounting is suspended
Dunng the year ended 30 June 2014 there were na Instances in which the hadge relationship was nct highly effective (2013 no instances)
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Financial instruments

(a) Carrying value and fair value
The accounting dassification of each class of the Groups financial assets and financial labliies together wath their fair values 15 as follows

Held to Dervatives Dervatvesin Total
matunty Available-  deemed held hedging Loans and Other canying Totalfair
investments for-sale fortrading relationships recenvables habihties value value
Em Em Em £m Em Em £m £m
AL 30 June 2014
Quoted bond debt - - - - - (2,552) (2592) (28986)
Denvative financial Instruments - - (39) 70 - - 35 35
Trade and other payables - - - - - (1788) (1788) (1788}
Provisions - - - - - (45) (45) {45)
Obligations under finance leases
and other borrowings - - - - - on an an
Avarlable-for-sale investments - 533 - - - - 533 533
Trade and other recervables - - - - 349 - 349 349
Short-term deposits 285 - - - - - 295 295
Cash and cash equivalents 300 - - - 782 - 1082 1082
At 30 June 2013
Quoted bond debt - - - - - (2843) (2843) (3185)
Dervative financial Instruments - - 53 285 - - 338 EE!:3
Trade and other payables - - - - - (1567) (1,587) (1567
Provisions - - - - - (74) (74) (74)
Obligattons under finance leases
and other borrowings - - - - - an “n 77
Avallable-for-sale tnvestments - 422 - - - - AR 422
Trade and other recevables - - - - 278 - 278 278
Short-termn deposits 565 - - - - - 585 585
Cash and cash equivalents 65 - - - 750 - 8i5 815

The fair values of finanaal assets and finanoial habilities are deterrmined as follows

The farr value of finanaal assets and finanoial habiities with standard terms and conditions and which are traded on active lquid markets
15 determined with reference to quoted market prices

-

The far value of other financat assets and financial habilities (excluding dervative instruments) is deterrmined in accordance with ganerally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash Alow analysis using pnces from observable current market transactions and dealer quotes
for similarinstruments

Foreign currency forward contracts are measured using quoted forward exchange rates and yield curves denved from quoted interest rates
matching maturities of the contracts

-

Interest rate and cross-currency swaps are measured at the present value of future cash flows estimated and discounted based on tha
applicable yield curves derived from quoted interest rates and

.

The fair value of oblgations under finance leases and cther borrowings 15 estimated by discounting the future cash flows te net present value
The far value of short-term deposits and cash and cash equivalents is equivalent to carrying value due to the short-term nature of these instruments

The differences between carrying values and fair values reflect unrealised gains or lasses Inherent In the finangial nstruments based onvaluations
as at 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013 The volatle nature of the markets means that values at any subsequent date could be significantly different
from thevalues reperted above

Cash and cash equivalents cdassified as held to maturity investments compnse money market depasits which have matunty dates of less than
three months from inception Money market deposits enhanced return investments and tn-party repurchase agreements which have matunity
greater than three months from inception are classified as short-term deposits

Cash and cash equivalents classified as loans and recewvables mainly comprise investments in AAAm rated money market funds which can
be wathdrawn without notice
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(continued)

21 Denvatwves and other finanaal instruments (continued)

{b) Far value hverarchy
The followng table categonses the Group s financial mstruments which are held at far value into one of three levels toreflect the degree to which
wbservable inputs are used in determiring their fair values

Fairvalue Levetl Levet 2 Level 3
Em Em £m £m

At 30 June 2014
Financial assets
Avatlable-for-sale financial nstruments
ITV ivestment 514 514 - -
Other investments 19 a4 - 15
Financial assets at fair value through profit orloss
Interest rate swaps B2 - 82 -
Cross-currency swaps a3 - o4 -
Forward foreign exchange contracts 35 - 34 -
Total 743 518 210 15
Financial habilities
Financial labdities at fair value through profit or loss
Cross-currency swaps (93) - (95) -
Forward foreign exchange contracts {80) - 80) -
Total (175) - (175) -
At 30 June 2013
Financial assets
Available-for-sale financialinstruments
ITVinvestment 409 409 - -
Other investments 13 - - 13
Financial assets at farr value through profit or loss
Interest rate swaps 109 - 109 -
Cross-currency swaps 233 - 233 -
Forward Foreign exchange contracts 38 - 38 -
Total 802 409 380 13
Financtal hatihties
Financial lakihties at far value through profit or loss
Cross-currency swaps 15) - (15) -
Forward Foreign exchange contracts 27) - 2n -
Total (42) - A2 -

Level1
Fair values measured using quoted prices {unadjustad) in active markets for identical assets or labilities

Level 2

Fair values measured using mputs other than guoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or habibty either
directly or indirectly Denvative financial mstrument fair values are present values determined from future cash flows discounted

at rates derrved from market source data

Level 3
Fair values measured using inputs for the asset or labdity that are not based on observable market data Certain of the Group s
avallable-for-sale financial assets are held at fair value and are categonsed as Level 3in the fair value hierarehy
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22 Financial nsk management
Group Treasury actmty

The Groups Treasury function s responsible for rarsing finance for the
Group s operations together with associated liyuidity management
and management of foreign exchange Interest rate and credit nisks
Treasury operations are conducted within a framework of peliges
and guidelines authansed and reviewed annuatly by both the Audit
Committee and the Board which receive regular updates of Treasury
acteity Denvatwve instruments are transacted for nsk management
purposes only It 1s the Group's policy that all hedging s ta cover
known risks and no speculative trading is undertaken Regular and
frequent reporting to management Is required for all transactions
and exposures, and the internal control environment 1s subject to
periodic review by the Group s internal audit team

The Group s principal market risks are exposures to changes ininterest
rates and foreign exchange rates, which arise both from the Groups
sources of finance and 1ts operations Following evaluation of those
market risks the Group selectively enters into derivatve financial
nstruments to manage these exposures The prncipal Instruments
currently used are interest rate swaps to hedge interest rate nsks

and cross-currency swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts

te hedge transactional and translational currency exposures

Interest rate risk

The Group has finanaal exposures to both UK and US interest

rates ansing primarily from the Group s long-term bonds and other
borrowings The Group s hedging policy requires that batween S0%
and B5% of borrowangs are held at fixed rates This s achieved by
rssuing fixed rate bands and then using Interest. rate swaps to adjust
the balance between fixed and floating rate debt The Groups bank
debt s at floating rates and when drawn means that the mix of fixed
and floating rate debt fluctuates and 15 therefore managed to ensure
compliance with the Group s hedging policy At 30 June 2014 80%

of borrowings were held at fixed rates after hedging (2013 80%)

The Group uses denvatives to convert all of its US dollar-denominated
debt and associated interest rate obligatiens to pounds sterling
(see section on foreign exchange risk for further detaily At 30 June
2074 the Group had no net US dollar denominated interest rate
exposure an its borrowings

The Group designates its interest rate swaps as fair value hedges
of interest rate nsk Movements in the fair value of the hadged
exposure are taken to the income statement and are offset by
movemenits in the far value ef the hedping instruments which

are also taken to the income statement. Any hedge ineffectiveness
15 recognised directly in the income statement In the year ended
30 June 2014 this amounted to £1 milhion (2013 £2 mitian)

At 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013 the Group s annual finance
costs would be unaffected by any change to the Group s credit
rating in either direction

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitimty analyses betow have been determined based on the
exposure 1o (nterest rates for both denvatives and non-dervative
financial nstruments at the balance sheet date For floating rate
habiitres the analysis s prepared assuming the amount of kability
outstanding at the balance sheet date 1s outstanding for the
whole year

Financial statements - Notes to the corseldated financial statements

For each one hundred basis point nse or fallininterest rates
at 30 June 2014 and if all other vanables were held constant

The Groups profit for the year ended 30 June 2014 would increase
or decrease by E8 milhon (2013 profit for the year would ncrease
or decrease by £9 milion) The year-an-year movement is ditven
by a decrease in the cash balance held

Other equity reserves would decrease or increase by £6 milllon
(2013 decrease orincrease by £15 million) ansing from movements
in cash fow hedges

Aone hundred basis point rise or fall in interest rates represents
alarge but realistic movernent which can easidy be multiplied to
give sensitvmities at different interest rates.

The sensitmty analyses provided are hypothetical only and should
be used with caution as the impacts provided are not necessarly
indicative of the actualimpacts that would be experienced because
the Group s actual exposure to market rates changes as the Group s
portfolio of debt, cash and foreign currency contracts changes

In addition, the effect. of a change in a particular market varable

on fair values or cash flows 1s calculated without considenng
interrelationships between the vanous market rates or mitigating
actions that would be taken by the Group The changes in valuations
are estimates of the impact of changes in market vanables and are
not a prediction of future events or anticipated gains or losses

Foreign exchange nsk

A combenation of cross-cumency and interest rate swap arrangements
is used to convert the Group s US dollar denominated debt and
associated interest rata obligations to pounds sterling, at fixed
exchange rates At 30 June 2014 the split of the Group s aggregate
borrowings nte thair core currencies was US dollar 71% and pounds
sterling 29% (2013 US dollar 73% and pounds sterling 27%) At 30 June
2014 100% of the Group s long-term borrowings after the impact of
derivatives are denomihated in pounds sterling

The Group's revenues and operating expenses are substantially
denomenated in pounds sterhng Asmall proportian of operating
expenses s denominated in US dollars while a small proportion of
revenues Is denominated in euros In the current year approximately
16% of operating expenses (E1043 million) was dencminated in US
dollars (2013 approximately 10% (E614 milllen)) and 5% of revenues
(£353 million) was denominated in euros (2013 5% (E352 mllion))

The U5 dollar expense relates mainly to the Group s programming
contracts with US suppliers, together with US dollar-denominated
set-top box costs The euro revenues piimarly relate to subscrbers
located tnireland The Group s exposure to euro-dencminated revenue
15 offset tea certain extent by euro-denominated costs related manly
to certain transponder costs, the net position being a euro surplus
(2013 surplus)

The Group hedges currency expesures on US dollar and euro-
denominated highly prebable cash flows by using forward foresgn
exchange contracts purchased up to five years ahead of the cash fiow
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(continued)

22 Financial risk management (continued)

It 1s the Group s policy that all anticipated foreign currency exposures
are substantially hedged in advance of the year in which they occur

At 30 June 20i4 the Group had purchased forward foretgn exchange
contracts representing up to

Approximately 95% of US dollar-denominated costs falling
due within one year (2013 90%)} and approximately 80%

of US dollar-denominated costs falling due within five years
(2013 approximately 80%)which are hedged via

+ Cutstanding commitments to purchase, in aggregate,
US$2 358 milion (2013 US$H1926 million) at an average
rate of US$1 60 to E100 (2013 US$156te £100)

Approximately 95% of net euro-denominated revenues faling

due within one year (2013 approxmately 95%) and approximately
80% of net euro-denominated revenues falling due within four
years (2013 approximately 80%) which are hedged via

« Outstanding commitments to sell, in aggregate, €1,078 milhan
(2012 €1039 milhion) at an average rate of €118to £100
(2012 €179 to £100)

« Qutstanding commuitments to purchase in aggregate €111 milicn
(2013 €119 milion} at an average rate of €118 to £1 00 (2013 €116
o E100)

Two forward foreign exchange contracts fall due beyond five years
{2013 none)

The Group designates the following as cash fow hedges for hedge
accounting purposes

Forward foreign exchange contracts

Cross-currency swaps whereinterest on beth legs 1s at a fixed
Interestrate

As such, the effective port:on of the gain orless on these contracts
is reported as a component of the hedging reserve outside the
income statement and 15 then reclassified to the income statement
n the same pertods that the forecast transactions affect the income
statement Ineffectiveness of less than £1 millkan was recognised

1n the income statement durning the year (2013 £1milhen)

A combination of US dollar denominated interest rate and US dollarf
pound sterling cross-currency swaps 1s used to convert fixed dotlar
dencminated debt to floating sterling denominated debt The Interest
rate swaps are designated as fair value hedges The assoaated
Cross-currency swaps are not designated as hedging instruments

for hedge accounting purposes and as such movements in their
value are recorded directly In the income statement

Foreign exchange sensitraty

The following analyses detalls the Group s sensitivity to movements
in pounds sterling against those currencies in which it has significant
transactions The sensitvity analysis includes foreign currency
dencrminated assets and habilities at the balance sheet date and
outstanding foreign currency denominated finanoal Instruments
and adjusts their translation at the pened end for a 25% change

in foreign currency rates

A 25% strengthening in peunds sterling against the US dotlar would
have the effect of reducing profit by £15 midlion (2013 reduang profit
by £21 million)} of which losses of £16 million relate to non-cash
movements In the valuation of derwvatives (2013 losses of £23 milian)
The same strengthening would have an adverse impact an other
equity of £288 milkon (2013 adverse impact of £237 million)

A 25% weakening In pounds sterling against the US dollar wou'd

have the effect of increasing profit by £25 milion (2013 increasing
profit by £34 milker) of which gains of £27 milbon relate to non-cash
meovements n the valuation of denvatives (2013 gains of E38 mithon)
The same weakening would have a benefical impact on other eguity
of £479 million (2013 benefical impact of £395 mithon)

A 25% strengthening in pounds sterling against the euro would have
the effect of increasing profit by £2 milion (2073 decreasing profit
by £1 millon) Nonecf this amount relates Lo non-cash movements
n the valuation of dervatives The same strengtherming would have
a beneficial impact on other equity of £155 millon (2013 beneficial
impact of £157 mulhon)

A 25% weakening in pounds stering aganst the eurc would have
the effect of decreasing profit by £3 milion (2013 increasing profit
by £1 million) None of this amount relates o nan-cash movements
in the valuation of dervatives The same weakening would have

an adverse impact on other equity of £258 milion (2013 adverse
impact of £262 millior}

The sensitwvity analyses provided are hypothetical only and should
be used with caution as the impacts pronded are not necessarily
indicative of the actual impacts that would be expenenced because
the Group s actual exposure to market rates 1s constantly changing
as the Group s portfolio of debt cash and fareign currency contracts
changes Inaddition the effect of a change in a particular market
vanable on fair values or cash flows Is ralculated without considering
interrelationships between the various market rates or m:ugating
actions that weuld be taken by the Group The changes invalsations
are estimates of the impact of changes in market vanables and

are not a prediction of future events or anticipated gains or losses

Hedge accounting

The interest rate and foreign exchange rate nsk secticns above
outhne the Groups policies regarding use of derivative products
Further detail on valuations and the impact of hedge accounting
dunng the year are provided in note 21

Credit risk

The Group 1s exposed to counterparty default nsk amounting
to invested cash and cash equivalents and short-term deposits
and the positive farr value of dernvatve financial assets held

This nsk 1s deemed to be fow Counterparty nsk forms a central part
of the Group s Treasury policy which 1s monitored and reported on
regularly The Group manages credit risk by diversifying its exposures.
across awide number of counterparties such that the maxmum
exposure to any indmdual counterparty was 7% of the total asset
value of instruments at the end of theyear Treasury pelicies ensure
that all denvative transactions are only effected with strong
relationship banks and at the date of signing each carrnied a minimum

credit raung of "Baal” or equivalent from Standard & Poor s To mitigate

remaineng rsks counterpariy credit and soverelgn ratings are clesely
monitored and no mare than 10% of cash deposits are held with a
single bank counterparty {with the exception of overnight deposits
which are invested in a spread of AAAf rated hquidity funds)

The amount recognised in the Incoma statement in respect of
credit risk for derwvatives deemed held for trading 1s il {2073 nil)

Credit sk in our residential customer base 15 mitigated by billing
and collecting in advance for digital telewsion subscriptions for
over 99% of our residential customer base The Group s maximum
exposure to credit sk on trade recevables 15 the carrying amounts
as disclosed in note 17
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Qur principal source of lquidity 1S cash generated from operations combined with accesstea £743 millon RCF which expires in October 2018

At 30 June 2014 this facility was undrawn (30 June 2013 undrawn)

To ensure continuity of funding the Group’s policy 15 to ensure that available funding matures over a penrod of years At 30 June 2014, 29%
{2013 40%) of the Groups total avatlable funding (induding avanlable undrawn amounts on our RCF) was due to mature i morea than five years

Full details of the Group s borrowings and undrawn faciliies are shown in note 20 other than trade and other payables shown innote 18,

and provisions shown in note 19

The following table analyses the Group's nhen-derivative financial habiities, net settled dervative finanaal iInstruments and gross settled financial
Instruments inte relevant matunty groupings based an the remaining pencd at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date The amounts
disclesed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows and may therefore not reconcile to the amounts disclosed on the balance sheat

for borrowings denvative financial instruments provisions and trade and other payables

Between Between

Lessthan one and twoand Morethan
2months  twoyears  fweyears  fiveyears
£m £m £m £m
At 30 June 2014
Non denivative financial habilities
Bonds - USD 12 541 1002 947
Bonds - GBF a a 4800 444
Obhgations under finance leases and other borrowings 1t 12 27 139
Trade and other payables 1686 23 3 -
Provisions 35 8 - 2
Net settled dervatives
Financial assets (30} 24 @ -
Gross settled derivatives
Outflow 1356 1129 1867 960
Inflow {13273 (1127) (1865) (955)
Between Between
Less than ane and twoand Morethan
2manths  twoyears  fiveyears  fiveyears
Em £m £m £Em
At 30 June 2013
Non dertvative Finanaial habiities
Bonds -USD 25 125 129 1490
gonds - GBP 41 41 500 482
Obligations under finance leases and other borrowngs n il 27 144
Trade and other payables 1457 107 3
Provisions 66 4 1
Nert settled derivatives
Financial assets (32) {32) 65) ®)
Gross settled derivatives
Outflow 1020 760 1687 1381
Inflow (1028) (775) (18763 407

Capital Risk Management

The Groups objectives when managing capital are to endeavour to ensure that the Group has the ability to access capital markets when necessary and
to optimise iquidity and operating flexibiity through the arrangerment of new debt while seeking to mimimise the cost of capital The Group menitors
s iquidity requirements regularly and is satisfled that it has access to suffictent iquichty and operating flexibiity to meetits capital requirements

The Group manages Its short and long-term capital structure by seeking to maintain leverage ratios consistent with a long-term investment grade
credit rating (BBB- or better from Standard & Poor s and Baa3 or batter from Moody §) The Group s current ratings are BBB+ (Standard & Poar s)

and Baal (Mocdy s) The leverage ratios assessed by these rating agencies are those of Net Debt EBITDA and Gross Debt EBITDA Net Debt:s defined
as total korrewings including the cash flows anising under operating leases and transponder prepayments less cash and cash equivalents excluding
derivatives Gross Debt does not reduce total borrowngs by the inclusion of cash and cash equivalents

The Greup is also required to maintain a Net Debt EBITDA ratro below 300 1 and an EBITDA to Net Interest Payable ratio at above 3 50 1under the
terms of its RCF The RCF definstion of Net Debt does not require the inclusion of future operating fease or transponder cash flows

At 30 June 2014 the Net Debt EBITDA ratio as defined by the terms of the RCF was 0 71(2013 07 1) and the EBTDA to Net Interest Payable ratio

was1331(2013 1341)

Bntssh Sky Broadcasting Groupple 117

odmEaens

FUBUAOD

STURLLTIETS |RUeUY

uonew 1o RpIoYRIeUS




Annual Report 2004

Finandial statements - Notes to the conschdated finanaal statements
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(continued)
23 Share captal

2014 23

£m £m

Allotted, called-up and fully paid shares of 50p 1562 885 017 (2013 1593905182) 8 797
2014 2093

Number of Number aof

ordinary ardwnary

shares shares

Altotted and fully pard duning the year

Beginmng of year 1593805182 1674454881
Shares repurchased and subsequently cancelled (31020165)  (BOS549699)
End of year 1,562 885,017 1,593,905,182

The Company has one class of ardinary shares which carry equal voting nghts and na contractual nght to receve payment Full detais of the
Company s share buy-back programme aire provided in note 24

Share option and contingent share award schemes
The Company operates varnous eguity-settled share option schemes (the “Schemes”) for certamn employees

The number of newly 1ssued shares which may be allocated under the Schemes on any day shall not when aggregated with the number of
newly 1ssued shares which have been allocated in the previous ten years under the Schemes and any other employee share scheme adopted
by the Company, exceed such number as represents five per cent of the ordinary share capital of the Company 1n issue immediately prior to
that day In determintng this imit na account shall be taken of any newly 1ssued shares where the nght to acquire the newly 1ssued shares was
released lapsed cancelled or otherwise became incapable of exeraise Options and awards which will be satisfled by ESOP shares do not fall
within these headroom bmits

The share awards outstanding can be summarised as follows.

2014 203

Number of Number of

ordinary ardinary

shares shares

Executive Share Option Scheme options® 147020 931247
Sharesave Scheme options® 75976924 7159954
management LTIP awardst™ 16056 961 24365112
LTIP awards®® 5575000 8844132
Management Co-investment LTIP awards'? 2065713 1975705
Co-Investment LTIP awards™ 2235172 2068175

340567586 45,344,325

(1) Executive Share Option Scheme eptions
All Exgcutive Share Option Scheme options outstanding at 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013 have vested No options have been granted under
the scheme since 2004

Grants under the Executive Share Option Scheme were made on an annual basis to selected employees with the exerase price of options being
equal to the Company s share price on the date of grant For those options with performance conditions, grawth in EPS had to exceed growth

In the Retail Prices Index plus 3% per annum in order for awards to vest Options vested on an accelerated basis over apeniod of up to four years
from the date of grant The contractual hfe of all Executive Share Option Scheme options is ten years

(i} Sharesave Scheme options

All Sharesave Scheme options outstanding at 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013 have no performance criteria attached other than the requirement
that the employea remains In employment with the Group Options granted under the Sharesave Scheme must be exercised within six months

of the relevant award vesting date

The Sharesave Scheme 15 open to all employees Options are normally exeraisable after either three or five years from the date of grant. The price
atwhich options are offered i1s not less than BG% of the middle-market price on the dealing day immed ately preceding the date of invitation
It 1 the policy of the Group to make an nvitation to employees to participate in the scheme following the announcement of the end of year resuits

(in) Management LTIF awards
All Management LTIP awards outstanding at 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013 vest only if performance conditions aremet Awards granted under
the Management LTIP must be exerased within five years of the relevant award vesting date

The Company grants awards to selected employees under the Management LTIP Awards under this scheme mirror the LTIP with the same
performance conditicns Awards exeraised under the Management LTIP can only be sati sfied by the issue of market-purchased shares

() LTIP awards
All LTIP awards outstanding at 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013 vest anly if performance conditions are met Awards granted under the LTIP must
be exercised within five years of the relevant award vesting date
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The Company operates the LTI? for Executive Directors and Senior Exeeutives Awards under the scheme are granted in the form of a nik-priced
option and are satisfied using market-purchased shares The awards vest in full or in part dependent on the satisfaction of specified performance
targets For awards madein 2008 and 2008 {1 e awards that vested 1n 2011) 30% of the award vested dependent on TSR performance over

a three year performance period relative to the constituents of the FTSE 100 at the time of grant and the remaining 70% vested dependent

on performance against operational targets The TSR performance targets were not applicable to awards made between fuly 2010 and

March 2012 but have been re-introduced for awards granted from July 2012 onwards

{v) Management Co-Investment LTIP awards
All Management Co-Investment {TIP awards cutstanding at 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2(13 vest only if performance conditions are met
Awards granted under the Management Co-investment LTIP must be exercised within five years of the relevant award vesting date

The Comparnty grants awards to selected employees under the Management Co-Investment LTIP Awards under this scheme mirror the
Co-Investment, LTIP wath the same performance conditions

(v1) Co-Investment LTIP awards
All Co-Investment LYIP awards outstanding at 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013 vest only If performance conditions are met Awards granted
under the Co-Investment LTI? must be exercised within five years of the relevant award vesting date

The Company eperates the Co-Investment LTIP award for Executive Directors and Seniar Executives Employees who participate in the plan
are granted a conditional award of shares based on the amount they have invested in the Campany s shares The investment will be matched
up te a maximum of 15 shares for every share invested subject to a three-year EPS performance condition

For the purposes of the disclosure below the Management LTIP LTIP, Management Co-Investment LTIP and Co-Investment LTIP awards
("Sentor Management Schemes™) have been aggregated

The movement in share awards cutstanding is summarised in the following table

Senlor management

Exacutive Scheme Sharesave Schema Schemes Total
Weighted Weighted Wesghted Weighted
average average average average
exercise exercise exefcise exercise
pnce price price price

Number |3 Number £ Number £ Number
Qutstanding at 1 July 2012 2630435 584 7238348 494 25303300 ooe 35172083 145
Granted during the year - - 20858022 608 15012591 coo 17071613 073
Exercised during the year (15958200 588 (1341 667) 440 (1824 435) o0oc (4765522) 321
Forfeited during the year (64,334) 604 (795 749) 519 (1238332 0oC  (2098415) 215
Expired dunng the year (350348 530 - - - - (35034) 530
Qutstanding at 30 June 2013 531247 579 7159554 534 37253124 000 45344325 0968
Granted during the year - - 302220 682 10068805 Q00 13091016 157
Exercised during the year (771806} 595  (121739]) 456 (20763738) 000 (22752935) 047
Forfeited during the year (10,516} 503 (861166) 589 (625 339) Q00 (1597021 358
Exprred during the year (1905) 662 (26 684) 447 - - (28589) 461
Outstanding at 30 June 2014 147,020 503 7,976,924 590 25932852 000 34,056,796 140

The weighted average market price of the Group s shares at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the year was £8 42 (2073 £783)

For those exercised under the Executive Scheme 1t was £8 48 (2013 £779) for those exerased under the Sharesave Scheme it was EB 82 (2013 £819)

and for those exercised under the Senior Management Schemes it was £8 40 (2013 £760)
The middie-market closing price of the Company's shares at 27 June 20714 was £8 93 (28 June 2013 £792)

The following table summarises information about share awards cutstanding at 30 June 2014

Senor management
Executve Scheme Sharesave Scheme Schemes Total
Weaighted Weghted Weighted Weighted
average average average average
remaining remaming remaining remarning
contractual contractual centractual contractual
life Iife Iife Iife
Range of exercise prices Number Years Number Years Number Years Number Years
£000-£100 - - - -~ 25932852 60 25932852 50
£300~£400 - - 28 381 [o}] - - 78 381 01
£400-£500 - - 339644 11 - - 339644 11
E500- £6 00 147020 01 3238353 20 - - 3,386,373 19
E600-£700 - - 4369546 31 - - 4,369,546 Eal
147020 01 7,976 924 25 25932852 60 34056796 52

British Sky Broadcasting Groupple M9

Uodas n8syens

SIUBLLBAOG

STUDLLDIRIS [ERURKH

UOTBULICHH Japioys 1S




Annual Report 2014

Financial statements - Notes to the consokdated financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(continued)
23 Share capital (continued)

The following table summarnses information abeut share awards outstanding at 30 June 2013

Senior management
Execute Scherne Sharesave Schame Schemes Total
Wesghted Werghted Weighted Weighted
average average mverage average
!'ernalnlng remalnlng remaming rernalnlng
contractual contractual contractual contractual
Wfe life fe life
Range of exeraise prices Number Years Number Years Number Years Number Years
EQ00Q - E100 - - - - 37253124 59 37253124 59
E300-£400 - - 410643 n - - 410643 1
E400-E500 - - 440134 17 - - 440134 17
ESOQ - E6 00 485,586 1 4387409 26 - - 4872995 25
£600-£700 444163 0z 1921768 3s - - 2365931 29
£700-£800 1,498 07 - - - - 1498 07
931247 07 7159 954 27 37253124 59 45344325 53

The range of exercise prices of the awards outstanding at 30 June 2014 was between nil and £6 B2 (2013 nil and £716) For those awards gutstanding
under the Executive Scheme it was between £5 03 and £5 39 (2013 £5 03 and £716) for those outstanding under the Sharesave Scheme it was between
£372and £6 82 (2013 £3 72 and £6 08} and for all awards outstanding under the Seruor Management Schemes the exercise pnce was nil (2013 nil)

The followrng table summarises additional information about the awards exercisable at 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013

2014 2013

Average Average
remaining  Weighted remaining  Weighted
contractual average contractual average
Options life of exercise Options Ifeof exercse
exercisable exerasable price  exarasable  exercisable pnce

at 30 June options E at 30 June options
Executive Scheme 7020 o1 503 931247 o7 579
Sharesave Scheme 78668 o1 495 97457 01 449
Senior Management Schemes 872,229 3s [t10]s] 663972 37 Q00
1097917 28 103 1692676 18 345

Information For awards granted duning the year

The weighted average far value of equity-settled share options granted during the year as estimated at the date of grant was £553 (2013 £516)
This was calculated using the Black-Scheoles share option pnang medel except for awards which have market-based performance conditions
where a Monte-Carlo simulation model was used and for grants of nil-priced options which were treated as the award of a free share The farr
value of nil-priced options granted during the year was measured on the basis of the market-price of the Company s shares on the date of grant,
discaunted for expected dividends which would not be recerved over the vesting period of the options

The Monte-Caro simulation madet reflected the histoncal volatlities of the Company s share price and those of all other compantes to which
the Company s performance would be compared, over a penod egual to the vesting peniod of the awards

Expected volatihty was determined by calculating the historical volatiity of the Company s share price over a period equal to the expected ife
of the options Expected life was based on the contractual bfe of the awards and adjusted based on management s best estimate for the
effects of exeruse restrictions and behawioural consideraticns

(i) Sharesave Scheme
The weighted average fair value of equity-settled share awards granted during the year under the Sharesave Scheme as estimated at the
date of grant was £1 89 (2013 £151) This was calculated using the Black-Scholes share option priang model

The following weighted average assumptions were used in calculating these fair values

2015 2013
Share price £87C £751
Exercise price E682 E608
Expected volatility 22% 240%
Expected life 4(Qvyears 40years
Expected dividends 33% 34%
Risk-free interest rate 12% 0 4%
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{n) Senior management Schemes

The werghted average fair value of equity-settled share awards granted during the year under the Senicr Management Schemes, as estimated
at the date of grant, was £6 62 (2013 £5 66) The fair value of awards with market-based performance canditions was calculated using

a Monte-Carlo simulatton medel Awards granted as nil-priced eptions were treated as the award of a free share Fer all other awards

far value was calculated using the Black-Scholes share opucn pricing model

The following weighted average assumptions were used in calculating these farrvalues

2014 2013
Share price EB28 £716
Exercise price £000 £000
Expected volatility 191% 63%
Expected hfe 2lyears 3IOyears
Expected dvidends 33% 35%
Risk-free interest rate 0 4% 00%
24 Shareholders’ equity
2014 2013
£m Em
Share capital 781 797
Share premeum 1,437 1437
ESOP reserve (148) 147y
Hedging reserve (Z0) n
Availlable-for-sale reserve 4585 351
Cther reserves 455 439
Retained earmings 1,891) (1 876)
1072 1012

Purchase of own equity shares for cancellation

Cn 1 Navember 2012 at the Company's AGM, the Company was granted the authority to return £500 million of capital to sharehalders via a share
buy-back programme (the "November 2012 Authority”) This authornty was subyect to an agreement between the Company and Twenty-First
Century Fox Inc (formerly known as News Corporation) (and others) dated 28 fuly 2012 whereby following any market purchases of shares by
the Company Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc would sell to the Company suffiaent shares to maintain its percentage shareholding at the same
level as apphed prior to those market purchases The pnce payable to Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc would be the price payable by the Company
n respect of the relevant market purchases (the "2012 Share Buy-back Agreement™)

At the Company’s AGM on 22 November 2013 the Company was granted the authornity to return a further £500 million of capital to shareholders
via a share buy-back programme (the "November 2013 Authority™) This authonty was subject to an agreement between the Company and
Twenty-First Century Fox Inc (and athers) dated 25 July 2013 on substantially the same terms as the 2012 Share Buy-back Agreement.

Dunng the year the Company purchased and subsequently cancelled 31 0201565 crdinary shares at an average price of £8 53 per share witha
nominal value of £16 million for a consideration of E266 miliion Consideration included stamp duty and commission of £1 mill.on Thisrepresents
2% of called-up share capital at the beginning of the pened Of these purchases, the Company purchased and subsequently cancelled 12,140 586
ordinary shares from Twenty-First Century Fox Ing at an average price of £8 53 per share with a nominal value of £6 milllon, for a consideration

of £104 millen Consideration included stamp duty of £1 milion

Dunng the pnor year the Company purchased and subsequently cancelled 80 549699 ordinary shares at an average price of E775 per share
with a nominal value of £40 milion for a consideration of £627 million Consideration included stamp duty and commission of £3 million

This represents 5% of called-up share capital at the beginning of the period OF these purchases the Company purchased and subsequently
cancelled 31525,314 crdinary shares from Twenty-First Century Fox Inc at an average price of £775 per share with a neminal value of £16 millian
for a consideration of £245 milllon Consideration included stamp duty of £1 million
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(continued)
24 Shareholders’ equity (continued)

The following table provides information about purchases of equity shares by the company including purchases by the Group s ESOP
dunng the fiscal year

Capital Capital
Totalcapital Totalcaptal authonsedto authorisedto
returned returned bereturned be returned
under the underthe under the under the
Total Average Novemnber November November November
number of price paid 2012 203 202 2013
shareg pearshare Authority Authority Authaonty Authonty

purchased® E Em® £mé Ember Emi
July - - - - 61 -
August 20824 g29 838 7 - 44 -
September 815530 B54 - - a4 -
October - - - - 44 -
Novernber 5464 285 831 33 12 - 488
December 6458989 BO3 - 52 - 436
January 156152 825 - 2 - 434
February 4250710 880 - 37 - 397
March 1694462 917 - 3 - 381
April 3560001 893 - 32 - 349
May 5482 357 872 - 48 - In
June 1807361 87 - 16 - 285
Total for the year ended 30 June 2014 50,554 676 848 50 215 - 285

(1)} Allshare purchases are included inthe monthof settlsment
(1) The November 2012 Authority expired on 22 Novemnber 2013 Accordingly no more repurchases can take place under thus authority

Share premium and special reserve

On 10 December 2003 the High Court approved a reduction in the Company's share premium account of £1120 million as approved by the

Company s shareholders at the AGM held on 14 November 2003 This amount was equal to the Company-only profit andioss account raserve

deficit at 30 June 2003 As part of the application the Company's balance sheet at 30 September 2003 was required to be presented At that date
the deficit on tha Company-only profit and loss account reserve had reduced by £14 milhon since 30 June 2003 to E11068 mithon As a condition of
the reduction the reduction in the share premium account of £1,120 milion was permitted to be offset against the profit and loss account reserve
by the amount of the defiait at 30 September 2003 The excess of £14 millon was credited to a special reserve whichis included in other reserves
and under the terms of the reduction will remain undistnbutable until all the creditors of the Company and 1ts guarantors (as at 10 December 2003)
are paid

ESOP reserve

The cost of the Company's ordinary shares held by the Group s ESOP s treated as a deduction in arriving at total shareholders equity The movement
in the ESOP reserve was as follows

Number of Average
omnary price paid
shares per share £m
ALY July 2072 16293345 EG 85 2
Share options exercised dunng the year (4765922) E714 (34)
Shares purchased by the ESOP dunng the year 9,600000 £768 69
At 30 June 2013 20527423 £715 147
Share opuons exercised during the year (22752935) £727 (166)
Shares purchased by the ESOP dunng the year 19534511 EBAC 164
At 30 June 2014 17,308,899 £8 40 145

Hedging reserve

Changes In the fair values of derivatives that are designated as cash flow hedges are initially recognised in the hedging reserve and subsequently
recognised in the income statement when the related hedged items are recognised in the income statement In addbion deferred taxation relating
to these dervatives s also inibially recognised in the hedging reserve pror to transfer to the income statement

Available-far-sale reserve

Avallable-for-sale investments are carned at fair value where this can be reliably measured, with mevements in the far value recognised directly
in the avallable-for-sate reserve At 30 June 2014 the Groups avalable-for-sale reserve was £455 million (2013 E£351million)
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Otherreserves

The Groups ather reserves inchude a capical redemption reserve amerger raserve a foreigh currency transtation reserve and a special reserve
The capital redemption reserve was E190 million as at 30 June 2014 (2013 £174 million) The merger reserve was £222 miflion as at 30 June 2014

Financal statements - Notes to the consclidatad finanaal statements

(2013 £222 million) The specal reserve was £14 million as at 30 June 2014 (2013 £14 milhor) The foreign currency translation reserve was

£29 mithon as at 30 June 2014 (2013 £29 million)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve was created in accordance with the merger relief provisions under section 131 of the Companies Act 1285 (as amended)
and section 612 of the Companies Act 2006 relating to the accounting for business combinations involvng the 1ssue of shares at a premium
Merger relief previded rebief from the requirement to create a share premium acgount it a parent company’s balance sheet In prepanng
consolidated financial statements the amount by which the far value of the shares 15sued exceeded their nominal value was recorded
withsn a merger reserve on consolidation rather than in a share premium account This merger reserve was retained upon transition to

IFRS, as allowed under UK law

The merger reserve which is included 1n other reserves was created as a result of the purchase by the Group of Interests in two entities
SIG was purchased on 12 July 2000, where consideration was paid by the 1ssue of equity shares in the Company BIB was purchased between

28 June 2001 and 11 November 2002, where consideration was patd by the issue of equity shares in the Company At 30 June 2014, the Group s

merger reserve was £222 mdhon (2013 £222 million)

25 Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement

Recanclllation of profit before tax to cash generated from operations

2014 2013
Em Em
Profit before tax 1,082 1,257
Depreciation and imparment of property plant and equipment 208 76
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets 228 202
Share-based payment expense 60 80
Net finance costs 14 80
Share of results of joint ventures and associates (35) {46)
1657 1749

(Inctrease) decrease In rade and other recsivables (28) 35
Increase iy inventories - (93)
Increase In trade and other payables 183 136
{Decrease}increase In provisions a7 52
Increase (decrease) in dervative finangal instruments 4 (2)
Lash generated from operations 1769 1,877
26 Contracted commitments, contingencies and guarantees
a) Future minimum expenditure contracted for but not recognised in the financal statements

Year Year Year Year Year

ending ending ending ending ending Total at Totalat
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June After5 30 june 30 June
205 2016 2077 2018 2019 years 2014 3
Em Em Em £m Em Em £m Em
Television programme rights 1482 1374 569 a0 187 369 4401 4763
Set-top boxes and related equipment 180 - - - - - 180 202
Third party payments™ 65 58 28 4 - ~ 155 189
Transponder capacity™ 78 75 Fl 64 G4 167 819 634
Property plant and equipment 36 - - - - - 36 7
Intangble assets®? 3N 26 24 18 5 - 104 "2
Smartcards®® 41 42 42 43 10 - 178 232
Other 236 121 a9 53 3 7 521 574
2149 1696 833 592 281 543 6,084 6,723

Foreign currency commitments are translated to pounds sterfing at the rate prevailing on the balance sheet date

@) The third party payment commitments are Infespect of disiribution agreements for the television channels owned and broadeast by third parties retailed by the

Group toretad and commercial subscribers (*Sky Distributed Channels”)

() Transponder capaoty commitments are iInrespect of the SES sateliites that the Group uses for digital transmussions to both retail subsenbers and cable operators
() Comemtmentsinrelation tothe provision of sanarteards Smartcards under development are included withinintangible assets The amounts indluded above are the

expected sngong $martcard oosts basad on forecast customer levels
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
{continued)

b} Contingencies and guarantees

Certain subsidiaries of the Company have agreed to provide additional funding ta several of ther investments i hmited and unlimited companiles
and partnerships in accordance with funding agreements Payment of this additional funding would be reguired if requested by the Investees in
accordance with the funding agreements The maximum potential amount of future payments which may be required to be made by the subsidiaries
of the Company to therr investments in both hmited and unlimited companies and partnerships under the undertakings and additicnal funding
agreements is E17 million (2013 £25 mellion)

The Group has guarantees In place relating to the Group s borrowings, see note 20

Ofcom determination

Included within direct networks costs for the year ended 30 June 2013 1s a credit of £32 million nrelation to a credit note recesved from BT
following an Ofcom determination in 2002 which required BT to repay mones to Sky for overcharged-for Ethernet services (backhaul) between
2006/07 and 2009/10 (2013 £32million) Sky BT and others have appealed Ofcom s determunation in the CAT

27 Operating lease commitments

The minimum lease rentals to be pard under non-cancellable operaung leases at 30 June are as follows

204 2013

Em £m

Within ane year 47 49
Between one and two years M a2
Between two and three years A 35
Between three and four years 2 32
Batween four and five years 14 18
After five years 33 45
197 226

The majority of operating leases relate to praperty The rents payable under these leases are subject to renegotiation at the vanous intervals
specfiedin the leases

The minimum sub-lease rentals to be received under non-cancellable operating sub-leases at 30 June are as follows

2014 2013

£m Em

Withtn one year 1 2
Between one and two years _ 2
Between two and three years _ 2
Between three and four years _ 2
Between four and five years - 1
After five years i c
14

Sub-lease rentals primarly relate to property leases

28 Transactions with related parties and major shareholders
a) Entities wath joint control or significant influence

buring the year the Group conducted business transactions with companies that form part of the Twenty-First Century Fox In¢ group amajor
shareholder in the Company

Transactions with related parties and amounts outstand:ng in relation to those transactions and with related parties at 30 June are as follows

2014 2013

Em £m

Supply of goods or services by the Group 82 89
Purchases of goods or senices by the Group a27) {156)

Amounts owed to the Group 5 7
Amounts owed by the Group (134) (102)

AL 30 June 2014 the Group had expenditure commitments of £9% million in relation to transactions with related parties (2013 £97 million)
all of which related to minimum telewsion programming rights commitments
Goods and services supplied

Dunng the year the Group supphed set-top boxes programming, artime transmission marketing, consultancy senaces customer relationship
management serwces and a icence to use the Sky brand to Twenty-First Century Fox Inc companies
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28 Transactions with related parties and major shareholders (continued)

Purchases of goods and services and certain other relationships
During the year the Group purchased programming and techrical and marketing services from Twenty-First Century £ox In¢ companies

There s an agreement between Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc and the Group pursuant towhich 1t was agreed that for so long as Twenty-First
Century Fox, Inc directly or indirectly holds an mterest of 30% or more i the Graup Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc will not engage in the business
of satelite broadcasting in the UK or Ireland

Share buy-back programmae

During the year the Comparny purchased and subsequently cancelled, 12140 586 ordinary shares held by Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc as part
of its share buy-back programme For further details, see note 24

b) Jaint ventures and associates

Transactions between the Company and its subsidianes which are related parties have been eliminated on consclidation and are not disclosed
inthis note Transactions between the Group and its joint ventures and associates are disclosed below

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are disclosed in the Company's separate finanual statements

2014 2013

Em Em

Supply of services by the Group 19 22
Purchases of goods or services by the Group (66) (66)

Amounts owed by joint ventures and assocates to the Group 8 S
Amounts owed to joint ventures and asscoates by the Group (1) (&)

Services supplied are pnmarnly the provision of transponder capacaty marketing artime sales and support services Purchases represent fees payable
for channel carnage Amounts owed by Joint ventures and associates include £1 million (2013 £1 million) refating to loan funding

These loans bear interest at a rate of ere month LIBOR plus 1% The maximum amount of loan funding eutstanding in total from joint ventures and
associates dunng the year was £31 milhon (2013 £7 mihon)

The Group took out a number of forward exchange contracts with counterparty banks dunng the year on behalf of the joint venture AETN UK
On the same dates as these forward contracts were entered inte the Group entered into equal and opposite contracts with AETN UK respect
of these forward contracts

Consequently the Group was not exposed to any of the net gains or losses on these forward contracts The Face value of farward exchange contracts
with AETN UK that had not matured as at 30 June 2014 was £4 millkon (2013 £8 million)

During the year US$4 million (2013 US$4 million) was paid to the jemt venture upon matunty of forward exchange contracts and less than
USS1 millon (2013 US$nil was receved from the joint venture upon matunity of forward exchange contracts

During the year £3 million (2013 £2 milhion) was received from the joint venture upon maturity of forward exchange contracts and £5 million
(2013 £3 million) was paid to the joint venture upon matusnity of forward exchange contracts

Dunng the year €5 millon (2013 €4 milfren) was received from the joint venture upon maturnty of forward exchange contracts and less than
€t million (2013 €nuly was paid to the joint venture upon maturity of forward exchange contracts

At 30 June 2074 the Group had minimum expenditure commitments of £3 million {2013 £4 million) with sts joint ventures and associates

<) Other transactrons with related parties

A close family member of one Director of the Compary runs Freud Communications Limited { Freud™) which has provided external support
to the press and publicity acowvities of the Group During the year the Group incurred expenditure amounting to £1million (2013 £1 milhony
with Freud At 30 June 2014 there was £1 million (2013 less than £1million) due to Freud

In addrtion to the foregoing. the Group has engaged in a number of transactions with cempanies of which some of the Company s Directors
are also directors These do not meet the definition of related party transactions
d) Key management

The Group has arelated party relauonship with the Directors of the Company At 30 June 2014 therewere 15 (2013 14) members of key
management all of whom were Directors of the Company Key management compensation s disclosed in note 6b
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(continued)
29 Events after the reporting penod

0On 17 July 2014 the Group sold a shareholding of approximately 6 4% in ITV ple, consisting of 259,820 065 ITV shares for an aggregate consideration
of approximately E481 mition

The Company announced on 25 July 2014 that it has conditionally entered into share purchase agreements (the “Acquisition Agreements”)

with Twenty-First Century Fox In¢ (and its relevant subsidiaries) to acquire its 100% stake in Sky Italia Sri and 1ts 57 4% stake in Sky Deutschland AG
The Company further announced LS Intention to make avoluntary cash offer (the "Offer”) to the minenity shareholders of Sky Beutschland AG
The Acquisition Agreements and the Offer (tagether the "Transactions™) are conditional on, amongst other things their approval by the Company s
independent shareholders and regulatory clearances

The total consideration for the acquisition of Sky ttaliais £2 45 billon with approximately £2 07 billion to be pard tn cash and the balance to be
satsfied through the transfer of the Group s 21% stake in National Geographic Channel to Twenty-First Century Fax Inc ("21CF7) The acquisition
of 21CF s shareholding in Sky Deutschland A G 1s for a consideration of £2.9 billion in cash valuing Sky Deutschland at €6 75 a share Subject to
the number of Sky Deutschland A G minonty shareholders that accept the Offer the total consideration for the transaction will range from

£29 biflion to ES billion

The total consideration payable for the Transactions will be fundedin part by the proceeds of a placing of 156 132,213 new Ordinary Shares
representing approximately 999% of the existing issued share capital of the Company te both exssting and new institutional investors which
was also announced on 25 Juty 2014 21CF which has a 3914% shareholding in the Company has undertaken to subscnbe for 61106 496 of the
shares being placed so as to maintain its existing percentage sharaholding in the Company followang completion of the placing The remaining
consideration will come from a combination of new debt facht:es (as descnbed below) and cash resources

On 25 July 2014 the Company entered into a facilities agreement (the “Faciibes Agreement™) documenting a committed bridge loan faciity
€4 00 billion {"Term Loan A"} a term Joan facility of £450 milon and €2.5 bithon ("Term Loan B™) and a revolving loan facihty of £1bidlien
(the "RCF™) The Faclities Agreement s unsecured but 1s guaranteed by vanious of the Company’s subsidiaries

Term Loan Amatures 12 months after the date of the Facilittes Agreement subject to an option, at the Company’s discretion to extend fora
further one-year period Term Loan B matures 36 menths after the date of the Faciliies Agreement with a one-year extension period avalable
at the discretion of the lenders The RCF matures on 30 November 2019 subject to two one-year extension ephions at the discretion of the lenders

The Group 1s subject to two financial covenants under the Facilities Agreement a maximum leverage ratio and a rintmum interest cover ratio
which are tested at the end of each six monthly period beginring on 30 June 2015 The key financial covenants are the ratio of Net Debt to
EBITDA (each as defined in the Facilities Agreement)} and EBITDA to Conschdated Interest Charges (as defined in the Facilities Agreement)
Net Debt to EBITDA must be no more than 4 00 Tuntil 30 June 2016 and thereafter na more than 350 1 EBITDA to Consolidated Interest
Charges must be at least 3501

Term Loan A and Term Loan B are available to be used to fund among other things the consideration payable under the Acquisition Agreements
and the consideration payable to the minasity shareholders of Sky Deutschiand AG pursuant to the Cffer
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Finarcial statements - Notes to the consolidated financal statements

The significant investments of the Company which principally affect the consolidated results and total assets of the Group are as follows

Cauntry of Descnption and proportion
Name Incerparation of shares held (%) Prinapal actmty
Subsidianes
Direct holdings of the Company
Bntish Sky Broadcasting Luruted United Xingdom 10002002 ordinary shares of £1each (100%) Operatton of pay television broadcasting

BSkyB Finance UK plc

Subsidianes.

Indirect hatdings of the Company
Sky Subscnbers Services Limited

Sky Heldings Limited
Sky [n-Home Service Limited

BSkyB Telecommunications
Services Limited

Sky Ventures Limited

The Cloud Networks Limited
Hestview Limited

Bonne Terre Limited

Sky Home Communications Limited

toint ventures and assocates
Nickelodeon UK Limited®
AETNUK

Paramaount UK Partnership®x?
Australian News Channe! Pty
Limated

NGC Network Internatronal LLC
NGT Network Latm America LLC
Attheraces Holdings Limited™

Sky News Arabia FZ-LLC

Investments
ITV plc®

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

Unsted Kingdom
United Kingdom

Untted Kingdom

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Alderney

United Kingdom

United Kingdom
Umited Kingdam
United Kingdom
Austraha

United States of
Amernica

United States of
Amenca

United Kingdom

Uriuted Arab Emirates

United Kingdom

50 000 ordinary shares of £1 each (100%)

3 ardinary shares of £ each {100%)

600 ordinary shares of £1 each (100%)

1576 000 ordinary shares of £1 each (100%)
5821764 ordinary shares of £1each (100%)

912 ordinary shares of £1 each (100%)

30583 988 shares of £0 00025 per share (100%)
108 ordinary shares of £1 each (100%)

2504 ordinary shares of £1 each (100%)
9528124 ordinary shares of £1 each (100%)

104 B Shares of £0 01 each (40%)
50000 A Shares of £1 each (50%)
Partnership interest (25%)

1 ordinary share of AUDE1 (33 33%)
Partnershup interest (21%)

Partnership interest (21%)

1502 ardinary shares of £1 each (459%)

20 Recoupment Shares of £0 55 each
26 666 666 shares of USE1 each (50%)

291684 730 ordinary shares of £010 each (723%)

and home communications services Inthe
UK and Ireland
Finance company

Prowision of analllary functions supporting

the pay television broadceasting, residential
broagband and telephone operations of

the Group

Holding company

Supply installation and maintenance of satelite
telewsion recewving equitpment, broadband and
wireless connector equipment

Management of the network assets in the UK

Holding company

Provision of telecommuntcations

Provision of sports betung activities

Provision of gaming activities

Prowision of residential broadband and telephone
operations

Transmission of children s telewision channels
Transmission of history cnme and Investigation
televison programming and the Lifetime Channet
Transmission of general entertainment comedy
channels

Transmission of news and business channels

Transmission of natural history and adventure
channels

Transmission ef natural history and adventure
channels

Transmission of a horse raang channel and
related online activities

Transmission of Arabic News in the MENA region
{Middle East and North Africa)

Trar on of free-to-air channels

(13 These entibias have an accounting reference date of 31 December

(1) Thase entities have an accounting reference date of 30 September
(in) The regrstered address of Paramount UK Partnership 1s 180 Oxfard Street, London Wil IDS The Paramount UK Partnershp s a joint venture of the Group and
18 inciuded within the consolidated accounts in accordance with Note 1(c)() Consequently the Paramount UK Partnership has taken advantage of the exemption
withun the Partnerships {Accounts) Regulations 2008 {regulation 7) from filing annual financial statements
(v} On17 July 2014 the Group sold a shareholding of approximately 6 4% in ITV congisting of 259 820 065 TV shares For further details refer to note 29
() This nete sets eut an abbrewated ist of the subsidiarres of the Compary A full st will be filed wath Companies House Inaccordance with section 410

of tha Companies act 2006

The following comparves are exemnpt from the requirements relating 1o the audit of ndridual account s for the year/period ended 30 June 2014 by vwtue of section
4734 of the Cornpanies Act 2006 BSkyB Finance Limited (02906994) Kidsprog Limited (02767224) ParthenonMedia Group Limited (06544197) SATV Publishing
Limited (01085975), Sky IP Intermational Lirsted (07245844) and Sky Television Limited (01518707)
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Financal statements — Notes to the consobdated finanaal statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(continued)
31 Bntish Sky Broadcasting Group plc company only financial statements

Company Income Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2014

2014 2013
Notes £m £m
Revenue 225 ALY
Operating expense (44) (40)
QOperating profit 181 174
Dividend income from subsidiares o] 522 947
Investment income B 64 58
Finance costs B (81} (D]
Profit before tax C 786 118
Taxation D (36) [€10)]
Profit for the year attnibutable to equity shareholders 750 1088
The accornparyng nctes are an integral part of this Income statement
Company Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2014
2014 2013
Em Em
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders 750 1088
Other comprehensive income
Amounts recognised directly in equity that may subsequently be recyeled to the income statement
{Loss) gain on cash flow hedges {79) 3
Tax ¢n cash flow hedges 18 m
[ 2
Amounts reclassified and reported in the Income statement
Gain (loss) oncash flow hedges 97 (28)
Tax en cash flowhedges (22) 7
75 [ed))]
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year {net of tax) 14 {15)
Total comprehensive income for the year attnbutable to equity shareholders 764 1069

All resuits relate to contiuing operations
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Company Balance Sheet

Finandal statements - Notes (o the consolidated financal statements

as at 30 June 2014
2014 03
Notes £m £m
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries E 8146 8143
Other recewvables G 2 3
Denvative financial assets J 175 34
8323 8487
Current assets
Other recewables G 3008 2967
Cash and cash equivalents 1 -
3009 2967
Total assets 11332 11454
Current hatuhties
Other payables | 3613 3434
Naon-current labilities
Borrowings H 1557 1718
Denvatve finanaat habilives J 156 176
Deferred tax habiities F 4 1
ik 1895
Total habilittes 5330 5329
Share capital L 781 797
Share premium L 1437 1437
Reserves 3784 3IBM
Total equity attnbutable to equity shareholders 6002 6125
Total hahilwes and shareholders equity 1332 11454

The accompanying hotes are an integral part of ths balance sheet

These finanaal statements of Briish Sky Broadcasting Group plc registered number 02247735 have been approved by tha Board of Directors

on 25 July 2014 and were signed on 1ts behalf by

Jeremy Darroch Andrew Griffith
1ef.Executive Officer Chief Fina

Company Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2014

2014 203
Notes Em Em
Cash flows from operating actrities
Cash generated from operations M - -
Net cash from operating activities - -
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from the exerase of share options n 13
Loan ta subsidianes (418 (16}
Net cash from (used in) finanong activities 1 m
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1 m

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginming of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this cash flow statement
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FAnancial statements - Notes to the consohdated firanaal statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(continued)
31 Briush Sky Broadcasting Group plc company only financial statements (continued)

Cermpany Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Capital Total
Share Share Special redemption Capital ESOP Hedgwg Retamed Shareholders
capstal  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  eamings equity
£m £m Em £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 July 2012 837 1437 14 134 844 {M2) & 2,944 6104
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 1088 1088
Recognition and transfer of cash flow hedges - - - - - - {25) - (29)
Tax onitems taken directly to equity - - - - - - 53 - 6
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - {19} 1088 1069
Share-based payment - - - - - (35) - 61 26
Share buy-back programme (see note 24)
- Purchase of own shares For cancellation [Clo)] - - 40 - - - (617) 6&17)
- Financial hability for close period
purchases - - - - - - - [{3)] (5}
Dividends - - - - - - - (441) {441)
At 30 June 2013 797 1437 14 174 844 {147} (13 3019 6125
Profit For the year - - - - - - - 750 750
Recognition and transfer of cash flow hedges - - - - - - 18 - 18
Tax on iterns taken directly to equity - - - - - - {1 - @
Tatal comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - 14 750 764
Share-based payment - - - - - 2 - {95) (93)
Share buy-back programme (see note 24)
- Purchase of ewn shares for cancellation (16) - - 16 - - - (250) (250)
- Finanaial lability for close period
purchases - - - - - - - (59) (59)
Dridends - - - - - - - (485) (485}
At 30 June 2014 781 1437 14 190 844 {145) 1 2,880 6002

For a desceription of the nature and purpose of each equity reserve seenotel

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement of changes in equity

A Accounting pohicies

British Sky Broadcasting Group plc (the "Company™) 1s a public imited company incorparated in the United Kingdom and registered
m England and Wales

1) Basis of preparation
The Company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS consistent with the accounting policies set out
In note 1 of the Group s consobdated financial statements

i) Revenue

Revenue which excludes value added tax represents the gross inflow of economic benefit from the Company s operaung activities

Revanue Is measured at the fair value of the consideration receved or recevable The Company's main source of revenue IS from licensing

the Company’s brand name asset to subsichanes This revenue s recognised on an accruals basts under the terms of relevant licensing agreements

w}) Investment in subsidiaries

An investment in a subsidiary s recognised at cost less any proviston for impairment As peemitted by section 133 of the Compantes Act 2006
where the relief afforded under section 131 of the Comparies Act 2006 applies cost IS the aggregate of the nominal value of the relevant number
of the Company s shares and the fair value of any other consideration given to acquire the share capital of the subsidiary undertakings
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Financiaf statements ~ Notes to the consohdated finanaaf statements

B Investment income and finance costs

2014 2013
Em £m
nvestment income
Investment incoma from subsidiaries 64 58
2014 203
£m £m
Finance costs
- Interest payable and similar charges
Revohang Credit Faality ("RCF") 2) (&3]
Guaranteed Notes (See note M) (B0 [¢/5)]
82) 78
- Other finance income (expense)
Remeasurement of borrowings and borrowings-related denvative financial Instruments (not qualifying for hedge accounting) - 16
Loss ansing on derivatives in a designated fair value hedge accounting relationship 4} {22y
Galn ansing on adjustment for hedged item In a designated fair value hedge accounting relatonship 5 23
1 17
(81 &1
€ Profit before taxation
Employee benefits
The Company had nil employees (2013 nifydunng the year
Key management compensation
Amounts paid to the Directors of the Company are discJosed in the Report op Directors remuneration on pages 59 t0 76
D Taxation
I} Taxation recognised In the income statement
2004 2013
£m £m
Current tax expense
Current year 37 37
Adjustment in respect of prior years - )
Total current tax charge 37 26
Deferred tax expense
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences )] 4
Total deferred tax (credit) charge {1 4
Taxation 36 30
n) Deferred tax recogrmsed directly in equity
2014 3
£m £m
Deferred tax charge {eredity on hedgng actvities 4 {6)
1il) Reconcillation of effactive tax rate
The tax expense for the vear s lower {2013 lower) than the expense that would have beencharged using the blended rate of corporation
tax in the UK (22.5%) applied to profit hefore tax The applicable enacted or substantively enacted effective rate of UK corporation tax
for the year was 22 5% (2013 23 75%) The differences are explained below
2014 2013
£m £m
Prefit before tax 786 118
Profit hefore tax multiphed by blended rate of corporation tax in the UK of 22 5% (2013 23 75%) 177 266
Effects of
Non-taxable income (140) (225)
Tax rate change U] -
QOver provision in respect of pnor years - )
Taxation 36 30

All taxation relates to UK corporation tax
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Financial statements = Notes to the consohdated financal statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(continued)

31 British Sky Broadcasting Group pk company only financial statements {continued)

E Investments in subsidiaries

£m
Cost
At 1 July 2012 9277
Addittons 573
Disposal (702)
At 30 June 2013 2148
Additions 3
At 30 June 2004 9131
Prowision
At 1July 2012 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2014 1005
Carrying amounts
At1July 2012 8272
At 30 June 2013 8143
At 30 June 2014 B146
During the prior year the Company purchased 100% of the share capital of BSky8 LLU Assets Limited from tts direct subsidiary BSkyB Finance UK plc
The Company subsequently transferred its nvestment in BSkyB LLU Assets Limited to its direct subsidiary Briish Sky Broadcasting Limited
See note 30 for a st of sigmficant nvestments of the Company
F Deferred tax
Recognised deferred tax habiliies
Finanaat
instruments
temporary
differences
£Em
At 1July 2012 3
Charge to income )
Credit to equity 6
At 30 June 2013 [0)
Credit to income 1
Charge to equity {4y
At 30 June 2014 )
At 30 June 2044 adeferred tax asset of £244 millon (2013 £278 millon) has not been recognised in respect of capital losses related to the
Group’s holding 1n KirchPayTV on the basis that utiisation of these temporary differences ts not probable At 30 June 2014 the Company
has also not recogrised a deferred tax asset of £5 million (2013 £7 million) relating to capital losses and provisians In respect of football
club investments on the basis thatitis not probable that they will be utiised
G Other recewables
2004 2013
Em Em
Amounts recenvable from subsidianes 3008 2966
Prepayments and other receivables - 1
Current other receivables 3008 2967
Non-current prepayment 2 3
Total other recervables 3010 2970

On 26 November 2012, the Company issuted USE800 million Guaranteed Notes with a coupon rate of 3 125% and loaned proceeds to
British Sky Broadcasting Limited British Sky Broadcasting Limited pays the same annual effective interest rate to the Company

On 5 March 2009 the Company made a loan of £624 miflion to Bnush Sky Broadcastng Limited which 1s repayable on demand and bears
intesest at a rate of 6 month LIBOR plus 0 75% In October 2009 the Company assigned £604 million of thisloan to setife payables
with BSkyB Finance Limuted
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On 13 January 2009 the Company made a loan of £252 milion to British Sky Broadcasting Limited This loan bears interest at a rate
of 6 month LIBOR plus 100% and 15 repayable on demand

On 12 January 2009 the Company made a foan of £9t milhon to Sky In-Home Senvice Limited This loan is repayable on demand and
bears interest at a rate of 6 month LIBOR plus 100%

On 24 November 2008 the Company 1ssued US$600 millon Guaranteed Motes with @ coupen rate of 9 5% and loaned the proceeds
to BSkyB Finance Limited BSkyB Finance Limited pays the same annual effective interest rate to the Company

On 29 June 2008 the Company entered into loan agreements with British Sky Broadcasting Limited for £143 million and £109 mitlion,
both bearing interest at arate of 1 month LIBOR plus 0 75% These loans are repayable on demand

On 29 June 2008 Sky Ventures Limited transferred its £11 million laan receivable from BSkyB Finance Limited to the Company
This loan bears Interest at a rate of 1 month LIBOR plus O 75% and 1s repayable on demand

On 29 June 2008 the Company entered into a RCF with BSkyB Finance Limited worth £40 milion Amounts loaned under thes faciity
bear interest at a rate of 1 month LIBOR plus 0 75% and are repayable an demand

Cn 15 February 2008, the Company issued U$$750 millon Guaranteed Notes with & coupon rate of 6100% and loaned the proceeds
to British Sky Broadcasting Limited British Sky Broadcasting Limited pays the same annual effective interest rate to the Cempany

All other amounts recewable from subsidianes are non-interest bearing and are also repayable on demand
The tirectors cansider that the carrying amount of ather recewables approximates thew fay values

The Campany's credit risk (s primanly atiributable to its other receivables The majonty of its other recenables balance 1s due from
British Sky Broadcasting Limited The nsk of this entity defaulting on amounts owed s considered low due to its successful operation
of pay telewsion broadcasting and home communicauons services in the UK and Ireland

H Borrowings

2014 2013
£m Em
Non-current borrowings
US$750 mithon of 6 100% Guaranteed Notes repayable in February 2018 442 498
US$582 8 milhon of 9 500% Guaranteed Notes repayable in November 2008 353 404
US$800 millon of 3125% Guaranteed Notes repayabie in November 2022 466 520
£300 mulhon of 6 000% Guaranteed Mates repayable in May 2027 296 206
1,557 1,718
See note 20 for details of the Company s Guaranteed Notes and RCF and note 22 for detatls of Capital Risk Management
| Other payables
2014 2013
£Em £m
Other payables
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 3536 3398
Amounts owed to other related parties 23 6
QOther 36 10
Accruals 18 20
3613 3434

Amounts payable to subsidianes are non-interest beanng and repayable on demand The balance compnses £2164 million of non-interest bearing

loans (2013 £1,898 million) and E1 372 million of other payables (2013 £1500 milkon) The Directors consider that the carrying amount of ather payables

appraoximates their fair values
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Finandlal statements - Notes to the corsolidated finarkaal staterments

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(continued)

31 Briish Sky Broadcasting Group plc company only financial statements {continued)

J Denvatives and other financial instruments

Fair values

Set out below is a companson of the camying values and the estimated fair values of the Company s financial assets and financial kabilittes

at 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013

2014 2014 2013 2013
Carrping Fair Carrying Far
value value value value
£m Em £Em £m
Financial assets and hablivies held or issued to finance the Company’s operations
Quoted bond debt (1557) (1740) Q78) (1915}
Denvative financial instruments 19 19 165 165
Other payables and receivables (6G5) (605) 467) {4673
The fair values of financial assets and finandial llabilities are determined as detalled in note 21 and afl itemns held at fair value are classified
as Level 2n the fair vatue hierarchy
Set out below are the denvative financial nstruments entered into by the Company to manage Its interest rate and foreign exchange risk
2004 2013
Asset Labilicy Asset Labiity
Fau Value Noticnal FarValue Hational Fair Val:e Notwonal Fair Value Motional
£m Em Em Em £m £m Em Em
Fair value hedges
Interest rate swaps 51 452 - - 65 505 - -
Cash flowhedges
Cross-currency Swaps 45 290 (36) 503 a6 746 - 47
Dervatives notin a formal hedge relatenship
Interest rate swaps Ell 574 (25) 314 43 605 (42) 345
Cross-currency swaps 48 725 94 1018 uz 725 (138) 1018
Total 175 204 (156) 1,835 N 2,581 (176) 1410
Nate 21 provides further details of the Group s denvative and cther financialinstruments
‘The maturity of the dervative finanaal instruments 1s shown below
2004 2013
Asset Lisbility Asset Lrability
Em Em Em Em
Between one and two years 33 (33 - -
Between two and five years 122 67) 242 {M2)
In mare than five years 20 {56} 59 (64)
Jotal 175 (156) 3 (176)

K Financlal nsk management

Intarest rate and foreign exchange risk management

The Company manages Its exposure to interest rates and foreign exchange movements which anse from the Cormpany’s sources of finance
by selectively entering into denvative financial instruments to manage its expasure The Company has also entered into denvatsve contracts

on behalf of Its subsidiary BSkyB Finance UK plc, and has back-to-back intercompany cantracts

Foreign exchange nsk

The following analysis details the Company’s sensitivity to movements tn pounds sterling against all currencies i which it has sigrificant
transactions The sensitvty analys:s includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated financial instrurments and adjusts their

translation at the period end for a 25% change in forergn currency rates

A25% strengthening in pounds sterling against the US dollar would have an adverse impact on profit of £16 million (2013 adverse impact
of £22 milior) relating to non-cash movements in the valuation of dervatives The same strengthening would have an adverse impact

on other equity of £21 miion (2073 adversewmpact of £25 milion)

A 25% weakening In pounds sterling against the US dollar would have a benefiial impact on profit of £26 million (2013 beneficial mpact
of £36 million) refating to non-cash movements in the valuation of derivatives The same weakening would have a benefical mpact

on other equity of £36 million (2013 beneficial impact of £42 million)
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Interestrate nsk

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both dertvatives and non-derivative financial
Instruments at the balance sheet date For floating rate liabilties the analysis 1s prepared assuming the amount of habtlity outstanding at the
balance sheet date was outstanding for the whole year

For each one hundred basis point nse or fall in interest rates at 30 June 2014 and If a¥ other varables were held constant the Company's profit
for the year ended 30 June 2014 would decrease or tncrease by £3 milllon (2013 decreaseorincrease by £3 million) and other equity reserves
would decrease or increase by £1 million (2013 decrease orincrease by £4 million)

Aone hundred basis point nse or fallin interest rates represents a large but realistic movement which can easily be multipled to give sensitnties
at different interestrates

The sensitivity analyses provided are hypothetical only and should be used with caution as the tmpacts provided are noet necessarily indicative
of the actualimpacts that would be expenenced because the effect of a change in a particuiar market vanable on far values or cash flows 15
calculated without considering interrelationships between the vanous market rates or mitigating actions that would be taken by the Company
In addiuien, the Company’s actual exposure to market rates changes as the Company s portfolo of debt changes

The changes in valuations are estimates of the impact of changes in market vanables and are not a prediction of future events or ant:cipated
gains or losses

Liquidity risk
See note 22 for the Company s policy on iquidity management.

The following table analyses the Company 5 non-derivabive financial liabilities net settled interest rate swaps and gross settfed currency
swaps and collars into relevant matunty groupings based on the remaining perod at the balance sheet date to the contractual matunty date

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows and may therefore not reconcile to the amounts disclosed
on the balance sheat for borrowings denvative financial instruments and other payables

Between Between

Lessthan oneand twoand Morethan
12 menths  twoyears fiveyears  fiveyears
Em £m £m £m
AL 30 June 2014
Non-derivative financial habities
Bonds - USD 74 74 962 521
Bonds - GBP 18 18 S4 444
Qther payables 3613 - - -
Net settled dervatives
Financial assets 5) {15) (36) -
Gross settled denvatives
Outflow 63 62 930 560
inflow (56) (56) (920) (521)
Between Between
Less than oheand twoand  Mosethan
Zmonths  twoyears five years five years
Em £m £m £m
At 30 June 2013
Mon-denvative finanaial lrabiities
Bonds - UsSD 83 83 740 999
Bonds - GBF 18 18 54 462
Other payables 3434 - - -
Net settled denvatives
Financial assets 9N N &) %)
Gross settled denvatives
Outflow 62 62 574 G678
Inflaw (63) (63) {682) (926)

At 30 June 2014 the Company had an undrawn £743 million RCF with a maturity date of 31 October 2018 See note 20 for further information
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
{continued)

31 Brnitish Sky Broadcasting Group plc company only financial statements (continued)

L Notesto the Company statement of changes in equity

For details of share capital share premium the special reserve the capital redemption reserve and the hedging reserve see notes 23 and 24
For details of the Company's share buy-back programmes see nate 24

For details of dvidends see note 9

Capital reserve

Thus reserve arose From the surplus on the transfer of trade and assets to a subsidiary undertaking

M Recondiliation of profit befare tax to cash generated from operations

2014 2013

Em £m

Profit before tax 786 118
Divdend income (622) (947)

Net finance costs 17 3

Increase in other receivables (181 (V7
Cash generated from operations -

N Contingent liabilities and guarantees

The Company and certain of its subsidianes have undertaken in the normal course of business to provide support to several of the Groups
investments in both imited and unlimited companies and partnerships to meet their habilities as they fall due Several of these undertakings
contam maxmum finanaal hmits These undertakings have been given for at least one year from the date of the signing of the UK statutory
accounts of the refated entity A payment under these undertakings would be requred in the event of an investment being unable to payits habilities

The Company has provided parent company guarantees in respect of the various contracts entered into with the Premier League by Bntish Sky
Broadcasting Limited covenng the 2013/14 to 2015/16 football seasons In each case the guarantee covers all payment obligations now or in the
future due owing or incurred by British Sky Broadcasting Limited under the contracts and all habities now or in the future ansing or incurred
under the indemmity given to the Premier League by British Sky Broadcasting Limited under the contracts

The Company has provided a parent company guarantee in respect of the contract entered into with Brniish Sky Broadcastung Limited and
Stanhope plc in relation to the construction of a new corporate headquarters at the Osterley Campus The guarantee covers all performance
obligations and payment ocbhigations imposed on British Sky Broadcasting Limited under that contract

The Company has guarantees in place relating to the Groups borrowings see note 20 and In relation to audit exemptions see note 30

O “Transactions with related parties and major shareholders

20%4 2013

Em Em

Supply of services to subsidiaries 225 214

Interest receved from funding to subsidiares 54 58

Amounts owed by subsidianies 2008 2966
Amounts owed to subsidianes {3536) (3398)
Ampunts owed to otherrelated partias (23) (D]

The Company has related party transactions with its subsidianes by virtue of its status as parent company of the Group In partieular itis normal
treasury practice for the Company to lend and borrow cash to and from its subsichanes as required Under this poliey British Sky Broadcasting
Limited settled llabilit:es of £83 million (213 £74 millien) an behalf of the Company during the year Interestis earned on certain loans to subsichares

The Company recogrised £225 miflion (2013 £214 mithon) for licensing the Sky brand name to subsidianes
The Company recognised dividends dunng the year from subsicharies totalling £622 milion (2013 £347 million)

Share buy-back programme
Dunng the year the Company purchased and subsequently cancelled 12140586 ordinary shares held by Twenty-First Century Fox inc as part
of its share buy-back programme For further details see note 24

The Group s related party transactions are disclosed innote 28

P Events after the reporting penod

For details see note 29 to the consolidated financial statements

136 British Sky Broadcasting Group plc




Annual Report 2014
Financial statements - Group financal record

Group financial record

Unaudited supplemental information

Consolidated results

Below s selected financial information for the Groug under IFRS as at and for each of the five years ended 30 fune 2014

Year Year Year Year Year
ended ended ended ended ended
30 June 30 June 30June 30 June 30 June
2014 o3 202 201 20t0
Consolidated Income Statement Em Em £m Em £m
Continuing operations
Retall subscripuon G 255 5951 5593 540N 4778
wheolesale subseription 422 396 351 323 238
Adverusing 472 440 440 458 340
Installatlon hardware and service 85 87 a8 152 174
Other 398 361 309 233 179
Revenue™ 7632 7,235 6791 6,597 5709
Operating expense® ©4m) (5944) (5548) (5.524) (4 865)
Liugation settlement income - - - - 269
Operating profit 1,161 1291 1243 1073 JALE]
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 35 46 39 34 3z
Investment incorme on iigation settlement - - - - 45
Investment mcome 26 28 8 9 3
Finance costs (40) (108) (m) (1) (122)
Profit on disposal of avallable-for-sale Investment - - - 9 1ns
pProfit before tax 1,082 1257 1189 1014 1150
Taxation 17 (278) (283) (256) (294}
Profit for the year from continuing operations 865 979 806 758 896
Discontinued operatians
Profit (loss) for the year from discontinued operations - - - 52 (18)
profit for the year 865 ars 506 810 878
Net profit (loss) recognised directly in equity 73 129 64 (8) &1
Total comprehensive income for the year 938 1108 970 802 939
Earnings per share from profit for the year (n pence)
Basic 85 4p 607p 526p 46 5p 504p
Diluted 54 9p 597p 522p 459p 501p
Dividends per share (in pence) 320p 300p 254p 23 3p 194p
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
204 203 22z 20m 2010
Consclidated Balance Sheet Em £m Em £m £m
Non-current assets 387 3776 3234 3025 2818
Current assets 2573 2569 2275 2329 1986
Total assets 6,449 6345 5509 5354 4804
Current habibities 2519 @317 (2.098) (1,912) (1707
Non-current habtlities (2,858) (3015) (2467) (2407) (2.537)
Net assets 1072 1,012 544 1035 560
Number of shares insssue (in milkons) 1563 1594 1674 1753 1753
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Financial statements - Group inancal record

Group financial record eontinued)

Unaudited supplemental information

Consolidated results

Year Year Year Year Year
ended ended ended ended ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30June 30 June
204 2013 2012 201 2010
Statistcs [ge]el)] (000) {000) {000y (000)
Products
™ 10686 10 422 10,288 10187 9860
SkytHD 5242 4786 4343 3822 2935
Multiroom 2559 2489 2402 2,250 211
Sky Go Extra 177 166 - - -
Broadband 5247 4906 4,001 3338 2624
Telephony 4982 4501 3,768 3101 2,367
Line rental 4882 4,364 3563 2680 1€86
Total paid-for subscription products 34775 31634 28 365 25,375 21557
Customers
Retall customers 11495 1153 10606 10 204 9868
Wholesale customers™? 404 3677 3672 3522 3271
Total customers 15,536 14 830 14278 13 816 13139
Average number of full-tme equivalent employees 20841 19413 17937 16 006 16 439

¢} Included within wholesale subseription revenue for the year ended 30 June 2014 s a E15 milkan cradit received following the termination of an escrow agreement with
a current wholesale operator

{1} Included within operabing expense for La year ended J0 June 2004 are costs of £72 mukon relabing to the acquisiion and integraton of the 02 consumer breadband and
fixad-line telephony business costs of E40 million relating to a corporate restructuring and effiaiency programme and £2 milkon as a result of the termmation of anescrow
agreement with a current wholesale operator
Inchuded within operating expense for the year endled 30 June 2013 15 a geait of £32 mithion in relation Lo a aredit note raceved following an Ofcom deterrmination, a cradit of E32
milionrelating to the final settlement of disputes with a former manufacturer of set top boxes (net of assooated costs), costs of £31 millon relating to one-off upgrade of set-top
Bbexes, costs of E33 millionrelating to a corperate efficency programme and costs of £15 million relating to the acquisition and integration of the 02 eonsumer broadband and fixed hne
telephony business Alscincluded are casts of E25 million relating ta the programme to offer wireless connectors to selected Sky Movies ustomers
inchucied withwn aperating expense for the year ended 30 June 2012 s a credit of £31 milhion in relabon to the News Corporation (subsequently renamed Twenty-First Century Fox inc)
proposalin 2011 consistug of costs weurred offset by the receipt of the break fee Alsowncluded are restructunng costs of ETl milhon which comprise Severatké payments i ralation
to approxuimately 35 sentorroles as part of a restructunng mitiative ta improve operating efficency
Inchuded within oparating expense for the year ended 30 June 20115 £26 milhon of restructunng <osts ansing on the acquisition of Lmng TV which comprise pancipally redundancy
paymaents and the early terrunation of a pre-acquisition contract, £15 milhon of costs in relation to the News Corporation (subsequently renamed Twenty-First Century Fox Inc)
proposaland a credit of £41 millon in relation to the refund of impert duty on set<top boxes paid out In prior years This duty was recovered due t the judgment given by the ECJ
onld Apnl 201
Included within operating expense for the year ended 30 Junie 2010 18 £32 rmithon of expense relating to a restructuning exerose of which £22 millkon related to the mpairment
of assets assocmated with Pionie (the potential launch of a subscription television service on DTT)and £10 million related to reorganisation costs and redundancy payments
Alseircluded within operating expense for the year ended 30 June 2010 1s E1 million of expense relating ta legal costs incurred on the Group s clawn against EDS which provided
serwices to the Group as part of the Group 5 Investmant in customer management systems software and infrastructure and & £5 rallion cradit related to the canceliation af
accounts payable on sattiement of the elaim against EDS

() Whaolesale customers are customers who take & package fTom oneof Sky 3 Wholesale Partners in which they recerve at least one paid for Sky channel

Factors which matenally affect the comparability of the selected financial data

Discontinued operations
Dunng fiscal 2011 the Group sold its business-to-business telecommunications operation Easynet to LDC

EDS Litigation settlement
Durning fiscal 2010 EDS and the Group fully and finally settled the itigation between them and all related ctams (including for damages costs and interest)
for a total amount of £318 million

Avatlable-for-sale investment
Duning fiscal 2011 the Group disposed of its equity investment in Shine and recogrised a profit of £9 million

Dunng fiscal 2010, the Group disposed of part of its equity investment in ITV and recognised a profit on disposal of £115million For further details see
note 14 to the consolidated finanoal statements

Business combinations

During fiscal 2013 the Group completed the acquisition of the O2 consumer broadband and fixad-line telephony business from Telefénica UK comprising
100% of the share capital of Be Un Limsted The resulzs of this acquisition were consolidated from the date on which control passed to the Group

{30 Apni 2013}

During fiscal 2011 the Group completed the acquisitions of Living TV and The Cloud The results of these acquisitions were consolidated from the date
on wiuch control passed to the Group (12 July 2010 and 23 February 2011 respectively}

Exchange rates

A significant portion of the Graup s llabilities and expenses assocated with the cost of programming acquired from US fitm licensors together with
set-top box tosts are denominated In US dollars For a discussion of the impact of exchange rate movements on the Group s financial condition
and results of operations seenote 22 to the consolidated financial statements

138 Bestish Sky Broadeasting Group plc




Annual Report 2014

Financial statements - Non-GAAP measures

Non-GAAP measures

Unaudited supplemental information

Consolidated Income Staterment - reconcilation of statutory and adjusted numbers

2014 2013
Adjusting Adjusting
Statutory ltems  Adpusted Statutory ltems  Adjusted
Notes Em Em Em Em Em £m
Revenue
Retail subscription 6255 - 6255 5951 - 5951
Wholesale subsscrption A 422 {15) 407 3%6 - 396
Advertsing 472 - 472 440 - 440
Installation, hardware and serace 85 - 85 87 - 87
Other 358 - 398 361 - 361
7632 (15) 7617 7235 - 7235
Operating expense
Programming B (2662) - (2662) {2487 1 {2486)
Direct networks C (850) 3 (819) (686) (29 (Ns)
Marketing D (1215) 16 1159) [Ehir)] 1 {16)
Subscriber management and supply chain E (694) 6 (688) (673) 26 (647)
Transmission technology and fixed networks F (460) 13 (447 (405) 4 (401)
Administratuen G (590) 48 (542) (576) 36 (540)
KA n4 {6,357) {5.944) 39 {5905)
|EBITDA 1597 70 1,667 1669 23 1652 |
Operating profit 1161 2] 1260 1291 39 1330
Share of results of joint ventures
and associates H s - 35 46 &) Y
Investment income 26 - 26 28 - 28
Finance costs | (140} 5 35 (108} (23) (31
Profit before tax 1082 104 1186 1257 7 1264
Taxation J (217} (32) {249) (278) a7) (295)
Prafit for the year BG5S 72 937 979 (10 969
[Earrungs per share (basic) 55 4p 4 6p 600p 607p (©7)p  600p |
Notes explanation of adjusuing wems for the year ended 30 June 2004
A Reverue of £15 million relating to credit recerved following terminatson of an estrow agreement with a current wholesale operator
¢ Costsof £31 milicnrelating to the acquisition and integration of the 02 consumer broadband and fixed-ine tetephony business
D Costsof £15 miborinrelation to a corporate restructuring and afficiency programme and costs af £1 mifion relating to the acquisibon and integration of the
02 consumner broadband and fixed-lne telephony business
E Costsof £3milon relating to the acquisition and integration of the O2 consumer broagband ard fixed tne telephony business and costs of £3 milkan nrelaton
10 acerporate restructunng and ¢fficlency programme {principally an imparrment of £2 million in relation 1o associated intangible and tang:ble assets)
F  Costsof £13 million relating to the acquisition and integration of the 02 consumer broagband and fixeg-ine telephony business (including amorusation of £4 millon
i relation £o associated intangible assets)
G Costsof £24 millionselating Lo the acquisiben and integration of tha O2 consumer broadband ard fed-ne telephony business (nduding amortisation of £23 milien
nretation 1o associated INtangible assets) costs of £22 milion relating Lo a corporate rastructuring and efficency programma and cests of £2 miion relating to an
expense as & result of the termination of an escrow agreerment with a current wholesale operator
| Remeasurement of all dervative financial instruments not qualifying for hadge accounting and hedge meffectiveness
4 Taxadusting items and the tax effact of above itams

Motes explanaton of adjustmg items for the year ended 30 June 2013

B
[

D
E

Costs of E1 millionrelating to a corporate efficency programme

Credit of £32 malbon relating 1o a credit note recerved following an Ofcom determunation and costs of £3milion relatng to the acquisition and integration of the
02 consumer broadband and fixed-Ine telephony business

Costs of EYmilkon refating to a corparate effinency programme

Creditof £33 million relaung to the final settlement of disputes with a forrmer manufacturer of set-top boxes (net of associated costs and ncluding an imparment
of £6 milion nrelation to assoaated intangible assats) costs of E31 millionrelating to one-off upgrade of set top boxes costs of £25 million relatng to a programme
to offer wireless connectors to selected Sky Movies customers costs of £2 milbion refating 1o the acguistion and integration of the O2 consumer broadband and
fixed-kne telephony business and costs of £1million refating to a corporate efficiency programme

Costs of £1 millon relating to 3 corporate efficency programme, sigrificantly an imparrment of assocated mtangible and tangible assets and £3 milkon relaung
ta the acquisition and integrauon of the 02 consumer broadband and fixed-Ing telephony business

Costs of £29 million relaung to a corperate efficiency programme primarily redundancy eosts and including an impairment of £5 million i relation to associatad
intangble and tangble assets and E7 milhon refating to the acquisition and ntegration of the 02 consumer broadband and fixed-ine telephony business
includng amortisation af £4 mullion 1n refatson 1o asscaated miangble assets

Profit on d:sposal of the Group's interest in MUTY Limited

Remeasurement of all derivative financal instruments not qualifying fer hedge accounting and hedge ineffectiveness

Tax adusting tems and the tax affect of above tems.
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Financiat statements - Non-GAAP measures

N on- GAAP measures (continued)

Unaudited supplemental information

Reconciiation of cash generated from operations to adjusted free cash flow

for the year ended 30 June 204

20m4 2013
Note £m £m
Cash generated from operations 25 1,769 1877
Interest receved 27 29
Taxation paid (240) (300)
Dividends received from joint ventures and associates 32 43
Net funding ta joint ventures and associates {€) “
Purchase of property plant and equipment (24%) ¢203)
Purchase of Intangible assets (302) (251}
Intergst pad {137) (128}
Free cash flow 902 1,063
Receipt following termination of an escrow agreement with a current wholesate operater ()] -
Receipt following final settlement of disputes with a former manufacturer of set-top boxes® © 9]
Cash paid relating to a corperate efficency programme’™ 12 4
Cach patd (recaipt) foflawing an Ofcom determination®? 4 {28)
Cash paid relating to one-off upgrade of set-top boxes® 16 7
Cash paid refating to programme to offer wireless connectors to selected Sky Mowies customers® 16 1
Cash paid refating to the acquisition and integration of the 02 consumer broadband and Fixed-tine
telephany business® 22 4
Receipt an disposal of joint venture - a3
Adjusted free cash flow 944 1028

(1} Netof applicable corporation tax
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Shareholder information

Annual General Meeting

The venue and ttiming of the Company 5 2014 AGM |s detaled in the
notice convening the AGM which will be available for download from
the Company’s corporate website at sky com/corporate

Financial calendar
Results for the financiat year ending 30 June 2015 will be published in

October 2014+
February 2015*
May 2015*
August 2015*

* Provisional dates

The Sky website

Shareholders are encouraged towvisit the Sky website sky com which
has a wealth of Information about the Company There is a section
designed specifically for investors at sky comfcorporate wheare investor
and mediainformation can be accessed Thes year s Annual Report and
Notice of AGM together with prior year documents can be viewed
there along with Information on dividends share price and avoiding
shareholder fraud

Managing your shares and shareholder
communications

The Company’s shareholder register 1s maintained by its Registrar
Equinitt Information on how ta manage your shareholdings can be
found at help shareview co uk

Shareholders can contact Equinity in relation to all admemistrative
enquiries relating to their shares such as a change of personal detalls
the loss of a share certificate out-of-date dividend cheques change
of dividend payment methods and how ta apply for the Dvidend
Reinvestment Plan

Sharehalders who have not yet elected to recerve shareholder
dacumentation in electronic form can sign up by registenng at
shareviewco uk Should Shareholders who have elected for electronic
communications require a paper copy of any of the Company's
shareholder documentation or wish to change theirinstructions
they should contact Equinitl

Shareholder Contact Centre

Equiriti Limited

Aspect House

Spencer Road

Lancing

Woest Sussex

BNDS 6DA

Telephone 0871384 2691*

Telephone number from outside the UK +44 121 415 7567

* Lines are open Monday to friday 8 30am te 5 30pm excluding UK Bank Holdays
Calls to 0871 numbers cost Bp par minute plus network extras

Dividend tax vouchers

Aconsolidated tax voucher service 1s avarlable for shareholders who
have chosen ta receive dividends directly mto their bank account.

A single consolidated taxvoucher will be malled by theend of
November each year toconade with the final dividend payment

Dwidend Reinvestment Plan

The Company operates a Dvidend Reinvestment Plan ("DRIP*) which
enables shareholders to buy the Company s shares on the London
stock market with their cash dividend Further information about
the DRIP1s avallable from Equirmit

ShareGift

Shareholders who only have a small number of shares whose value
makes it uneconarmic ta sell them may wish to consider donating them
to chanty through ShareGift, the independent charity share donation
scheme (registered charnty no 1052686) Further information may

be ebtaned from ShareGift on 020 7930 3737 or at sharegift org

Shareholder fraud

Fraud is on the Increase and many shareholders are targeted every
year If you have any reason to beiieve that you may have been the
target of afraud or attempted fraud in refation to your shareholding
please contact Equinutiimmediately

Amencan Depositary Receipts ("ADRs")

The Company's ADR programme trades on the over-the-counter
("OTC") market n the US Mare informauon can be obtamed from
the Company’s corporate website at sky com/corporata

All enquinies relating to the Company's ADRs should be addressed to

BNY Mellon

PO Box 43006 Providence RI02940-3006 US A
US residents (888) 262377

If resident outside the US +1 201 680 6825
email shrrelaticns@bnymellon com

Company's registered office

Grant Way

Isteworth

Middlesex

TW75QD

Telephone 0333100 0333
Overseas +44 3331000333

Company registration number
2247735

Auditor

Deloitte LLP

2 New Street Square
Londen

EC4A 3BZ
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Glossary of terms

Glossary of terms

Useful Definibions

Descrniption

Chwn

The number of total customers over a given pericd that termmate their subscription I 1ts entirety net of former customers
who reinstated their subscription in that period (where such renstatement Is within a i2-month period of the termination
of their original subscription) expressed as an annualsed percentage of total average customers for the penod

DTH Direct-to-Home the transmission of satelite services and functionality with reception through a satellite dish
“DTH customer” means a subscriber to one of more of our retalled packages of television channels made avallable via DTH

DTT Digital Terrestrial Telewsion digital signals delivered to homes through a conventional aenat converted through a set-top
box or integrated digtal television set

EPG Electronic Programme Guide

P Internet Protocol a mechanmism by which data packets may be routed between computers on anetwork

1PTV Internet Protacol Television

Multiscreen tnstallation of an additional set-top box in the household of an existing DTH customer Sky Go Extra (s included at no extra
cost for Multiscreen customers on an opt-in basis

NOW TV The Groups over the top streaming service avallable on a vanety of devices including NOW TV Box, of fening monthly
subscnptions for Sky Movies or Entertainment and transactional Sky Sports Day Passes

On Demand Sky s On Demand sennce offering a selection of content from across the Sky platform avadable for customers to watch
whenever they want The full On Demand service 1s available to customers that have an active broadband connection

PVR Personal Video Recorder satelite decoder which utilises a built-in hard disk drive to enable viewers to record without
wideotapes pause live telewision and record one programme while watching another

Set-top box Digital satellite equipment responsible for recemng converting and sending the picture and sound of a broadcast
to the assocated telewision set

Skyt Sky s fully-integrated PVR and satellite decoder

Sky+tHD High Definition set-top box with PVR functionality

Sky Bet Sky s betting services provided through set-top boxes, the internet and via phone

Sky Broadband Home broadband service

Sky Go Sky s retalled packages of television channets and on demand content made available via a broadband connection
including the version made available to mobile devices via a wireless or 3G connection

Sky Go Extra Selected content included within Sky's retarled packages of television channels and on demand content made available
to download enabling customers to watch the content when and wherever they want, without the need for a broadband
wireless or 3G/4G connection

Sky Store Our pay-per-view on demand movies rental service available via Sky On Demand and Sky Go

Sky Talk Home telephony service

Sky WiFI Sky s seamless wireless internet access provided at over 20 000 The Cloud hetspots in the UK

Standalone home Sky s retalled packages of broadband, talk and ine rental when taken without a television subscniption package

communmcations
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Accessibility

If you would bike advice regarding accessibility of this document,
please contact the Accessible Customer Service team on 03442 410333
or Textphone on 0844 241 0535

Customers in RO should use telephone number 0818 7198 09 and
Textphone number 0B18 71 98 43

We can a'so be contacted by email accessiblecustomerservice@bskyb com
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